o, 9
N
ump

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
MEREEEBEBRAT
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
B E R SR O L B IRAE])

(Stock Code JBfp{5%: 722)

Annual
Report

2019



CONTENTS B $%

19

36

49

69

93

129

140

141

142

144

146

150

324

325

Corporate Information

NCIR- R

Chairman Statement

TE®RE

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEElEuTuHE& l(ﬁ

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEZNaREEERE

Corporate Governance Report

ﬁ%%/ﬂi&i

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE -HERERMSE

Report of Directors

ExERS

Independent Auditor’s Report
B EE S

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FEBER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

u"T\ =] %El‘l&)\%

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBIRREK

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RAESREER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Summary

MBEHE

Glossary
e
w

This annual report is printed on environmentally friendly paper

A IR IAIR R 4R EN B




CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (Managing Director)

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael

Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix

Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS jp

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss jp

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John B8s jp (Chairman)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald s8s jp
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sssjp (Chairman)

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBs jp
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss jp

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix

Ms. Ma Hoi Wan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Ma Hoi Wan

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS
Room 1404-1408, 14th Floor

Wing On House
71 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

Exg

BITES

BREBTIBE (Z/ERITHAEZ)
BEBRL (EFHLE)
RERTE

BRXREE

FRBEEL

TS

BYKHITES
B (LHEE X TFH#L)
THRB A (RLEHEE KA FHL)

ERZEEE

B E e mes  c¥mr) (L/E)
TRIREE L (R EE A FHL)
EAA%%/EE

FHEES

TRREL (prmEs  AFwt)(EE)
WA

REAZES
BRTS A (L/E)
TR A (ILHEE X TFHL)
TEIRE L (e EE A TFHL)

REAX
FRI
SHELt

NEWE
SylZE+t

MR EEERME

aBE
EWHER7IHR
KEEBKNE
141£1404-1408 %



REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

AMRER

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER HEHRETEROMBFERE

OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

22nd Floor, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
Allen & Overy

9th Floor, Three Exchange Square
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank Limited

20th Floor
83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
722

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.ump.com.hk

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

EERARODBFELZIE
BEBEELRBRAT
55
ERENBR1835H

B M D

541&

B &AM
ZXE TR E AT
BERIER

NEE R
REAE-_t+ -8
=R

% 13 B PR R AD = A FT
BERIER

RIBEH=ZENE

FEFREIT
EERITAERAA
55

EEE P83
2018

iR 13 X8R

722

ACEER

www.ump.com.hk

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR

3



CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
ERBE

A YEAR IN REVIEW

For the 12 months ended 30 June 2019, we have experienced a
range of economic and political changes and challenges like never
before. The US and China trade wars had generally worsened in
2019, causing significant political and economic uncertainties
for all governments and industries worldwide. These external
factors have meant that businesses now need to, more than ever,
be very sensitive and must promptly react to changes in external
environment in order to survive and also seize new opportunities for
growth. The advances in technologies, use of social media and big
data have also shown that traditional dominants in their respective
industries could become disrupted and replaced in a short period
of time. The importance of recognising and embracing the use of
technology and business model innovation is now becoming the top

agenda for organisations to survive and thrive, including UMP.

During the past year, we have invested significantly in our
technology and our people. Among our initiatives, we have invested
substantially in our claims processing services by introducing
electronic claims, signatures and vouchers for our members,
established a new electronic learning portal for our GOLD™
programme that now hosts vast volume of training data for hundreds
of doctors in China, and most recently, the launch of our virtual care
platform that would allow our UMP trained and certified doctors
to deliver real time tele-consultation services to patients located
across China. We have also expanded our senior management
team by on-boarding professionals that have significant experience
and knowledge in the third party administration and healthcare

insurance sectors.
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Notwithstanding such substantial investments that have, predictably,
consumed vast amount of management time and resources, UMP has
experienced significant growth across all fronts. On the back of the
full integration of the various acquisitions that we have completed
in FY2018 and FY2019, together with organic ramp up in our
core businesses, our revenue has increased 22.4% from HK$463.4
million in FY2018 (restated due to HKFRS accounting rules changes)
to HK$567.4 million in FY2019. Such growth was as a result of
significant growth in total patient visits from 1.49 million in FY2018
to 1.61 million in FY2019.

To continue to retain and attract talents to join us, as well as
taking on bold initiatives to collaborate with Zheng He (please
refer to our announcement dated 9 November 2018), in FY2019,
we have issued various non-cash equity incentives and payments.
Such non-cash equity payments have led to substantial accounting
charges of approximately HK$37.5 million for FY2019, which
led to our reported net profit decreasing 47.9% from HK$37.5
million in FY2018 to HK$19.5 million in FY2019. However, after
eliminating such non-cash and non-recurring charges, our adjusted
EBITDA has increased 29.6% from HK$64.8 million in FY2018 to
HK$84.0 million in FY2019. With such resilient financial results, the
Board has recommended, subject to shareholders’ approval, a final
dividend of HK2.55 cents per share, taking our full year dividend
pay out to HK3.2 cents per share (FY2018 full year dividend: HK2.9

cents per share).
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OUR OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY
We foresee major growth for UMP in the provision of accessible,
affordable and trusted healthcare to everyone within Greater China,
with an initial focus in the Greater Bay Area.

1.

What is the significant social problem we are trying to
solve?

Can we develop a sustainable primary healthcare model
that will be a win-win-win for payers (i.e. governments and
insurance companies), providers (i.e. government hospitals
and clinics, private medical service providers) and patients in
China?

For all the positives of China’s economic growth in the past

few decades and the prosperity that such growth has brought to
the majority of the Chinese population, the current status of the
healthcare system in China is, by and large, an area in which

BMOIRBROEAHEHERE
& ?

BREEEL - BARENEEBEER
B SR ENNT (ATBAREFE
BRAR]) -~ REE (BIBFER R2F
REBERBRERE) RBETE=ZR
B ?

TEBERTFNLEERE R HE

Kﬁllf"EPI}\DTIJit%ﬁZ@J%E RACR
Bt - BEFH P EEREREZR %‘JL

3!57(%1 REAPTRE o EF!E’J

most of the Chinese population are not content with'. China’s RIEZBHEENER KB ﬂ\ﬁﬁ/\ifﬁﬁi
healthcare system is primarily based on specialists, is hospital KRR A ﬁﬁﬁ?’%z%‘fﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁ@
based and is centered on the curing of diseases, with a lack of MEE KPR BRARRERIEER
attention on preventive and community care, and with most TEERNBLERH —REERS

of the Chinese population believing that only hospitals have
qualified doctors to deliver general medical care.

While China’s GDP had grown at around 8.6% CAGR per
annum (2013-2017)?, healthcare expenditure in China has
grown at a much faster pace of around 13.5% CAGR per
annum (2013-2017)°. Exacerbated by an aging population and
increasing prevalence of non-communicable chronic diseases

such as diabetes and hypertension, the Chinese government

has declared a national urgency and strategy to reform its

FEEANEEAENESFEERY
BEF8.6%(2013F 220179 )2 (B
HEEREAIMNEEREER &
AEFERENAETFI3.5% (201384 F
20178 )3 BER AL E(L RIEFEL MK
EHRE (BlERRELRE ME) T
RENE LT FEBFCERERE

healthcare system into one that is primary healthcare facilities ABERANEBRREET - RUE
based, with General Practitioners (“GPs”, also known as family EBEEREAEDN  2RIEL ([2R 8

doctors in China) playing more significant roles in adopting a Bl ERETEBRARERE) EUEE
patient-centred approach to health and disease management’. %Im&)ﬁ&fﬁ ERPNEREERER
Primary care facilities primarily include government managed A  EEBRREFECLREBHBN

urban community health service centres (fL[&@ &4 AR 7 L)
and clinics which provide general outpatient care, chronic
disease management, immunisation services, health promotion
and family planning services.

https://www.nytimes.com/2018/09/30/business/china-health-care-doctors.
html?_ga=2.189484462.444171143.1562668523-456547796.1562668523

See section 3-1 “Gross Domestic Product” http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/
ndsj/2018/indexeh.htm

See section 22-19 “total healthcare expenditure”: http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/
ndsj/2018/indexeh.htm

See the PRC government news at http://www.nhc.gov.cn/qjjys/s7937/201904/
af2a67d86e8749a7b53ddfdde6f563e3.shtml
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The Chinese government has announced that it plans to
recruit, train and employ at least 3 family doctor for every
10,000 population across China by year 2020°. However,
there continues to be a lack of awareness by the general
population in China about the roles and functionalities that can
be performed by GPs, leading to Chinese patients generally
choosing to seek medical care from hospitals. Further, in the
cross-sectional survey study conducted by Liu®, out of the
565 participants who participate in the survey responding to
questions on their knowledge of GPs, although 67% of the
respondents believe that GPs should handle Common and
Frequently Occurring Diseases (“CFOD”), only 11.3% of the
respondents rated the GP’s technical capability in solving
CFOD as “good”, with 26.4% rated “poor” and 62.3% rated as
“do not know”. The general population’s lack of knowledge on
GPs is a significant hurdle to the healthcare reform in China,
yet at the same time, such significant hurdle also presents
unexplored market opportunity for UMP to offer solutions to
resolve such problem.

How are existing private market players in China trying
to solve such significant social problem?

The Chinese government has called for increasing investments
and participation from private capital in the healthcare
sector, with recent policies announcement encouraging
corporations and doctors to open up their own private clinics.
However, based on our own experience, although the Chinese
government promotes and encourages private enterprises
to establish private clinics’, there are generally insufficient
doctors in the private sector for the development of a type
of outpatient clinic network that is similar to what UMP has
established in Hong Kong and Macau.

http://www.gov.cn/zhengce/content/2018-01/24/content_5260073.htm

Liu, X. et al., 2018. Awareness of the role of general practitioners in primary
care among outpatient populations: Evidence from a cross-sectional survey of
tertiary hospitals in China. BMJ Open, pp. 1-6.

See VC Beat Research Primary Healthcare Investment Report at www.vcbeat.
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content_5260073.htm

Liu, X. et al., 2018. Awareness of the role of
general practitioners in primary care among
outpatient populations: Evidence from a cross-
sectional survey of tertiary hospitals in China.
BMJ Open, pp. 1-6.
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Further, the setting up and the maintaining of private clinics
in China could be costly. As an illustration, organisations
must first rent the premise for the proposed clinic before it
can commence applying for the clinic license and regulations
also require minimum operating area and minimum number of

clinical staff.

Due to the high cost basis for providing private clinical
services in China, private clinics generally charge a
comparatively higher average consultation price of around
RMB400-800, with some international clinics charging as
high as RMB1,500 to RMB2,000 for general consultations.
Such high price means that only the relatively affluent
can afford to pay for such services, excluding a significant
segment for customers who would be more willing to pay
around RMB100-200 for private outpatient consultations,
which is approximately the price range for general outpatient
consultations in public government facilities. As a result, many
private general outpatient clinics in China have continued to
suffer from a lack of patients, operating at losses and with no
clear path to profitability or having to work with partners who
have significant financial resources for collaboration.

Notwithstanding these entry barriers, there continues to be
significant investors’ interests in investing in private hospitals
with general outpatient services and private outpatient clinics
due to the general discontent, throughout China, with the long
queues for general outpatient services at government managed
hospitals. Investors’ interests have generally been focused
on peripherals such as IT systems that help private clinics
to access patients through mobile apps, health information
systems, pharmaceutical sales and delivery, and clinic chains
that have ambition to expand their network on a nation wide

basis.
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How is our approach different from others? GOLD™
programme and PPP clinics

While there has been significant interests on investment
in primary healthcare, we believe there is yet a solution
from private players that would offer a win-win-win
for payers, providers and patients. Currently, there are
significant investments in innovation on payers and patients
empowerment, however, there is relatively less focus and
investment made on the training and development of quality

providers.

As a physician-led healthcare group, we believe that in order
to develop and promote the primary healthcare industry, we
must first develop sufficient quality primary healthcare doctors
in China. We decided to break away from competition and
went “upstream” to train our own source of qualified doctors
to international standards under the General Practice Oriented
Learning and Development (“GOLD™”) programme?, with an
initial focus on the Greater Bay Area.

The accredited GOLD™ programme and PPP clinics

The GOLD™ programme sets out what we expect an
outpatient doctor should possess in terms of minimum clinical
knowledge and clinical consultation skills. Once the doctors
reach the standards as set out in the GOLD™ programme,
these doctors will then become certified doctors and shall
be entitled to receive outpatient cases arranged for them by
us. We have also applied for, and have been successful, in
obtaining the Royal College of General Practitioners (“RCGP”)
educational accreditation for the GOLD™ programme. As
stated on RCGP’s website?, the RCGP accredits educational
activities that are identifiable to health professionals as high
quality, and associated with the high professional standards
the RCGP embodies. The RCGP Accreditation Quality Mark
is an identifiable symbol of quality assurance that associates
educational activities with the professionalism, expertise
and commitment to the highest possible standards of general

practice.

for-education-providers.aspx
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8 www.goldgptraining.com 8 www.goldgptraining.com
https://www.rcgp.org.uk/learning/rcgp-educational-accreditation- https://www.rcgp.org.uk/learning/rcgp-
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In addition to training, to develop a large physical clinical network,
we proposed to work with various governments, particularly in
the Greater Bay Area, to launch various Public-Private Partnership
clinics (“PPP clinics”), a pioneer approach to building a sustainable
supply of doctors for business expansion'® and also helping the
Chinese government to train their doctors in parallel. These PPP
clinics, with our GOLD™ trained doctors, will be able to provide
clinical services to UMP’s members and customers. These PPP
clinics have been well received by various local governments. We
have also collaborated with these community health service centres
to seek international accreditation. As of the date of this publication,
three public community health service centres have been successful
in obtaining practice accreditations from WONCA''.

The scale and geographical reach in which the GOLD™ programme
and the PPP clinics have achieved since our last letter have been
positively praised by various regional governments in China'?. The
GOLD™ programme was first launched in February 2018, enrolling
11 doctors from the Pan Yu government, Guangzhou province. As
of the date of this publication, the GOLD™ programme has now
expanded to cover close to 200 doctors across key cities of the
Greater Bay Area, including Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Dongguan,
Zhongshan, Zhuhai, Foshan, as well as other cities such as Beijing,
Shanghai and Tianjin. The number of PPP clinics currently in
operation and under construction has also expanded from just one

site in 2018 to 25 sites as of the date of this publication.

FEASRAXACZIRAS EaGHETAEmana
§05n €8 & Wonca

SBHAESDUSSREFTFZE
R R R R (WONCA) REEEES

GmndOpuingofUMPthnmmlc |

10 See the related news published at https://www.goldgptraining.com/2-1
"' https://www.globalfamilydoctor.com/Resources/PracticeAccreditation.aspx

2 See the related news published at https://www.goldgptraining.com/2-1
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The GOLD™ programme and the PPP clinic expansion is only
at its beginning. Based on government data, the potential of
the GOLD™ programme and the PPP clinic expansion, in the
Greater Bay Area alone, could potentially mean that more than
10,000 doctors and more than 2,000 clinics could consider
adopting the PPP model.

Our initial focus will be on the Greater Bay Area, but we
have the ambition for expansion for the whole of China
We are living in exciting times for Southern China. Nowhere
is this seen more clearly than in the ambitious plans being
drawn up for the Greater Bay Area initiative, and its goal of
building a world-class city cluster across the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau region. By 2030, the region is expected to play a
leading role in advanced manufacturing, innovation, shipping,

trade and finance.

The proposed initiative is a testament to the region’s economic
development and significance. Last year, the combined GDP of
the 11 cities in the area reached US$1.4 trillion, or 12 percent
of the national PRC economy, even though it is home to only 5
percent of the country’s population.
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Within the Greater Bay Area, Hong Kong is generally viewed
as the international financial and trade centre, connecting all
the activities in the Greater Bay Area with the capital and trade

support that Hong Kong is well known for.

What the regional governments have further identified as a
growing industry that Hong Kong can contribute significant
to the region is healthcare. While there is expected to be
significant investment in the region across many industries,
the respective regional governments also realise that
healthcare and education are the two areas in which they need
significantly more input from the private sectors to provide

innovative ideas and solutions.

We believe that a PPP model of working with the respective
regional governments will present a great growth opportunity
for UMP, whereby we will be able to expand our influence
through the training of family doctors, expand our clinic
network geographical reach through collaboration with
government clinics, and subsequently, also developing,
together with insurance companies, new, innovative and
affordable PPP insurance products to facilitate the development

of private healthcare insurance in China.

With the upgrading of qualities of primary healthcare doctors
and development of a vast affordable and accessible PPP clinic
network, together with promotion of innovative insurance
products that make use of such resources, we believe that we
are now at the beginning of developing a win-win-win solution
for payers, providers and patients, thereby giving us significant
potential for sustainable growth.
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MARKET POTENTIALS

We believe that our growth comes from being a unique organisation,
with more than 30 years of experience and DNA, that serves at
the intersection focal point of technology, primary healthcare and

insurance, as set out below:

Technology
BHX

Health

1. Intersection between technology and healthcare

Advantages

Due to advances in technology, there have been a large
number of companies that have combined the use of
technology and healthcare to offer to consumers more
convenient access to quality healthcare. The majority of
these companies operate as a platform approach, signing up
thousands of doctors on the platform to provide health advice
and consultation services. Additional services also include
pharmaceutical home delivery, electronic medical records

maintenance and health advice.

Concerns

As all the doctors are platform doctors, it is not always possible
to assess and control the quality of doctors and service levels.
Further, as these platforms are generally specialists focused,
the doctors are not well trained to answer general health

enquiries.

Private offline

insurance healthcare
BERE services
ST ER

o {2 R 3%
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Intersection between technology and health insurance
Advantages

The combination of technology and insurance has made the
purchase of insurance more affordable and reachable to more
consumers, educating the market on the increasing importance
of health insurance. Consumers are able to check their benefits
and are able to obtain reimbursement easily after expenses are

incurred.

Concerns

Currently, health insurance continues to be functioning
more on an indemnity basis. Online health insurance
products generally compete on price and service level for
reimbursement. There is relatively little consumer loyalty since
insurance companies typically do not provide continuing

health maintenance services.

Intersection between health insurance and offline
clinics

Advantages

Health insurance companies/third party administrators that
provide additional health maintenance services beyond
expense reimbursement generally has higher customer loyalty,
leading to more recurring renewals for health insurance
policies. As insurance companies renew their policies, they
will likely want to continue to work closely with offline service
providers to better serve their customers’ healthcare needs.

Concerns

As health insurance companies face increasing claims expenses
for healthcare expenditure, especially for services providers
in China due to their high operating and investment costs (see
above), there is increasing pressure from health insurance
companies to control health expenses. However, as offline
clinics and service providers in China (and globally) face
increasing cost pressures, the scope for fee discussions become
increasingly limited, leading to potentially higher insurance
premium required from customers and hence may ultimately
affect insurance sales. Such fee for service model between
insurance companies and clinics have led to increasing
tensions for both insurance companies and service providers.
In China, although the market for health insurance has
increased substantially over the past few years, it is reported
health insurance companies continue to operate at losses due

to the mounting claims expenses from health service providers.
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UMP’S FAST EXPANDING PPP CLINIC NETWORK (WITH AN INITIAL FOCUS ON THE GREATER BAY AREA)
BEBBRERERNOPPPEAAMZ (UKXBERIAR

Tianjin

PP-

Zhaoqing
EE

Huizhou

=M

Foshan $ g
1L a Dongguan
Zhongshan Shenzhen
Bl 3]l
Zhuh |$ Hong Kong
Jiangmen ﬂ;‘ﬁa &8
L Macau
BT

Operating Planning in process
EEd MRS
Guangzhou (8 Clinics) Zhongshan (3 Clinics) Guangzhou (4 Clinics) Foshan (2 Clinics)
BN (87) oL (30) BN (48) L (2/)
¢ UMP Medical Centre (Panyu Qiaonan) ¢ UMP Medical Centre ¢ UMP Medical Centre (Yuexiu Baiyun) ¢ UMP Medical Centre

BEBABKEEBERREIES EAMARBEEUFAEINRE (Foshan Changfeng)

EABABBEEMULRETER

(Zhongshan Sanxiang Agile)
EEMABRBEETIL=BRELTIEE
¢ UMP Medical Centre (Panyu Luopu) ¢ UMP Medical Centre (Yuexiu Guangta)

EEBMABBREERRHLEER

UMP Medical Centre (Panyu Zhongcun)
BEBMABEEEERENTEE

UMP Medical Centre (Panyu Nancun)
ERBAEBREERENIER

UMP Medical Centre (Haizhu Ruibao)
EABABEERSRREIES

UMP Medical Centre (Haizhu Xlngang)
BEEBARBEMERNBIES

UMP Medical Centre (Haizhu Nanzhou)
EABABKERSRANTIES

UMP Medical Centre
(Haizhu Jiangnan Middle)
ERBABEBEREERIATIES

* UMP Medical Centre
(Zhongshan Sanxiang Yagang)
ERBABBEETL=BBEIER

* UMP Medical Centre
(Zhongshan Sanxiang Quanyan)
EABARGEET L=BRRIES

Zhuhai (1 Clinic)
BHgm (1/)

¢ UMP Medical Centre (Zhuhai Gongbei)
AEEBAREEE
KSR RERETHES

Tianjin (1 Clinic)
REM (1/)

¢ UMP Medical Centre (Tianjin Huayuan)
EEMARGEBRBENIHE

Dongguan (1 Clinic)
= (1H)

e UMP Medical Centre (Dongguan Shilong)
ERBABBEERSARIEER

ERABMABBEREAUSAETIESE

¢ UMP Medical Centre (Yuexiu Zhuguang)
ERAMARBRBEUFRAIER

* UMP Medical Centre
(Guangzhou First People’s Hospital GP Clinic)
ERBMABBEREAT 2N IEE

Dongguan (4 Clinics)
= (48)

¢ UMP Medical Centre (Dongguan Liaobu)
ERABABEEEARERS IR

¢ UMP Medical Centre (Dongguan Chang’an)
EEMABBEIRZERL TR

¢ UMP Medical Centre (Dongguan Changping)
ERMABBRAREE T IR

¢ UMP Medical Centre (Dongguan Dalang)
BABMABEREARSAMIEE

¢ UMP Medical Centre
(Foshan Lunjiao)

ERBABBEERLRBIEE

Shenzhen (1 Clinic)
RN (179)

¢ UMP Medical Centre
(Shenzhen Maillen Health Centre)
EEBEBRBER
ARRRREBETEE
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PHOTOS OF SELECTED PPP CLINICS AFTER RENOVATION
BREPPPR TS EZNMER

-

UMP Medical Centre UMP Medical Centre UMP Medical Centre
(Panyu Qiaonan) (Tianjin Huayuan) (Zhongshan Sanxiang Agile)
ERBCBBEEEBRE IR ERBEBBEBERRENIAFE ERABAEBREEPLUCABRELIEE

UMP Medical Centre UMP Medical Centre UMP Medical Centre

(Panyu Nancun) (Dongguan Shilong) (Haizhu Jiangnan Zhong)
ERMCBRAEERANIEE ERBMOBBRERTOEIAFE ERBMCBRERESRIETIAES

UMP Medical Centre UMP Medical Centre UMP Medical Centre
(Haizhu Xingang) (Zhuhai Gongbei) (Haizhu Nanzhou)
EEBOCBRBEEERTEIEE EABCEBEEEREHLIRESRETHER EABABKEESHRENIEE
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UMP - a unique combination of technology, affordable
PPP primary care and insurance

Through the GOLD™ programme and PPP clinics, UMP is
able to partner up with government clinics within the Greater
Bay Area and nationally to offer accessible and affordable
healthcare services. Further, as UMP knows the capabilities of
these trained doctors, UMP is able to offer pricing for services
that would allow insurance companies to price their policies
competitively to a larger population. UMP will also start
extending telemedicine services, remote health monitoring
and electronic medical records in China, thereby facilitating
the on-going health management and cost monitoring for the

policy holders of insurance companies.

For non-critical enquiries, UMP shall be able to offer UMP
trained doctors telemedicine services to its customers,
reducing unnecessary physical admission to clinics. For more
serious conditions, UMP will be able to offer offline clinical
access at convenient locations through a fast expanding
PPP clinic network (with an initial focus on the Greater Bay
Area). We believe that we will become a great partner to
insurance companies, collaborating with them to launch new,
competitively priced outpatient insurance products, and also
helping them to reduce unnecessary clinical costs, while at
the same time, through our innovative PPP offline and online
model, help government clinics and government doctors
to receive new sources of funding from health insurance
payments. This unique combination of online and offline
services, based on the fundamental principles of primary
healthcare, would mean that providers, payers and patients

would all benefit from a continuation of managed care.
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NEW PHASE OF COMMUNICATION

Our 30 years of experience in Hong Kong and Macau gives us
confidence that UMP is on the right path for sustainable and
profitable growth, capturing the untapped market of managed care
for the Chinese population based on the primary healthcare model
instead of the current specialist focused model. Going forward, the
Group will also be improving on our investor communications by
providing more timely information and update on our revamped
website. UMP looks forward to sharing exciting development in
Hong Kong, Macau and in the Greater Bay Area with shareholders
and stakeholders.

BB ERE R
BBEETEERREERMBABOERE

EREREEBRIENRE  RUMES
B MORPITE RM30F K8 - (R FIHEE ‘éﬁ’a\
BEBEARREAFRENTEEEER
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REELE RERK NEETKEBEN
ER QTR EREE REMEHNER A
HERMEREENEAE - éﬁé%fiﬂﬂﬁ,\
BEREFBHESZERMAESTE  RFAMAE
BEARENER -

._ k:[ 4 o

APPRECIATION

UMP has a stable and growing business in Hong Kong and Macau,
and is heading for an exciting development in the Greater China
that will be sustainable and scalable with enduring competitive
advantages. We are proud of a visionary, passionate, resilient,
competent and stable management team. We are attracting more
and more experienced professionals both from Hong Kong and
China joining our expanding workforce. In closing, | would like to
extend my heartfelt thanks to our shareholders for their trust, our
Board members for their guidance, and our employees for their
continued support.

Sun Yiu Kwong

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmR DT

OUR BUSINESS RMRER
UMP’s business scope consists of the following business lines: BMEBBNEBREBBIEATEBLR

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution
Services

UMP provides corporate healthcare solutions through the
design and administration of tailored healthcare benefits
plans for its Contract Customers. UMP aims to provide
convenient, reliable, coordinated, comprehensive and
affordable healthcare services through the well-established and
multi-specialties UMP Network. As at 30 June 2019, the UMP
Network comprises more than 600 points of services located

across Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group’s Contract Customers comprise (i) insurance
companies, which enter into contracts with the Group for
healthcare services for their policyholders or employees
of their policyholders and (ii) corporations, which enter
into contracts with the Group for healthcare services for
their employees and/or their dependants. When designing
healthcare benefits plans, the Group collaborates closely with
the Contract Customers and designs and refines corporate
healthcare benefits plans, with each plan tailored to each
customer’s needs based on factors such as industry or
occupational health-related concerns, scope of healthcare
benefits desired, employee demographic as well as their
budget.

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

UMP provides Medical, Dental and Auxiliary Services to
Self-paid Patients. For medical services, UMP provides (i)
general practice services, which serves as the first point of
contact for the patients and (ii) specialist services covering
more than 18 different specialties. For Dental Services, UMP
provides both primary dental care and secondary dental care
such as dental implants. For Auxiliary Services, UMP provides
services such as medical imaging and laboratory services,

physiotherapy and vision care.
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PRC Healthcare Business

Our PRC Healthcare Business currently consists of (i) health
check-up business, (ii) corporate healthcare solutions business,
(iii) within the clinics we own and operate, revenue from
selected outpatient services such as family medicine and
paediatric services and (iv) provision of professional training
to doctors and nurses under our GOLD™ training programme.
As our corporate healthcare solutions business is still at a
development stage, the revenue and operating profit for
this business segment is primarily contributed by our health
check-up business. Our current focus is on the development of
our PRC Healthcare Business in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou,
Shenzhen and the Greater Bay Area together with our strategic
partners, like HAML and other local reputable healthcare
partners.

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution
Services

Revenue for this business line has increased 9.0% from
HK$224.7 million (restated) to HK$245.0 million (before
intersegment elimination) due to a general increase in patient
visits and average spending per visit, while our operating profit
(operating profit before tax and before non-recurring items)
has increased approximately 11.6% from HK$35.7 million
to HK$39.8 million. The full year operating profit margin of
this segment is normalised back to the historical levels as
compared to the interim results due to the timing mismatch
between the expected increase in the pricing of our contracts
with our corporate customers and insurance partners is

adjusted.

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services
Revenue for this business line has increased 35.4% from
HK$268.9 million to HK$364.1 million (before intersegment
elimination) due to a general increase in patient visits, while
our operating profit (operating profit before tax and before
non- recurring items) has increased 77.3% from HK$26.0
million to HK$46.1 million. The increase in revenue and
operating profit is in part due to the full year recognition of
operating profits from previously acquired laboratory and
medical imaging businesses and the expansion of medical and
auxiliary services through new acquisitions of business during
FY2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRC Healthcare Business

Revenue for this business line has slightly decreased 4.7%
from HK$56.6 million to HK$53.9 million (before intersegment
elimination) primarily due to the decrease in the average
spending per check-up, while our operating loss (operating
loss before tax and before non-recurring items) has decreased
39.6% from HK$6.2 million to HK$3.7 million. The decrease
in operating loss was primarily attributable to the effective
control of the administration costs in our PRC offices.

The following table sets out the revenue and operating profit
for our business lines for FY2019 and FY2018 for comparison:

Revenue by business lines

BEEEFWE DM

PEREER
RELEBEHBABS6.68E8E T
BEJ4.7%E53.98 &8 T (9 S H
Al) - DEZHERRBREOBRERIKE
B MB IR EE BB (BRBATRE
EEEMIEENCEEE) Mo 2B 8%
TORA39.6%E3.7EEB T o (K2 EIE
WP EERBNEMBBUE S+ B
WREHITBAA ©

T X & 5 K P17 201981 B F B 22018
B B4 2 A ZE TS AR U R 45 2 ) DA 4t
Lt

BREXRZEDIHEA

Year ended 30 June

BZ6A30ALFE
2019 2018 Increase/
20194 20184 (decrease)
HK$’000 HK$’000 bl 1
FERT FHET CRL)
(restated)
(&)
Hong Kong & Macau Corporate & /& MEFPIREBE
Healthcare Solution Services REEERFR T RIRTE 245,016 224,705 9.0%
Hong Kong & Macau Clinical R ORMERK B R
Healthcare Services R AR5 364,129 268,870 35.4%
PRC Healthcare Business FRRBEER 53,920 56,567 (4.7%)
Total before elimination of KRB HEEIKHEA
inter-business lines sales &5t 663,065 550,142 20.5%
Reconciliation: FHET -
Elimination of inter-business lines % 7% 4% [ §5 & & §5
sales (95,688) (86,701)
TOTAL =1 567,377 463,441 22.4%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWE DM

Operating profit by business lines

BEBRE D NWEEFH

Year ended 30 June

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate

Healthcare Solution Services

Operating profit margin

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical

Healthcare Services
Operating profit margin
PRC Healthcare Business
Operating profit margin

(1) Business lines revenue presented above are before intersegment sales

elimination.

(2)  Operating profit by business lines represent operating profit before

FE MR EBE
REEARIR T SRR TS

AL E

&8 N R P R K B &
R 2 IR 5

AL E

B R R X7

EEFEE

tax for each business line and excluding non-recurring items.
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46,144 26,028 77.3%
12.7% 9.7%
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(6.9%) (10.9%)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEWS
FY2019 compared to FY2018

Revenue

During FY2019, we primarily generated revenue from (i) the
provision of corporate healthcare solutions to Contract Customers
in Hong Kong and Macau, (ii) the provision of clinical healthcare
services to Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and Macau and (iii) the
provision of healthcare services in the PRC.

Total consolidated revenue increased by 22.4% from HK$463.4
million (restated) in FY2018 to HK$567.4 million in FY2019,
primarily due to an increase in revenue from HK$406.9 million
(restated) to HK$513.5 million from the provision of corporate
healthcare solution services to Contract Customers and provision of
clinical healthcare services to Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and

Macau.

Provision of corporate healthcare solution services to Contract
Customers in Hong Kong and Macau

Revenue from the provision of corporate healthcare solution services
to Contract Customers in Hong Kong and Macau increased 9.6%
from HK$222.4 million (restated) in FY2018 to HK$243.7 million in
FY2019.

e Medical. Revenue generated from the provision of Medical
Services to Contract Customers increased by 8.5% from
HK$205.4 million (restated) for FY2018 to HK$222.9 million
for FY2019, primarily due to an increase in the average price
per patient visit in FY2019 as well as the increase in the
number of visits from the patients seeking Medical Services.

. Dental. Revenue generated from the provision of Dental
Services to Contract Customers increased by 22.4% from
HK$17.0 million for FY2018 to HK$20.8 million in FY2019,
primarily due to an increase in the average price per patient
visit in FY2019 as well as the increase in the number of visits
from the patients seeking Dental Services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWE DM

Provision of clinical healthcare services in Hong Kong and Macau

. Medical. Revenue generated from the provision of Medical
Services to Self-paid Patients increased by 63.6% from
HK$128.4 million for FY2018 to HK$210.0 million for FY2019,
primarily due to an increase in the patient visits.

. Dental. Revenue generated from the provision of Dental
Services to Self-paid Patients increased by 6.6% from HK$56.1
million for FY2018 to HK$59.8 million for FY2019, primarily
due to an increase in the patient visits in FY2019.

PRC Healthcare Business

Revenue contribution from the PRC Healthcare Business decreased
slightly by 4.8% from HK$56.6 million in FY2018 to HK$53.9
million in FY2019, primarily due to the depreciation of RMB. Should
the revenue be denominated in local currency (RMB), it increased
by 2.1% from RMB46.6 million for FY2018 to RMB47.6 million for
FY2019.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains primarily comprise administrative
support fees (including fees derived from providing administrative
support to Affiliated Doctors, Affiliated Dentists and Affiliated
Auxiliary Services Providers), interest income from held-to-maturity
investments, financial assets at amortised cost, available-for-sale
investments or debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and bank savings, fair value on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, and gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and fixed assets.

Other income and gains increased by 119.0% from HK$11.6 million
in FY2018 to HK$25.4 million in FY2019. The significant increase
was primarily due to the gain on disposal of a subsidiary recognised
in September 2018, the disposed subsidiary was the beneficial
owner of the investment properties previously owned by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Professional Services Expenses

Professional services expenses primarily comprise fees paid to
Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary Services Providers for Medical
Services, Dental Services and Auxiliary Services rendered within the
UMP Network, as well as fees paid to third party laboratories and
medical imaging centres for services rendered to the Group.

Professional services expenses increased by 22.6% from HK$187.1
million (restated) for FY2018 to HK$229.3 million for FY2019,
primarily due to the dual effect of an increase in the cost of services
rendered by doctors, dentists and other professionals; and the new
business acquisitions and service diversification during the year.
Such increment percentage is generally in line with the increase in

the Group’s consolidated revenue in FY2019.

Employee Benefit Expense

Employee benefit expense primarily comprise salaries and related
costs, equity-settled share-based payment expense, as well as
pension scheme contributions for nurses and administrative
personnel, and also include those of the Directors and key
management personnel.

Employee benefit expense increased by 18.5% from HK$121.4
million for FY2018 to HK$143.8 million for FY2019. Employee
benefit expense increased primarily due to general increase in
staff costs, recognition of staff expenses upon the new business
acquisitions (please refer to “Business Combinations” in Note 38 to
the Consolidated financial statements for details) and the increase in
non-cash equity-settled share-based payment expense upon the new
issues of Post-IPO share options during the year.

Property Rental and Related Expenses

Property rental and related expenses increased by 27.4% from
HK$42.7 million for FY2018 to HK$54.4 million for FY2019,
primarily due to the recognition of rental expenses upon the new
business acquisitions (please refer to “Business Combinations” in
Note 38 to the Consolidated financial statements for details) and the
increase in rent for those existing premises for which leases were
renewed. Rental expenses as a percentage to revenue has remained
stable in the range of 9.2% to 9.6% over FY2018 and FY2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWE DM

Cost of Inventories Consumed

Cost of inventories consumed increased by 29.1% from HK$23.7
million for FY2018 to HK$30.6 million for FY2019, primarily due to
an increase in the amount of drugs and other medical consumables
consumed for the provision of clinical healthcare services to
Self-paid Patients upon the new business acquisitions (please refer
to “Business Combinations” in Note 38 to the Consolidated financial
statements for details). Cost of inventories consumed as a percentage
to revenue from the provision of clinical healthcare services has
remained stable in the range of 9.5% to 9.9% over FY2018 and
FY2019.

Other Expenses, Net

Other expenses, net primarily comprise provision of impairment
loss, net made to the Group’s amount due from/to associated
companies, warrants expenses and general overhead expenses such
as utilities, operation and other administrative expenses such as
audit fees, legal fees, repair and maintenance expenses incurred
with respect to the Group’s offices and medical equipment, printing
expenses and bank charges.

Other expenses, net, increased by 134.9% from HK$34.1 million
in FY2018 to HK$80.1 million in FY2019, the material increase
is primarily attributable to the non-cash expense in connection
with the issuance of an aggregate of 110,411,000 Warrants
and the vesting of 36,803,667 Warrants of the Company to the
relevant Zheng He Parties on 6 December 2018 (Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 27 July 2018, 30 August
2018 and 6 December 2018 and the circular of the Company dated
29 October 2018 (the “Circular”) for further details) and the increase
in legal and professional fees paid for the various new business
acquisitions during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmR DT

Summary of operational data for FY2019 with comparative figures 20198/ N ERE &SR E2018 BFER

for FY2018: LR BIEME ¢
Revenue by operating segment BRREIHEDHBA

Year ended 30 June

BZ6H30BLEE
2019 2018 Increase
20194 20184 N
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(restated)
(e&:75)
Provision of corporate healthcare REGXBERRERR
solution services CES: TS 246,303 224,317 9.8%
Medical BE 225,483 207,331 8.8%
Dental o 20,820 16,986 22.6%
Provision of clinical healthcare services 12 {it g ;R & B 1R 2 IR 1§ 321,074 239,124 34.3%
Medical BB 261,258 182,974 42.8%
Dental o 59,816 56,150 6.5%
TOTAL Sl 567,377 463,441 22.4%
Number of visits by operating segment REE I HEDHNZRE
Year ended 30 June
BZ6A30RLEE
2019 2018 Increase
20195 20184 0
Provision of corporate healthcare REGEBBRRBHER
solution services TR 1,315,686 1,295,697 1.5%
Medical BE 1,289,200 1,272,803 1.3%
Dental R 26,486 22,894 15.7%
Provision of clinical healthcare services E{H{EREEREZRK 296,842 192,343 54.3%
Medical BE 253,245 152,159 66.4%
Dental 7F # 43,597 40,184 8.5%
TOTAL &t 1,612,528 1,488,040 8.4%

201945 » BAE

BEEAR AT 27



28

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWE DM

KEY FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost/Held-to-maturity
Investments

Financial assets at amortised cost primarily represent the marketable
corporate bonds issued by listed corporations with fixed interest
rates from 4.25% to 8.5% per annum. The marketable debt
securities which will mature within one year and more than one year
are classified as current assets and non-current assets, respectively.
The Group receives related interest payments semi-annually and

annually.

As at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018, the Group’s financial assets
at amortised cost/held-to-maturity investments amounted to HK$60.7
million (of which HK$14.0 million is classified as current assets and
HK$46.7 million is classified as non-current assets) and HK$69.5
million (of which HK$10.9 million is classified as current assets and

HK$58.6 million is classified as non-current assets), respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill primarily represents the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible assets primarily represent the intangible assets
acquired in business combinations. Cost of that intangible assets is

its fair value at the acquisition date.

As at 30 June 2019 the Group’s goodwill and other intangible assets
amounted to HK$163.7 million and HK$79.4 million, respectively
while as at 30 June 2018, the Group’s goodwill and other
intangible assets amounted to HK$58.2 million and HK$9.4 million,
respectively (restated). The increase in goodwill and other intangible
assets was primarily due to the new business acquisitions (please
refer to “Business Combinations” in Note 38 to the Consolidated
financial statements for details) during FY2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables primarily comprise receivables due from Contract
Customers under fee for service plans and capitation plans. Most
Self-paid Patients of Medical and Dental practices settle in cash,
although payments made by credit card will be classified as trade
receivables until they are settled (typically within two to three days).
Contract Customers typically settle payments within one to two
months of the provision of services to their members. The Group
allows an average credit period of 30 to 60 days to its Contract
Customers. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

As at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018, the Group's trade receivables
amounted to HK$105.0 million and HK$78.8 million, respectively.
The Group managed to comply with its credit period policy over
the years and the bad debt ratio has been maintaining at a very low
level for less than 0.6%.

Trade Payables

Trade payables primarily comprise professional fees accrued
and owing to Affiliated Doctors and amounts owing to suppliers
of medical equipment and consumables. Trade payables are
non-interest-bearing and are normally settled within one to three
months.

The Group’s trade payables amounted to HK$49.6 million
and HK$39.2 million, as at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018,
respectively. The increase was generally in line with the increase in
professional services expenses and cost of inventories consumed in
FY2019.

Net Change in Financial Position

The Group’s net assets amounted to HK$686.0 million and
HK$634.4 million as at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018,
respectively. The increase was primarily due to the net profit for
FY2019 amounted to HK$12.8 million attributable to the owners of
the Company after deducting HK$37.5 million of Warrant expenses
which in turn enlarged the reserves, partly offset by the distribution
of dividends and the purchase of shares under the Share Award

Scheme.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWE DM

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has historically funded its operations primarily by cash
generated from operating activities. Upon the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange, the Group intended to satisfy
its liquidity requirements using a combination of cash generated
from operating activities, net proceeds from the Global Offering
and the net considerations received from the series of transactions.
As of 30 June 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$207.6 million.

As of the date of this report, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings or outstanding bank loans and did not enter into any

bank loan facilities.

GEARING RATIO
As at 30 June 2019, the Group had no net debt. The Group’s gearing

ratio was not applicable as at 30 June 2019.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Issue of unlisted warrants

On 24 October 2018, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Zheng He and
Law Siu Wah, Eddie (“Mr. Law”), the ultimate beneficial owner
and ultimate controller of Zheng He. Mr. Law has a longstanding
background in the investment banking industry, including
employment as Managing Director of Goldman Sachs’ Fixed
Income, Currency & Commodities Division, and he is a well-known
active investor in the Hong Kong capital markets. Mr. Law and
the companies he controls or manages have made a number of
pre-IPO investments in companies which are proposed to become
listed, investments in companies who have achieved listing, and
investments in private companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Under the Subscription Agreement, the Company conditionally
agreed to issue to Zheng He (or, alternatively, to up to three other
companies under the control of Zheng He Parties that are nominated
by Zheng He) a total of 110,411,000 unlisted warrants at nil issue
price. Each warrant carries the right to subscribe to one fully-paid
Share within 36 months from the end of a 6 month lock-up period
starting on the date the warrant is vested, at the initial subscription
price of HK$2.06 per share (subject to adjustment). The Subscription
Agreement was approved by the Shareholders in an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 15 November 2018. The
completion of the subscription took place on 6 December 2018,
on which the 110,411,000 warrants were issued to Humble Guard
Limited, Colour Sino Limited and Claymore Global Limited, which
were the three Zheng He Parties nominated by Zheng He. Each of
Humble Guard Limited, Colour Sino Limited and Claymore Global
Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Law Siu Wah Eddie.

Further details regarding the issue of unlisted warrants are set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 27 July 2018, 30 August
2018, and 6 December 2018, and in the Company’s circular dated
29 October 2018. During the year ended 30 June 2019, 36,803,667
unlisted warrants were vested and no unlisted warrant was exercised
to subscribe for Shares of the Company. As at the date of this report,
73,607,333 unlisted warrants remained unvested. If the warrants are
fully exercised, the total gross funds and net funds expected to be
raised by the Company are HK$227.4 million and HK$226.4 million
respectively. The Company currently intends to use the net proceeds
from the exercise of the warrants as working capital of the Group
and for future investment pursuant to the investment objectives of
the Company.

Save for the above, there has been no change in the capital structure
of the Company during the year ended 30 June 2019. The capital of
the Company comprises ordinary shares and other reserves.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During FY2019, the Group’s material acquisitions primarily were
the acquisitions of (i) 55% equity interest in a medical centre
which operates general practice medical services (including general
consultation and vaccination services) for a consideration of
HK$15.1 million, (ii) 70% equity interest in a group of companies
which are engaging in the provision of medical physiotherapy
services, and (iii) 60% equity interest in SkinCentral which is
engaging in the provision of dermatological services, from respective
independent third parties in accordance with the Group’s expansion
plan to increase the scope of its medical services provided to its
members and patients. Further details are set out in Note 38 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements under the heading of “Business
Combinations” in this report.

The Group completed the transaction of disposing its entire equity
interest in Excellent City Limited in September 2018. The provisional
sales and purchase agreement was formed in June 2018 and
appropriate disclosure was made in last year.

Save as aforesaid, there was no material acquisitions or disposal of
subsidiaries undertaken by the Group during FY2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from strengthening the Group’s current business and the future
plans as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have any
specific future plan for material investments or capital assets as of 30
June 2019.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure during the year was primarily related
to deposits paid for and expenditures on additions of property,
plant and equipment for the Group’s Medical, Dental and
Auxiliary Services centres. For FY2019, the Group incurred capital
expenditure in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$19.3
million (FY2018: HK$129.4 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDEBTEDNESS
Contingent Liabilities
As at 30 June 2019, the Group did not have any material off-balance

sheet arrangements.

Capital Commitment
As at 30 June 2019, the Group did not have any material capital

commitment.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Foreign Currency Risk

During the reporting period, the Group undertook certain
transactions in foreign currencies, which exposed the Group to
foreign currency risk, primarily relating to the Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars.

The Group did not use any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates and will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure when the need arises.

Credit Risk
The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying

amounts of these instruments.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 30 June 2019, the Group has pledged certain deposits with

an aggregate carrying amount of HK$1.4 million (30 June 2018:
HK$1.4 million) in connection with a surety bond issued by a
bank in favour of respective independent third parties for potential
damages of Dental equipment and potential disruption of Medical
Services, and a bank guarantee issued by a bank in favour of a
landlord for leasing of a medical centre of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWE DM

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 30 June 2019, the Group had a total of 456 full-time

employees (FY2018: 461 full-time employees). For FY2019, the
staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries
and other benefits) was approximately HK$143.8 million (FY2018:
HK$121.4 million).

The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are
competitive and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis, together with reference to the profitability of the
Group, prevailing remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and
market conditions within the general framework of the Group’s

remuneration system.

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, where eligible participants are
entitled to subscribe for the ordinary shares in the Company for
their past and potential contribution to the growth of the Group.
As at 30 June 2019, 27,008,000 options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme remained outstanding and 3,200,000 share options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme have been exercised
during FY2019. As at 30 June 2019, 19,270,000 options remained
outstanding under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and 1,213,000
share options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme have been
exercised during the FY2019.

In addition, the Company has also adopted the Share Award Scheme
on 30 June 2016 to provide an incentive and reward to selected
participants for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group. During the year, 5,910,000 awarded shares have been
granted under the Share Award Scheme. A total of 280,000 awarded
shares have lapsed and 4,465,000 awarded shares have been vested
(2018: Nil) during the year ended 30 June 2019.

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, according
to the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and
the time devoted to the Group, the Company’s operating results and
comparable market statistics.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINAL DIVIDEND
The directors proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK2.55

cents per Share for FY2019 (FY2018: HK2.35 cents) and proposes
that Shareholders be given the option to receive the proposed
2019 final dividend of HK2.55 cents per Share in new Shares in
lieu of cash (the “Scrip Dividend Option”). The Scrip Dividend
Option is subject to the approval of Shareholders at the forthcoming
2019 AGM and the Stock Exchange granting the listing of and
permission to deal in the new Shares to be issued pursuant thereto.
The proposed 2019 final dividend is expected to be distributed on
Wednesday, 22 January 2020 to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company on Friday, 6
December 2019. A circular containing details of the Scrip Dividend
Option will be despatched together with a form of election for scrip
dividend in December 2019.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. SUN Yiu Kwong (###8°I), aged 76, is a founding member of
the Group and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He was appointed as a Director on 23 April 2015 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 29 August 2015. He is
primarily responsible for the overall formulation, supervision and
guidance of business strategies, planning and development of the
Group. He is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Dr. Sun is also a director of various companies of the

Group.

With over 45 years of experience in family medicine practice,
Dr. Sun is a Founder Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Family
Physicians. He is a Clinical Associate Professor (honorary) in Faculty
of Medicine, Jockey Club School of Public Health and Primary Care,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Honorary Clinical
Assistant Professor in Department of Family Medicine and Primary
Care, The University of Hong Kong. Dr. Sun is one of the pioneer
Hong Kong doctors to participate in the healthcare development
and training of medical professionals in the PRC. With his wealth of
experience in the PRC, in particular his involvement and exposure
in the training programmes of various institutions, he plays a leading
role in the strategic planning and development of the Group’s
healthcare business in the PRC.

Dr. Sun is the father of Dr. Michael Sun and the father-in-law of
Mr. Patrick Tsang, both of whom are executive Directors. He is the
sole shareholder and a director of East Majestic Group Limited. He is

also the sole shareholder and director of EM Team Limited.

He obtained a Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of Surgery from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1967 and became a Fellow of
the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians in September 1987 and
a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in the specialty
of Family Medicine in December 1993. He was also registered as a

specialist in Family Medicine in March 1998.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. KWOK Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (8= &), aged 51, is the
Managing Director of the Company. She was appointed as a Director
on 5 November 2014 and re-designated as an executive Director
on 29 August 2015. She is responsible for the overall management
and business development of the Group and initiating and
leading business projects in collaboration with medical insurance
companies and corporate customers. Ms. Kwok is also responsible
for developing the management team with a view to enhancing
operational efficiency and expanding the Group’s business
activities. Ms. Kwok is one of the key members in establishing
the administration arm of the Group. She has over 25 years of
experience in health schemes management and providers network
administration to support the healthcare plan’s implementation in
the Group’s network. She is actively involved in developing the
infrastructure of the Group such as information technology platforms
and medical network facilities. In the recent years, Ms. Kwok is also
leading and managing the corporate development, the merger and
acquisition investments, and the business expansion in the mainland
China for the Group. Ms. Kwok is also a director of various
companies of the Group.

Ms. Kwok obtained a Bachelor of Arts in International Business
Studies (Hons) from the City University of Hong Kong in November
1991 and obtained a Bachelor of Laws from Peking University in
July 1996. She also obtained a Master of Science in Management
(Health Services Management) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2003.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERE

Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick (& % 2), aged 48, was appointed as
a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang is primarily responsible
for providing strategic directions on co-operations with different
business stakeholders in China and globally. He is the Chief
Executive Officer and a director of CTFE. He is also a director of
Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
CTFE and a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Tsang has
over 24 years of international capital markets experience, and was
previously managing director, head of Asia Fixed Income Capital
Markets at Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch, where he worked
from 2003 to 2012.

Mr. Tsang is an executive director of Melbourne Enterprises Limited
(stock code: 158) and a non-executive director of Integrated Waste
Solutions Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 923), Greenheart
Group Limited (stock code: 94), i-Cable Communications Limited
(stock code: 1097) and SJM Holdings Limited (stock code: 880), all
being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tsang is the son-in-law of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and an executive Director
and the brother-in-law of Dr. Michael Sun, an executive Director.

Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from Columbia
College of Columbia University in New York, USA in May 1994.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. SUN Man Kin, Michael (23 2), aged 41, was appointed as
a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is a specialist in Radiology and is
responsible for expanding the global imaging business of the Group
as well as building the physician networks. Dr. Sun has over 14
years of experience in medicine and has been the Chief Radiologist
of the Group since July 2012. He is currently a radiologist, a director
and a shareholder of ProCare Medical Imaging and Laboratory
Centre Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. He
is also a consultant radiologist of the Group and a director of various

members of the Group.

Dr. Sun is the son of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and executive Director and the
brother-in-law of Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, an executive Director.
He is also a director of East Majestic Group Limited.

Dr. Sun obtained a Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of Surgery from
the University of Hong Kong in December 2002. He became a
Fellow of the Royal College of Radiologist in October 2007 and a
Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Radiologists in October 2010.
He also became a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in
the specialty of Radiology in June 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERE

Mr. LEE Kar Chung, Felix (ZZRH), aged 38, was appointed as
a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is responsible for corporate
development, international operations and merger and acquisitions
for the Group. Mr. Lee joined the Group as director, corporate
development and strategy of the Group in September 2014. He is
currently a Senior Vice President of CTFE with responsibilities in
making investments in the healthcare sector in Asia and globally and
a director of Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of CTFE, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Lee is also an independent non-executive director of CR Medical
(stock code: 1515), a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Lee is also a director of various companies of the Group. He
has over 14 years of experience in law and finance. He was an
associate with the law firm Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer before
he left in February 2008 to join UBS AG, Hong Kong branch as an
analyst in the investment banking department until January 2009. He
then joined the investment banking department of Deutsche Bank
AG, Hong Kong branch and last held the position of director in the
Corporate Advisory Group, where he worked from January 2009 to
August 2014.

Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Laws from the London School of
Economics and Political Sciences and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws from the University of Hong Kong in July 2003 and June 2004,
respectively. He is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
September 2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts
of England and Wales since February 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. LEE Pak Cheung, Patrick (%), aged 54, was appointed as
an executive director on 28 February 2018. He joined the Group
in 2003. He was appointed as the Dental Director for the Group
since 2014, primarily responsible for supervising the dental practice
of the Group and advising on the continuing training of dental
professionals and development of clinical and professional services.
Dr. Patrick Lee is one of the major contributors in the Group’s dental
centre chain, he keeps an active practice to nurture and inspire
his dental colleagues. Dr. Patrick Lee also performs a key role in
business development and quality assurance in the Group’s dental
centre chain. Dr. Patrick Lee obtained a Bachelor of Dental Surgery
from the University of Hong Kong in 1988. He became a member of
the faculty of general dental practitioners (UK) of the Royal College
of Surgeons of England in 1995 and a member in general dental
surgery of the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh in 1997.
In 1999, he became a Fellow of the Royal Australasian College of
Dental Surgeons. In 2007, he was granted a Diploma of Membership
in General Dentistry by the College of Dental Surgeons of Hong
Kong. Dr. Patrick Lee currently also serves as dental consultant for
the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Luen-Wai, John Bss jp (ZEHE), aged 70, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is the chairman of Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is an independent
non-executive director of New World Development Company
Limited (stock code: 17), an associate of CTFE. Mr. Lee is also the
managing director and chief executive officer of Lippo Limited
(stock code: 226), an executive director and the chief executive
officer of both Lippo China Resources Limited (stock code: 156) and
Hongkong Chinese Limited (stock code: 655), all being companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He resigned as a
non-executive non-independent chairman of Healthway Medical
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Catalist Board of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited with effect from
26 April 2019 and also resigned as an independent non-executive
director of New World China Land Limited (former stock code: 917),
an associate of CTFE, with effect from 1 September 2016 after the
listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange had been withdrawn on 4
August 2016 following its privatisation.

Mr. Lee is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, the Association of Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts. He was a partner
of Pricewaterhouse (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers) in
Hong Kong and has extensive experience in corporate finance and
capital markets. Mr. Lee is an Honorary Fellow of the City University
of Hong Kong and a Justice of Peace in Hong Kong and an awardee
of the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong

Special Administrative Region.

Mr. Lee is active in public service. Over the years, he has served
as a member or chairman of different government boards and
committees in Hong Kong, including a member of the Hong Kong
Hospital Authority and the chairman of the Hospital Governing
Committee of the Queen Elizabeth Hospital. Currently, he serves as
the Chairman of the Hospital Governing Committee of Hong Kong
Children’s Hospital, a member of the Public Service Commission
and the Chairman of the Investment Committee of the Hospital
Authority Provident Fund Scheme.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. LI Kwok Tung, Donald s8s 7 (ZFBI#f), aged 65, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is also an independent non-executive director of
C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited (stock code: 3309), and Dr. Li
has been appointed as the medical international advisor of Ping An
Healthcare and Technology Company Limited (stock code: 1833),
all being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
with effect from 5 May 2018. Dr. Li is a specialist in Family
Medicine in private practice in Hong Kong. He is the past President
of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine, the President of the World
Organisation of Family Doctors (WONCA) and Censor of the Hong
Kong College of Family Physicians. Dr Li is also the Chairman of the
Governing Board of Hong Kong Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness
and Response Institute.

Dr. Li obtained a Bachelor of Arts from Cornell University, USA,
and a Bachelor of Medicine and a Bachelor of Surgery from the
University of Hong Kong in June 1975 and November 1980,
respectively. He became a Fellow of the Hong Kong College of
General Practitioners in September 1987, Honorary Fellow of the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in December 1993, Honorary
Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Dental Surgeons in August
2004, Honorary Fellow of the Royal Australian College of General
Practitioners in September 2005, Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong
College of Family Physicians in May 2007, Fellow of the Faculty
of Public Health of the Royal Colleges of Physicians of the United
Kingdom in February 2010, Honorary Fellow of the Academy of
Family Physicians of Malaysia in April 2011, Registered Mainland
China Medical Practitioner in April 2013, Honorary Fellow of the
American College of Physicians in November 2012, Honorary
Fellow of the Royal College of Physicians of Thailand in April 2013,
Fellow of the Academy of Medicine, Singapore, in August 2013,
Honorary Fellow of the Royal College of Physicians of Ireland in
October 2014 and Honorary Fellow of the Royal College of General
Practitioners in November 2014. He took office President of the
WONCA since November 2018.

He served as Member of Council of Cornell University. He is a
Clinical Associate Professor (honorary) in Family Medicine at the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, Honorary Professor of the Li
Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine of the University of Hong Kong and
Adjunct Associate Professor of the Faculty of Health Science of
Macau University of Science and Technology.
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Dr. Li is the Director of the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance
Association. He is the chairman of the board of directors of the
Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited, Honorary
Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club. He is the Honorary Adviser
of The Hong Kong Award for Young People. He is the Chairman
of Professional Committee on Medical Health of Belt and Road
General Chamber of Commerce, member of the Chief Executive’s
Council of Advisers on Innovation and Strategic Development, and
also the Steering Committee on Primary Healthcare Development of
Food & Health Bureau. Dr. Li retired as the chairman of Bauhinia
Foundation Research Centre on 17 January 2019 and retains as
directors.

Mr. YEUNG Wing Sun, Mike (5 %), aged 66, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yeung is an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee and
nomination committee of Hong Kong Shanghai Alliance Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1001), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He has over 40 years’ working experience
in banking industry. Mr. Yeung began his career with the HSBC
Group in 1972 and advanced himself in the organisation by taking
up different positions under various business streams including
personal banking, sales and marketing, branch operation and
trade service. In 2001, Mr. Yeung was relocated to Shanghai and
took up the role of branch manager of HSBC Shanghai. In June
2006, he was seconded to Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited and
appointed as the Head of Personal Financial Services and Wealth
Management, China Business. He assumed the role of Deputy Chief
Executive and Head of Personal Financial Services and Wealth
Management in May 2007. Mr. Yeung retired from HSBC Group in
January 2014. Mr. Yeung is the Honorary President of Hong Kong
Chamber of Commerce in Shanghai. He was awarded the “Magnolia
Gold Award” presented by the Shanghai Municipal government.
Mr. Yeung was also awarded a Professional Diploma in Company
Direction by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2017.
Mr. Yeung was a member of the 11th and 12th Chinese People’s

Political Consultative Conference Committee in Shanghai.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. MA Hoi Wan (FFELE), aged 44, is the Deputy General Manager
of the Group and Company Secretary of the Company. Ms. Ma
supervises all internal operation functions within the Group,
including finance and accounting, internal control and compliance,
information technology, clinic and network management, human
resources and administration, and all other business supporting
functions for Hong Kong, Macau and mainland China. She has
over 17 years of experience in finance, auditing and accounting.
In recent years, she is actively involved in day-to-day management
of the healthcare business and also plays an active role in merger
and acquisition projects of the Group. Ms. Ma joined the Group
in November 2000 and left the Group in May 2007 with the last
position held as Assistant Financial Controller. Ms. Ma re-joined
the Group as Financial Controller in April 2010 and became a
Finance Director since July 2016. She was promoted to the Deputy
General Manager of the Group since September 2019. She is also
a member of the Management Committee and a director and the
Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong Museum of Medical Sciences
since 2012 and 2013 respectively. She is also a director of certain
companies of the Group.

Ms. Ma obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accounting from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in November 1997 and obtained a Master of Corporate
Finance from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003.
She has been a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 2001.

Mr. TSANG Yun Chau (B M), aged 44, is the Director of
Business Development of the Group. He is responsible for business
development and operations as well as cross-border business in
Hong Kong and Macau. Mr. Tsang joined the Group since 2016 who
focuses on liaising with local and international medical insurance
and private corporations to provide healthcare plans and managing
the operations and implementation of such plans. He is also
responsible for corporate marketing aspect to enhance the publicity
of the Company.

Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in
1999 from Simon Fraser University and a Master of Business in
Information Technology in 2005 from Curtin University.
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Mr. LEUNG Ho Chi (BJ&%), aged 45, is the Financial Controller of
the Group. He joined the Group in April 2019. Mr. Leung obtained
his bachelor’s degree in business administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1996 and a master’s degree in corporate
governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2011.
Mr. Leung is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. He has over 20 years of experience in
audit, accounting and finance. He had also worked in senior
financial management roles in Hong Kong subsidiaries of multiple
multinational advertising and public relations companies listed on

The New York Stock Exchange and The London Stock Exchange.

Ms. TSANG Suk Yin, Pauline (&M ®), aged 49, is the Head of
Human Resources and Administration. She joined the Group in
2018. Ms. Tsang is responsible for people management, people
development and the alignment of Human Resources interventions
and initiatives for the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Tsang
worked across various industries ranging from retail, insurance and
management service to the non-commercial university sector. She
is a past Vice President of the Institute of Training Professionals.
Ms. Tsang has since 2010 been a professional member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Human Resource Management. Ms. Tsang obtained
a Bachelor of Business degree from the University of South Australia
in 1999 and a Master of Management degree from Macquarie
University in 2000. In 2009, Ms. Tsang obtained her Grade 1
qualification with IR & & A 1 EJRE HAD in China.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. KUNG Kenny, aged 45, is the Vice President, Chief Training
Officer and Chief Medical Director of UMP Healthcare China.

Dr. Kung joined the Group in 2016. Dr. Kung has over 20 years
of experience in family medicine, he is a Fellow of the Hong
Kong College of Family Physicians, a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine (Family Medicine) and a Member of Royal
College of General Practitioners. In addition to clinical practice
in family medicine, Dr. Kung also supervises and monitors the
healthcare services of UMP in mainland China. In recent vyears,
Dr. Kung participated in the establishment of GOLD™ programme.
He is also leading the trainers group to offer the programme to
General Practitioners and nurses with view to enhancing their

professionalism.

Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Kung has been the Chief of Service
of New Territories East in the Hospital Authority of Hong Kong. Dr.
Kung is also a Level 3 Trainer at Fraser Training. Dr. Kung is familiar
with the healthcare systems of both Hong Kong and mainland China.
He was the Doctor In-Charge at Staff Clinic of New Territories East
Cluster of the Hospital Authority of Hong Kong and Family Medicine
Training Coordinator of the Hospital of Hong Kong, and also served
as a Clinical Assistant Professor of Family Medicine in the University
of Hong Kong and a Consultant of the Department of Family
Medicine & Primary Care, the University of Hong Kong — Shenzhen
Hospital.

Dr. Kung obtained a Bachelor of Medicine from the University
of London in 1999 and became a Member of the Royal College
of General Practitioners in 2003 and a Fellow of the Hong Kong
College of Family Physicians in 2004 and a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine (Family Medicine) and a Family Medicine
Specialist in 2007.
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Mr. Paul YE (%), aged 39, was appointed as Vice President and
Chief Operation Officer of UMP Healthcare China in May 2019.
He joined UMP Healthcare China in February 2017. Mr. Ye has
served as Operation Director of UMP Healthcare China in Beijing
and Shanghai, Chief Operating Officer and Deputy General Manager
of UMP Healthcare China in past 2 years. Mr. Ye is leading the
development of infrastructure and related policies and strategies in
relation to UMP Healthcare China.

Mr. Ye held the key positions in reputable international insurance
companies in China mainland and North Asia. He has more than
11 years” experience in fields of life insurance, P&C insurance and

global assistance.

Mr. Ye obtained a Bachelor of Computer Linguistics from University

of Stuttgart, Germany in September 2005.

Mr. HUANG Yun Hui, Elvis (2 &), aged 44, is the Vice President,
Chief Product and Marketing Officer of UMP Healthcare China.
He is responsible for the product development, overall sales and
marketing business of UMP Healthcare China and ensuring to
provide high quality and reliable family doctor services. Mr. Huang
has over 15 years of working experience in health insurance,
internet and medical service industry. He joined UMP Healthcare
China in May 2019, prior to joining UMP Healthcare China, he
took different management positions in several domestic insurance
companies, American insurance company and medical company.
Mr. Huang graduated from University of Science and Technology
Beijing and obtained Master of Business Administration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and transparency. The Company believes that
high standards of corporate governance provide a solid foundation
for the Group to manage business risks, enhance transparency and
maintain high standards of accountability. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasise sound internal control and

aim to protect Shareholders’ interests in general.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code during FY2019, except for the
deviation as disclosed in this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, consisting of six
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong as Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and executive Director, Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen, as
Managing Director and executive Director, Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick,
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael, Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix and
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick as executive Directors, and
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $BS /P
and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike as independent non-executive

Directors.

Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships, where
applicable, are contained in the section headed “Biographical

Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Company has maintained on its website and on the website
of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors identifying
their roles and functions, and whether they are independent non-
executive Directors. Independent non-executive Directors are
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of Directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity
of Board members can be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to the gender, age,
cultural, educational background and professional experience of the
Board members. The appointment of Directors will be based on the
Group’s own business model and specific needs, having due regard
to the benefits of diversity of the Board.

The Company believes that the current Board composition is well-
balanced and of a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the
Company. The Board will review and monitor the implementation of
board diversity policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness
on determining the optimal composition of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Dr.
Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman, is also the Chief Executive Officer.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in an experienced and qualified person
such as Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership while allowing effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power

and authority between the Board and the management of the Group.

The Board will review the corporate governance structure and
practices from time to time and shall make necessary arrangement

when the Board considers appropriate.

Independent non-executive Directors

During FY2019, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Roles of the Board and Management

The Board oversees the management, business, strategic directions
and performance of the Group. It is collectively responsible for
the management and operation of the Company. The Board is the
ultimate decision making body of the Company except for matters
requiring the approval of the Shareholders in accordance with the

Articles, the Listing Rules or other applicable laws and regulations.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the
management of the Company. The Board and the management have
clearly defined authorities and responsibilities under various internal
control and check and balance mechanisms. The Board does not
delegate matters to the Board committee(s), executive Directors or
management to an extent that would significantly hinder or reduce
the ability of the Board as a whole to perform its functions.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board plays a major role in the supervision of corporate
governance to ensure that the Company maintains a sound
governance framework and the long-term sustainable Shareholders’
value by way of, among others:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the

Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate

Governance Report).
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During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, and reviewed and monitored
the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management. The Board has also reviewed and ensured
compliance of the relevant legal and regulatory requirements, the
code of conducts, the code and the disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

Board Meetings and Supply of and Access to Information
Under code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals and
under code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
Chairman of the Board should at least annually hold meetings with
the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the executive Directors present. During FY2019,
the Board held four meetings and Directors’ attendance records are
set out below:
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Meeting(s)
Attended/Held
HE BT
Directors E=x SERE
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong BRRIBE (FERTHAER)

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 717
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen SBEELR LT (BEFHIIE)

(Managing Director) 717
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BRERE 6/7
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael RN EBREE 6/7
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FREKLE 717
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung Patrick FHEBEL 6/7
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTESE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP THEBRE(WNEFAEE X FHL) 6/7
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP FERBE (REAHEE X FHL) 6/7
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike CER S 6/7

In addition, the Chairman held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of executive Directors.
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Notice incorporating the agenda for each regular Board meeting is
given to all Directors at least 14 days in advance. For other Board
meetings and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
be given. All Directors or Board committee members are given the
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. Meeting
agenda and accompanying meeting papers are sent to all relevant
Directors at least 3 days in advance of every regular Board meeting

or committee meeting.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board and
the chairmen of Board committees in preparing meeting agendas
and ensures that the Corporate Governance Code as well as all
applicable laws and regulations are duly complied with. Minutes
of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are recorded in
sufficient details of the matters considered and decisions reached
at the relevant meetings. Draft and final versions of the minutes
in respect of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
sent to all Directors or Board committee members respectively for
comment and records within a reasonable time after the relevant
meetings. All minutes are properly kept by the Company Secretary
and are available for the Directors’ and Board committee members’
inspection.

All Directors are entitled to have access to timely information in
relation to the Company’s business and make further enquiries
or retain independent professional advisors where necessary. The
management provides all relevant explanation and information
to the Board so as to give the Board the information it needs to
discharge its responsibilities. During FY2019, the management
has provided all members of the Board with adequate information
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects.
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TERERBE

GENERAL MEETINGS

During FY2019, the Company has convened and held one annual
general meeting (“AGM”) and two extraordinary general meetings
(“EGM”). Attendance records of the Directors at the general

meetings are set out as follows:

BRERRE

R2019BRFEEN - ARG EBRREIT—
KERRAFAE ((RRAFAE]) EMRRK
RENARE (RRFIARAE]) - EFHRRE
AEMHELEHINWT -

Number of Number of
meetings meetings
attended/held attended/held
BITRERE HITRKERHE
AGM EGM
Name of Directors EEnA RRBFRE BRERFGHRE
Executive Directors HITESE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong HiRTE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFITHAEZ) 11 2/2
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen FEFEL L
(Managing Director) (EFRHEIE) 11 2/2
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick B ERE 1/1 2/2
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael R EREE 1/1 2/2
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FRPEE 1/1 2/2
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick RS 1/1 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITEE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP FHUESTAE
(XA EE X F#t) /1 2/2
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $BS JP 2 3 5 B8
(REHF|EE » X F#HL) 11 2/2
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike CES S 1/1 2/2
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years subject to the provision
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles and the

provision under the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on the date of his appointment subject to the provision
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles and the

provision under the letter of appointment.

The Articles provide that each Director is subject to retirement
from office by rotation and re-election once every three years and
that one-third (or the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
of the Directors shall retire from office every year at the annual
general meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting while
any Director appointed by the Board as additional Director shall be
subject to re-election at the next following annual general meeting.

Directors’ training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction package covering the statutory and regulatory
obligations of Directors, organizational structure, policies,
procedures and codes of the Company, terms of reference of board
committees and charter of responsibilities of internal audit. The
Directors are encouraged to attend seminars and conferences to
enrich their knowledge in discharging their duties as a director. The
Company Secretary from time to time updates and provides written
training materials to the Directors, and organizes seminars on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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TRERKE

The Company Secretary maintains records of trainings received by
the Directors. The trainings received by the current Directors during

FY2019 are as follows:

NEAMERTFESEIBINLE - 12019
PRFE BEEEEXEINBERAT

Training

Matters™oe

Name of Directors EENA $ 8| =g
Executive Directors PITEE

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen
(Managing Director)

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael

Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix

Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Partick

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

Note: A. Corporate governance
B. Regulatory updates
C. Directors’ Duties
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Directors’ and officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company.

CODES FOR DEALING IN THE COMPANY’S

SECURITIES
The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code for

dealings in the Company’s securities by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company
confirmed that the Directors have complied with the Model Code
during FY2019.

Relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the
Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees on terms
that are no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code.
To the best knowledge of the Company, there was no incident of
non-compliance of the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions
by Employees during FY2019.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established its Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s
website at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at

www.hkexnews.hk.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policies. In arriving at its
recommendations to the Board, the Remuneration Committee
will consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group. The Committee either determines or makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of
individual executive Directors and senior management, and it also
makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee meets at least
twice a year and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li
Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike, and an
executive Director, namely Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick. Dr. Li Kwok
Tung, Donald SBS JP serves as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The composition of the Remuneration Committee meets
the requirements of chairmanship and independence of the Listing

Rules.

During FY2019, the Remuneration Committee had performed the

following works:

. determined and reviewed the remuneration policy of the

executive Directors;
. assessed the performance of executive Directors;
. made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages (including the granting of share options and

share awards) of individual executive Directors and senior

FHZEeRMm=2KEAK  BEMEE
VINTESZFTERELE (REFEE  LF
ML) RIGRETRERATESTERESRLE -
TERBE (REHEE X FHL)EETH
MWEEETFE -FMZBEMNARTA LD
MBI EEMBULIERRTE ©

R2019 B EFE  HFNEBESERBITUTE
ﬁ%:

o FIEYUBBPITEFAFBEEK

o FHERITEFHRR:

o BENRTEERSREZEABNZH
FB(EREETERENREZERRD) ME

EERIES -

management.
The attendance records of the committee members to committee ZESKEBHELZESLRHNLEHIIWT
meeting(s) are set out below:

Meeting(s)
Attended/Held
HE BT
Remuneration Committee Members FHMEEEHRE =E P8

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP (Chairman) FERE
(REHFIEZE » X FHL)(F/E) 2/2
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike BT E 2/2
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BRESLE 2/2

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year are disclosed in note 8

to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established its Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s
website at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at

www.hkexnews.hk.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for regularly reviewing
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Its duties include
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
reviewing the leadership needs of the Company to ensure the
continued ability of the Company to compete effectively. The
Committee is also responsible for assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and reviewing their annual
confirmations on independence. The Nomination Committee meets
at least once a year and is provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Luen Wai, John BBS /P and Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $SBS /P, and
an executive Director, namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong. Dr. Sun Yiu
Kwong serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
composition of the Nomination Committee meets the requirements
of chairmanship and independence of the Listing Rules.

During FY2019, the Nomination Committee had performed the

following works:

. reviewed the current structure, size and composition of the
Board;
e assessed the independence of independent non-executive

Directors; and

. reviewed the time commitment of the Directors.
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The Board adopted the policy of the nomination of Directors in EBER2018F 12 ARMRESIRZEE (£
December 2018 (the “Director Nomination Policy”). Pursuant to ZIREHEK]) - BEEZREHE E5C
the Director Nomination Policy, the nomination committee of the #ENRZEZESARNEESIRA[BEA ABH
Board shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to HEEE WHRRAAGKREASG LERNE
consider and make recommendations to Shareholders for election FEEINEAMEGRTRIIERRESTS ML
as directors at general meetings of the Company or to appoint as RBRRIELEBREZ - FBFL2HARQA
Directors to fill casual vacancies or as an addition to the existing  #4#www.ump.com.hk °

Board, for details of which, please refer to the Company’s website at

www.ump.com.hk.

During the year, the Board reviewed the overall contribution and F R ' EFZCEEMRTEETHAQAME
service to the Company, expertise and professional qualifications of BEERMERK HENEXNEREEE
the retiring Directors and recommended them to be re-elected at the 1§ + WEFHR B FR AR BRI EERFBF K

Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting. 2 rEREE-
The attendance records of the committee members to committee ZEE@KEHFEEZE@HEMLEEIWT :
meeting(s) are set out below:
Meeting(s)
Attended/Held
HE BT
Nomination Committee Members REZEERE BERY
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman) B TEE () 11
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP FEBESE (HEHEE X FHL) 1/1
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS /P FTERBLE (REHEE X FHL) 171
Audit Committee EREE®

The Company has established its Audit Committee with written ZAAG DKL EZRE B S 6T HSHBE
terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s website #i[E @ AR AR AA L (www.ump.com.hk)
at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at REZZ T4 (www.hkexnews.hk) BIE o

www . hkexnews.hk.
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The Audit Committee reports to the Board and holds regular
meetings to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities
for effective financial reporting controls, internal controls and
risk management. The Committee monitors the integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, annual report and accounts
and half-year report and reviews significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. It reviews, makes recommendations
and reports to the Board on findings relating to the financial
statements, reports and accounts, systems of internal control and
risk management and compliance issues on an annual basis. The
Audit Committee also oversees the Company’s relationship with
the external auditor, reviews auditor’s letter of engagement and
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of external auditor. It is empowered to review and
monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. It reviews external auditor’'s management letter and any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response. The Committee meets at least twice a year
and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its
duties.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Luen Wai, John BBS JP, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS /P and
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike. Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP serves
as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The composition of the
Audit Committee meets the requirements of chairmanship and
independence of the Listing Rules.

During FY2019, the Audit Committee had performed the following

works:

. reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and

made recommendation to the Board;

J reviewed the annual caps on continuing connected

transactions of the Company;

] reviewed the remuneration, terms of engagement and the
independence of the external auditor and considered the re-

appointment of the external auditor;
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. reviewed the arrangements for raising concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other

matters;

. reviewed the Group’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems and the effectiveness, adequacy of

resources and competency; and

o considered and reviewed the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report.

The attendance records of the committee members to committee

meeting(s) are set out below:

e MNBMMBEHKR AMEFAEMLE
HRHAEEETEETRIEHEITN
ZHE

s BEAEBNMBKER RBREEEA
BEZRGFURBERML - BRFA MR
B R

. EZEBENMEMRE HEEERERE -

ZEENBHLFEZESRZNLEHINWT -

Meeting(s)
Attended/Held
HE BT
Audit Committee Members EREBENE GERIE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP (Chairman) THMEEE (WEFHEE K FHL)
(/) 2/2
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP FERBE (REAHAEE X F#HL) 1/2
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike R FE 2/2
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL EEYHHKERENEE
STATEMENTS
The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial ZZ€BEREWBHRE WHEBRREEE

statements which should give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows
for such reporting period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Board has adopted generally accepted accounting standards
in Hong Kong and suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.
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The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing

the financial statements.

The auditor is responsible for auditing and reporting its opinion on
the financial statements of the Group and the independent auditor’s
report for FY2019 is set out in the section headed “Independent

Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and overseeing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including clinic
chain operations, business development, financial reporting, human
resources, information technology and handling and dissemination

of inside information.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and
various aspects including key operational and financial processes,
regulatory compliance and information security.

The management, in coordination with department heads, assessed
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and
monitor the risk management progress, and reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the
systems.
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The internal audit team is responsible for providing the internal audit
function and performing independent review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

The key elements of the Group’s risk management and internal
control structure are as follows:

J well-defined organizational structure with appropriate
segregation of duties, limit of authority, reporting lines and

responsibilities to minimize risk of errors and abuse;

J establish written policies and procedures for major functions

and operations;

J important business functions or activities are managed by

experienced, qualified and suitably trained staff;

. continuous monitoring of the key operating data and
performance indicators, timely and up-to-date business and
financial reporting, immediate corrective actions are taken

where necessary; and

J internal audit function to perform independent appraisal of
major operations on an ongoing basis.

A risk-based approach is adopted to ensure that a methodical
coverage of the Group’s operations and resources are focused on
high risk areas. The internal audit team takes the lead to evaluate
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
by reviewing the major operations of the Group on a rotational
basis every year. The review covers all material controls including

financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management.

Review results and recommendations in the form of written reports
are submitted to the Audit Committee for discussion and review.
Follow up actions will be taken up by the internal audit team
to ensure that findings previously identified have been properly
resolved. The Board had discussed and reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the
FY2019, and considered them effective and adequate.
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The Company also established a procedure to facilitate employees
of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.

During FY2019, the Board,

Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal

in conjunction with the Audit

control system of the Company and its subsidiaries, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting function. The Board considered that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems for FY2019
was effective and adequate and no significant areas of concern has
been identified.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to
the Company and its subsidiaries by the external auditor of the
Company for FY2019 are set out below:
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BARRBAIRENBLARANEEZRZRERA
M BEARBESF  ABERLPKE

RBESTENER BIEENMER UK
BTREINBIRERBEAEENRES

B -EECRAKREER2019 BFERRE
BEEBERANSEESEBERTE » WHES
BEMNEBBIEE -

BEET &

R20198 FE - RABIMNEZEBE R AR
A Ko B BT 8 1 B HR A% UM FR X BUIR 75 /O A
SHEINMT

HK$’000
FHET
Audit service ZE R 2,200
Non-audit services* FE 1z BAR 75 713
2,913
* Non-audit services include environmental, social and governance  * B REBRIERE ?\i@&ﬁ.xu@?ﬁﬁlﬁ*
advisory services, an agreed-upon procedure and circular in relation to —EHpERFREAKESE B
acquisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary General Meeting

Article 58 of the Articles of the Company provides that any one or
more members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A Shareholder may lodge a notice of his intention to propose
any person (other than himself/herself) for election as a Director
together with a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected to the head office of the Company
or at the registration office where the branch register of members
of the Company is kept provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given shall be at least 7
days and that (if the notices are submitted after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the
period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such

general meeting.

Other than the above concerning a proposal of a person for election
as a Director, there are no provisions in the Articles of Association
or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for putting forward
proposals of new resolutions by Shareholders at general meetings.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene
an extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
written requisition.
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Putting Forward enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not

normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1404-1408, 14th Floor
Wing On House
71 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2511 1152

Email: ir@eump.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by

law.
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BE: (852) 2511 1152
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain good
communication with Shareholders and in particular, through its
annual general meeting and other extraordinary general meetings.
At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries. The Directors, Company Secretary or appropriate
members of senior management, where appropriate, also respond to
inquiries from Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.

Under the Listing Rules, all resolutions proposed at Shareholders’
meetings must be voted by poll except where the chairman of
a general meeting, in good faith and in compliance with the
Listing Rules, decides to allow resolutions to be voted on by the
Shareholders on a show of hands. Details of the poll procedures
will be explained during the proceedings of Shareholders’ meetings.
The poll voting results will be released and posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at

www.ump.com.hk.

To provide effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.ump.com.hk. All the financial information and other
disclosures including, inter alia, annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and Articles are available under the section of

“About us — Investor Relations” on the Company’s website.

Shareholders can direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders
and the investment community may at any time make a request
for such information. Designated contacts, email addresses and
enquiry lines of the Company have been provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report to enable the Shareholders
and the investment community to make any enquiry in respect of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During FY2019, the Company has not made any changes to its

memorandum and Articles of Association.
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ENVIRONMENTAL,

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

This report is the third Environment, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report (“ESG Report”) published by the Group, which describes our
relationship with key stakeholders and our approach in complying
with applicable regulations and guidelines relating to environmental,
social and governance matters. The reporting year of this ESG Report

is aligned with our financial year.

Reporting standard

This ESG Report was compiled in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It is reported in compliance
with the “comply or explain” provisions and with reference to the
“recommended disclosures” of the ESG Reporting Guide.

Reporting scope
Unless otherwise specified, the contents and metrics reported in this

ESG Report cover our operations in Hong Kong.

Sources of data and assurance to reliability

The data reported in this ESG Report was prepared based on our
internal statistical reports, internal policies and other internal
documents. The Board hereby confirms that no false or misleading
statements have been made in this ESG Report.

Board approval
This ESG Report was approved by the Board on 26 September 2019.

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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OUR COMPANY

UMP is one of the leading corporate healthcare solution providers
in Hong Kong, offering wide range of healthcare services through
our clinic chain and panel network. We partner with insurance
companies and corporates in the design and administration of
corporate healthcare benefit plans for, and provide healthcare
services to, the members and employees of such corporations.
In recent years, UMP works closely with local community health
service centers in China by providing family doctor trainings and
building public-private-partnership consultation rooms. In FY2019,
UMP served over 1.6 million medical and dental patient visits,
offering services to over 1 million members from more than 3,000
corporates and insurers. UMP’s medical network has more than
600 self-owned and affiliated service points and it currently covers
Guangdon-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area, Beijing, Shanghai,
Tianjin and other major cities in China.

Since the Group’s inception in 1990, we strive to give everyone
access to trusted and affordable care. We act with integrity and
maintain high standard of professional practice. The Group adheres
to the ESG management principles of sustainable development, and
is committed to effectively and responsibly handling the ESG affairs
of the Group. We take this as an important part of our business

strategy and a key to our sustainable growth.
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MANAGEMENT OF ESG ASPECTS

We consider ESG risk management is important to the sustainable
growth of our business. The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining our ESG-related risks to ensure the appropriateness and

effectiveness of ESG risk management and internal control systems.

This year, we have established the ESG working group to allocate
adequate resources for strengthening our ESG management. The ESG
working group is led by the senior management and comprises of
departments that give support with different ESG issues. The working
group assists in identifying material ESG issues and facilitates the

understanding of stakeholders’ needs and expectations.

Our corporate social responsibility policy (“CSR policy”) outlines
our commitment to protect the environment, contribute to
the community, implement decent labour practices, maintain
occupational health and safety, protect patients’ rights and purchase
responsibly. The CSR policy applies to all our staff. We also take
certain measures to monitor the quality of services delivered to the
customers by our affiliated practitioners.

Compliance with ESG-related regulations

The Group’s business operation is subject to extensive laws and
regulations. Registration and licensing of clinics, processing of
radioactive substance and apparatuses, treatment of clinical waste,
marketing and promotion of products and services, possession and
distribution of drugs, protection of confidentiality and personal data
privacy are some examples of the laws and regulations.

Internal policies and systems are in place to ensure compliance
with the laws and regulations applicable to our business. Written
procedures and guidelines are formulated and distributed to our staff
and medical practitioners. Training and development programmes
are also provided to our staff to refresh their sense of compliance
and to stay up to date on the recent developments in the laws and

regulations.
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RE - HERERBE

Stakeholder engagement

We strive to align our business practices with their needs and
expectations achieve sustainable development of the Group. Key
stakeholders have been involved in certain engagement sessions

to discuss and review the areas of attention in relation to this ESG

FHE2 A
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2URSAKEERIHELER - T2
MECEBSEETEZE  UimERA
BRE HeRERRERIENERE -

Report.
Stakeholders Material issues Engagement
BFHE EXER 28
Government and e Legal compliance % Compliance with government
regulatory BPEAE policies
authorities e Public health and hygiene ESFBUF R
B N B B NRGER R E % Response to inquiries from
e Economic development government departments
RBERR [l f& BT B FI &+
% Fulfilment of social responsibility
BiTHe&iE
Investors e Performance growth and return on % Convene of regular shareholder
KEH investment meetings
FEBRNREME THARBRRRE
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e Business operation risks
EpLERR
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BF REEEREFPZE BP ARG
e Complaint handling % Grievance mechanisms
AR IE B AR 4
e Customer privacy protection % Feedback surveys
BEEMLEBRE BERAE
e Patient right
BEREN
Suppliers and e Open, fair and just procurement % Supplier comparison matrix
contractors N RFRAEREB fH e P e B R
HERE kAR e Responsible purchasing % Regular communication
BEERE EHER
e Integrity
=)
\Community e Support community development @ Co\operation with social enterprise
=N SRR E Eﬁiﬁf'a}ﬁ%é\f/ﬁ
. . % Comply with health-related laws and
e Public health and hygiene !
. regulation
ARREEAE AT E MR EEEOE LR

72 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2019 ANNUAL REPORT




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Materiality assessment
We conducted materiality analysis to identify stakeholder opinions — F{PI#ETTE B 15 4T A B4 5 & B B H A
and concerns with regards to our business and sustainable MWEKMAIFEZENBEEMEA L - UTEH
development. The following issues were identified to be material for B #H B AHHKPNBTHERER M 9B
both our stakeholders and business. These issues will be discussed B Z o AR 2 ¥ fE 5 &5 5 74 5 il 70 13 7] 548
in more detail when addressing the four sustainability aspects in the #EFEREZEEEEEFMATH -

corresponding sections of this report.

Sustainability

RE - HEREREBE

EEMFE

Medium materiality

aspects High materiality issues issues Low materiality issues
AREREAE BEEMER FEEHER BREEMHEE
Environmental Waste management Greenhouse gas emissions and Use of energy and water
R BRYRE mitigation HE IR B 7k {5

BE RPN E
Human capital Talent recruitment and retention (i) Occupational health and Labour standards
ANER UNCEEE] safety % T g

BREERkL2

(ii) Employee training and
development

BB EIINERE

Operating practices
EERA

(i) Legal compliance
BTAR
(i) Product safety and service quality

EmRE2LRBES
(i) Patients’ rights and privacy
BEENRLE

(i)  Supply chain management Intellectual property
HEEE R A ERE

(ii) Anti-corruption
&S

(iii) Data security
HELe

Community

iR

Contribution to community

i B B B
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OUR SERVICES

UMP serves a great number of patients. We understand the
importance of our role in community health. We pay attention to our

service quality and patients’ satisfaction.

The Group has set up a Quality Assurance and Safety Committee,
which consists of medical practitioners and senior management of
the Group. It is responsible for monitoring the performance of our
clinics and providing advice to the Group on professional standards,
clinical governance, clinical risk and continuous professional
development of clinical and professional services. It also formulates
and adopts policies and procedures concerning the healthcare and

medical services of the Group.

During the reporting year, there are no non-compliance related to

our products and service quality.

Clinic hygiene and infection control

Environmental hygiene in our medical centres is given the top
priority at UMP. We maintain good ventilation and illumination
system in all medical centres to help ensure a health and cosy
clinical environment. Sufficient water supply, sanitary and
hand-washing facilities are available to our patients and staff. We
also take measures to prevent the transmission of disease within
clinics, include patient triage and placement and implement strict
sterilisation procedures of reusable medical equipment. As one
of the measures, we have displayed posters of cough etiquette
and steps of hand hygiene in the clinics. We offer trainings to
our clinical staff regarding clinical infection control with the aim
of reducing transmissible diseases and improve knowledge on

epidemic diseases.
Proper handling of wastes generated at the clinic is also a means of

controlling infection. To know our approach on treating clinical and

general waste, please refer to the “Waste treatment” section.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

= 179 B9 B 45
BABBAXRBERERY - RIRAR

METREETDENACHERMNE - M
TERBEENBERRE

AEBEERLEERE &ﬁAééf"} =[N
SEMNEEREREEEEK TAEE
ﬂﬁzﬂiﬁ -SSR ITJLE%TTE Euuf_g
5 BRARRERRERAREERBOSESEE
Jz'ﬁz!iﬁlhfﬁfﬁ ZEENHELIR
MEBASEEREREREBERBHBE R
(e

RBEEFE YEABARMNERMRBE
ENTARER-

DIEE R BRRE

BMABKEBESTLOMRBEHERES —
- RZMMMBEKFLEEERTHRAR R
REARS  URBRRERREFENZ IR -
BZMmEEREERHETENMHK BHER
BEFFE o HAIINEREE HEBT L2 T AR R

RERE BRBEORARRE  RATEE
HERF - ERET—HEE  RMAEZH

OR Bh B 3 MR F B R EIS IR o
[F150 P b R B B IR 22 PR BRI B35 - B
R A2 Al B RS - A MRS RTT
RAE A

IEFERRIR D P E W BE WD TN R 45 il R Y
TE - FABRMREERL —REZYNE
i F2MIRBERY] -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Patient relationship management

Professional and quality service starts with listening to our patients’
needs and concerns. Through establishing communication platforms,
we hope to engage and build stronger bonds with our patients.
Our mobile app, UMPiR T %, allows customers to access the
latest information on the availability of our doctors, the range of
healthcare services offered, and the location and operational hours
of our medical centres. Feedback channels are provided to our
patients in the form of hotline and websites. Whenever there are any
complaints launched regarding medical practice, an investigation

will be conducted in an impartial manner.

Safeguarding patients’ rights and their privacy

All patients of UMP are treated with equality in a welcoming and
non-discriminatory manner. No discrimination of age, race, sex,
marital status, pregnancy, disability or any other characteristics
protected by the anti-discrimination laws are tolerated within the
Company.

UMP respects, protects and promotes patients’ rights by maintaining
a positive and open relationship during the whole healthcare
process. We sustain a stringent culture to safeguard the patients’
rights. The confidentiality of patient’s medical status and the
decision to accept or refuse any medication or treatment are all

safeguarded.

A system is in place to protect all personal data, medical and health
records of all our patients in accordance with the privacy laws and
regulations. The Group complies with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance relating to the collection, retention, handling, disclosure
and use of personal data including medical history. To avoid
information leakage to unauthorised third parties, we maintain an
effective data storage system to regularly monitor and evaluate the
risk of improper use of information. Procedures have been set up
to guide employees on handling printed and electronic documents
related to personal data.
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RE - HERERBE

Professional practitioners

All medical practitioners engaged by the Group shall have valid
and subsisting practising certificate(s) and qualification(s) to provide
medical services and handle drug and pharmacy related issues. All
doctors, dentists and certain auxiliary service providers must comply
with the code of professional conduct or discipline, as applicable to
them. Such requirements help promote and safeguard the quality of
healthcare services.

We adhere to a deliberated process to identify qualified and suitable
practitioners to join our network and ensure all our practitioners are
competent to deliver quality healthcare services to our customers.
The Group also provides necessary resources to support the

practitioners to enhance their skills and knowledge.

The affiliated practitioners are selected and engaged by a dedicated
team through regular clinical visits. Policies on selection,
remuneration and training are regularly reviewed by senior
management to deliver clinical care that adheres with the industrial

standards and promotes sustainable growth of the Group’s business.

Reliable supply chain
We procure medicine and medical equipment from pharmaceutical
companies and suppliers of medical consumables. The qualification

of suppliers should meet the applicable laws.

The Group adopts a centralised procurement system for distribution
to individual medical centres, as and when required. The medical
centres are responsible for maintaining their own drug items and
medical consumables inventory. This mechanism enables effective
control on the quality and costs of procurement as well as the risks

associated with corruption and bribery.

The environmental and social risks of our supply chain such as
pollution and infringement of labour rights are considered low in
general. Therefore, the environmental and social factors are not

determinant in selecting our suppliers.
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OUR EMPLOYEES

The Group has implemented a set of human resources management
policies and procedures and is compliant with the relevant laws and
regulations. Some of the prominent laws include the employment
ordinance, the sex discrimination ordinance, the disability
discrimination ordinance and the labour law of the PRC and the
labour contract law of the PRC. The staff handbook, which is
accessible to all employees, includes detailed rules and guidelines
that lay out our expectations for employee conduct as well as their

rights and responsibilities in the workplace.

During the reporting period, the Group is not aware of any
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits

and welfare.

As of 30 June 2019, the Group had a total of 456 full-time
employees.

RE - HEREREBE

R ES
AEEEER—RINANEREEBREK K
BF WESFHEBEERRD - HoEEE
EBEEFBEEG) - CERIERAED) - &
ERAEGI) A R EE AR LB L 8% &
(PEAREFMBREHERZE) - MATERERE
REMETIFMANFABRESISHER
B TRTHEE  UREENIESFT
MERMEEF-

K& R - AR B A MEE B 5
NgfE BEBERERN TERE BRY - F
EWE  REGUAREGBFERENNTE
MBI -

M2019%F6 A308 » "EBAS L H4562 28

Number of employees as of 30 June 2019 R2019F6A30ENEESEE
Total number of employees EERE
Composition by gender 145 & 5 By A A
Male EeRid 76
Female pegis 380
Composition by employee category ZIESHEFIE 5 B4 K
Corporate staff NGNS 138
Clinical staff il 318
Composition by age group RE R P& 5 148 5
<30 <30 160
31— 49 31— 49 239
> 50 > 50 57
Composition by location B EB 7 A4
Hong Kong &5 292
PRC i 154
Macau B P 10
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Employee benefits and welfare

We have introduced family-friendly employment policies and
practices at work to foster a pro-family culture. The Group was
awarded as a Family-friendly Employer 2017/2018 and “Special
Mention 2017/18” in Aug 2018 by the Family Council as a
recognition of our efforts.

In addition, the Group provides benefits including comprehensive
medical insurance, employment compensation insurance, directors’
and officers’ liability insurance and mandatory provident fund to
employees. Employees are also entitled to various leaves, including
annual leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, marriage leave and
examination leave. The Group also offers allowance for regular
departmental gathering and organised recreational activities such as
Christmas party and annual dinner for the staff to relax and enhance

the harmonious spirt across the Group.

Development and training

Promoting employee development is the Group’s long-term
initiative. In addition to mandatory orientation training, we arrange
for and sponsor our clinical staff to receive appropriate external
training relevant to their duties. Some examples include training
on administering injection, practice on blood test collection,
pharmaceutical dispensing, other skills and knowledge related to
their duties. Professional support also ensures our employees to
effectively manage and administer the Group’s operations. We
are also extending the training programme to enhance the clinical

support and customer services.

To motivate employees in the continued pursuit of the Group’s goals
and objectives, we offer competitive remuneration and performance
incentives, such as discretionary bonus, share options scheme and
share award scheme.
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Health and safety at workplace

To minimise the safety hazards and to safeguard the health and
safety of each employee and patient, we incorporate occupational
health and safety strategies into our business operations and

activities.

The Group put strong emphasis on infection control in every
clinic. Personal protective and preventive equipment such as
hand-washing facilities, adequate surgical masks as well as sharp
disposal containers are always in place. We take proactive action
by educating clinical staff on health and safety instructions to raise
the awareness of infection control and requesting them to report any

potential disease outbreak to the clinic-in-charge.

We create awareness about unsafe medical procedures. We have
mandated that special medical equipment such as irradiating
apparatus can only be operated by certified staff. Further, regular
training concerning the safe and proper use of medical equipment
is provided to clinical staff. We also set out the general office safety

and housekeeping rules which apply to our employees.

During the year, the Group strictly complied with all relevant laws
and regulations on occupational health and safety, including but not
limited to Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and the laws
of the PRC on prevention and control of occupational diseases.

Anti-corruption and business ethics

As a professional healthcare service provider, we strive to maintain
high ethical standards. As the Group continues to grow, we will
work with our employees to maintain our strong ethical values.

There is no tolerance to any form of corruption at UMP. Guidelines
in the Staff Handbook formally establish our expectations for our
employees when receiving gifts from suppliers and clients. To
prevent conflict of interest, employees are recommended to return
gifts with a written explanation, donate them to charity through the
Group, or keep the gift and donate to charity which is equal to the
market value of the gift. Where necessary, we require our employees
to report the instances to their supervisors and the Human Resources

and Administration department.
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The Group encourages openness, accountability and transparency.
When inappropriate behaviour or a violation of the Group’s Code
of Conduct is observed, employees can file a written report directly
to the Head of Human Resources and Administration department,
General Manager, or the Chairman. During the reporting year, no
legal cases regarding corruption were brought against the Group or

our employees.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group is aware of the environmental impact resulting from
our operations, from the generation of waste to the consumption
of energy and other resources. We take responsibility for our
operations by incorporating a commitment to environmental
protection and conservation of resources into our CSR policy.
While maintaining the reliability of services and highest standard of

hygiene is an overriding priority, it is our policy to:

J strictly comply with the requirements of applicable

environmental laws and standards.

J actively minimise the impact of our operations on the
environment through energy saving, waste reduction and

recycling.

o raise employees’ awareness on environmental issues and enlist

their support in improving our environmental performance.

Waste treatment

The operations of the Group are subject to environmental
regulations, especially those relating to medical waste disposal such
as Hong Kong’s Code of Practice for the Management of Clinical
Waste and the PRC’s Regulations on the Administration of Medical
Wastes. We recognise the potential risk for the environment and
human health, if medical waste is not properly disposed. It is our

duty to handle waste in a legal, safe and professional manner.
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Medical waste, such as used syringes, contaminated pads, cotton
balls, human tissue specimens after examination, dental amalgams
and expired medicines, are identified and categorised in our Code
of Handling Medical Waste together with the handling procedures to
guide our staff to effectively implement the proper management and
safe handling of medical waste. Medical wastes are sealed, labelled
and stored at a designated area inside our centres until the licensed
waste contractor collect them for further treatment. Record of the
medical waste are kept with traceable information such as date and
address of delivery, quantity and the name of licensed collector.
Training is provided to all our clinical staff to make sure they are
aware of the procedures.

In addition, non-hazardous waste such as face masks, plastic gloves,
drug packaging and disposable gowns are handled separately from
medical waste with care. It is our policy to educate the staff to avoid
unnecessary consumption and disposal of materials. However, to
maintain hygiene at our clinics and to protect our patients from
infection, the use of disposable items becomes necessary, and thus,
the room for reducing non-hazardous waste is limited.

Figures of waste disposed are provided in the following table.

Waste disposed (by types) 2018

BEEREREY (EEH) 2018%F
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2019*
20195+

Medical waste (hazardous waste) 4.4 tonnes 4.39 tonnes
BEREEY(BEEEED) 4.4 MR 4.39 WA
General waste (non-hazardous waste) 1,344,390 L 1,384,680 L
—REEY(BREEED) 1,344,390 T+ 1,384,680 T+

* The waste data of the newly acquired businesses in FY2019 is excluded. * A EEYEHE T EE20198 BEE Rk

Resource consumption

Purchased electricity is the most significant source of energy
consumption at UMP. The use of general lighting and medical
equipment, such as sterilisation with high temperature and x-ray
imaging apparatus, consumes more energy. To maintain our high
quality services during diagnosis and treatment, while reducing
energy consumption, we continuous to explore energy conservation
initiatives in our daily operational, such as, installing LED lighting in
some of our medical centres.
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Packaging is distributed along with drugs and is dispensed to
patients. Such packaging is essential for keeping medicines
appropriate for consumption.

Papers are consumed when dealing with patient registration forms,
medical records and prescription labels. Besides recycling the used
paper, we are adopting IT system for clinical management and
administrative work to reduce our impact. For instance, the Group
has upgraded the Group’s E-Claims system and electronic medical
records software, which is expected to reduce the consumption of

paper.

The Group’s consumption of resources by type and the results are
listed in the following table.

Resource 2018
&R 20184
Purchased electricity 1,772.3 MWh

BANEYABRIETRELRE - 8K
HRRFEYAIHRAEBLE -

REEBEELRE BELERETRER
OB FEAR IR  BRIEIMBE A SN - RIPIIEBLZ P
EERTHRIERMERBRER  UED
BT E -l AEEERAEREFR
BREANETBRLCERT BRI
A -

AEBZEREDNERBERIARERNT
% o

2019
20195

1,925.4 MWh

BEE 1,772.3 JK R 1,925.49K FL ¥
Energy consumption intensity* | 0.00119 MWh per visiting patient 0.00119 MWh per visiting patient
BEJROH FESR FEEE0.00119IK KK FHEE0.00119) B E
GHG emission 1,062.6 tonnes CO,eq 1,287.6 tonnes CO,eq
= R 1,062.6 AME —E (LR E = 1,287.6 M — & LiRE &
Packaging materials** 4,420 kg 8,763 kg
B R 4,420 DT 8,763 T
* The data in 2018 were restated. * 2018FEHEEDEF -
ok The packaging materials data of the newly acquired businesses in FY2019  «x BENBEMEEETOEE20190 KEER
is excluded. Wy B 1) 7 2E 7K o
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OUR COMMUNITY

It is our mission to promote public health in the communities we
serve. Besides providing healthcare service to our patients, we make
an effort to care for the health and well-being of the wider public.
For the continual commitment in taking care of the community, we
have been awarded by the Hong Kong Council of Social Services
with the recognition of “Caring Company”.

We focused our resources in raising awareness on public health. By
leveraging our knowledge and resources, the Group has published
health education leaflets and organised healthcare seminars and
exhibitions.

In 2017, we launched our General Practice Oriented Learning and
Development programme (GOLD™, www.goldgptraining.com). The

purpose of the GOLD™ programme is to educate doctors on how to
become an all-rounded family doctor through equipping them with
the latest international know-hows and through on-hand trainings
to equip them with the necessary knowledge and communication
skills required to develop trust between them and their patients. The
GOLD™ programme is to honour UMP’s vision and purpose that
everyone should have access to trusted and affordable healthcare,
we will be developing into an organisation that will act as the bridge
to connect patients with their trusted family doctor, and to empower
the doctors we train to become trusted family doctors to their
patients. As of 30 June 2019, over 100 doctors have participated
in the GOLD™ training programme, and the doctors are practicing
among Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen and other cities in
mainland China.

We also made fund donations to Orbits to support their
sight-restoring mission as well as to Child Development Initiative
Alliance for gearing the disadvantaged children up for a better life
journey. We also donated the used computers to Caritas Hong Kong
as it was a good way to reduce the electronic waste and support the
needy. We also agreed to provide free services of telemedicine and
health promotion program to The Neighbourhood Advice-Action
Council.
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key performance
indicators (KPIs)

BE- - —RERER

GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

Descriptions

g

Related chapters

in this report

Remarks

kS

Aspect Al: Emissions
BEAT - BEY
General disclosure Information on: Our environment Our major operation is
— R EE KPR IRIE clinic and medical centre
(@) the policies operations and provision
of healthcare solutions.
(b)  compliance with relevant Our activities do not emit
laws and regulations that air pollutants in significant
have a significant impact quantities.
on the issuer related to &P BT AL
air and greenhouse gas B TR B2 7 TR 0 R 1S i B8 g
emissions, discharges RERERR TR o B R
into water and land, and N v B L o e
generation of hazardous and %iéﬁﬂﬁkgmmlﬁ
non-hazardous waste S
BREREORERBBEEN - KK
TS  AEENREEEEYN
EEEN
(@ B
(b) BEBFHETABEATENIE
A I AR
B & ¥
KPI AT.1 The types of emissions and N/A Our activities do not emit
B E BB IZEAT respective emissions data iE A air pollutants and effluents
Benk i TE 5 R AR B BE I EUE in significant quantities,
therefore the issue is not
material to the Group.
BN EBEBIERE
HEZERIS R RIFK -
Hit - ZFHEEAREET
TEK -
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BE - —REER
BEEMER

KPI A1.2
BASEAR AR FE1RAT.2

Descriptions

i

Greenhouse gas emissions in total
(in tonnes) and where appropriate,
intensity (e.g., per unit of
production volume, per facility)
BRERBAENE ANEFE) &
(MER)BE(MAGESEM -

SERIEE)

Related chapters
in this report

AR ERNEBEED

Our environment

HPIIRE

Remarks

B

Apart from indirect

emission reported, direct
but fugitive emission

of hydrofluorocarbon
(HFC) is expected in

small quantities as the
Group uses HFC-based
refrigerants for pharmacy
refrigerators.
BREREEEIER

S - R AN SR A BE
ek =R )
(hydrofluorocarbon * &%
HFC) R MRS H - 8T8
e P 8NERES
BRHOHFC -

KPI A1.3
B SRAR IR IRAT 3

Total hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g., per unit of
production volume, per facility)
PRELEEEEMBE (AMEH)
Rmam) #E (MASEES

7 - SHEBHE)

Our environment

BAWERE

KPI A1.4
FASAR IR IEIRAT 4

Total non-hazardous waste
produced (in tonnes) and where
appropriate, intensity (e.g., per
unit of production volume, per
facility)

PRELEZEENRE (JAME)
R(mam) zE (mMASEES
iz - BERMTHE)

Our environment

BAWERE

KPI AT.5
BB AR IR IRATS

Description of measures to
mitigate emissions and results

achieved

AR EBE R E MR RIS AR R

Our environment

HAFIEIRE
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KPI A1.6
BASEAR AN IEIRAT.6

Descriptions

ot

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous waste is handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved
HAREBEEREESEEYNA
ZECOREEEENRERIIEKRRE

Related chapters
in this report
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Our environment

BAFIEIRE

Remarks
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BHEA2 : BR{EA

Aspect A2: Use of resources

General disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of

Our environment

We consume municipal

production volume, per facility)
BREXKERETE (MABESEM
SERIEHE)

— PRI resources, including energy, water | F{fIAIRE water mainly for dental
and other raw materials services, but not in
BRERER(BEER KK significant quantities,

H AR B B9 BUR therefore the issue is not
material to the Group.
BZHERNBmAKRKEE
ARTEERE EREF
ReRAW ZFEEHAE
B TEKX -

KPI' A2.1 Direct or indirect energy Our environment

BB BUIBIZEA2.1 consumption by type (e.g., KMaisE
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh
in '000s) and intensity (e.g., per
unit of production volume, per
facility)

RENESMEE R SHEEER

(E - Reom) BEE (ATET

ERAE)MEE (MASEEE

i - BIERIEE
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total N/A We do not consume
B R R B EA2.2 and intensity (e.g., per unit of i A municipal water in

significant quantities,
therefore the issue is not
material to the Group.
BMPELEBRERBED
KoL FBRHAK
B EKX -
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BE - —REER

Descriptions

Related chapters
in this report

Remarks

ARARER i AR ERNEBEED B
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use Our environment
BB I IRA2.3 efficiency initiatives and results BRI B E
achieved
et ge TR A s st B R PR AR
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is N/A Water consumption
BB IR IZEA2.4 any issue in sourcing water that i B is minimal within our

is fit for purpose, water efficiency
initiatives and results achieved

e it SR ERGE A 7KOR L AT A {A] B
7 AR RK A & RIS
BES

operation. Therefore, the
issue is not material to the
Group.
BPIERBERKED -
b ZEEEAREEL T
BEX-

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for | Our environment
RA S4B BB 1RA2.5 finished products (in tonnes) and BRI IBIE
if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced
X m AR ERM R EE (AN
AE)R(MER) BEEEMGE
Aspect A3: The environment and natural resources
EBHEA3 : RERKABR
General disclosure Policies on minimising the N/A Our operation does
— R E issuer’s significant impact on the T iE A not have a significant

environment and natural resources
BIERBITAEHRBERRARERERK
ERAFENEE

impact on the natural
environment and the
availability of natural
resources. Therefore, the
issue is not material to the
Group.
BMNEBEHEARER
RABRNAIBENES
T At ZFERY

REBIFAEK -
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KPI A3.1
B S AR AR IRAS.T

Descriptions

g

Description of the significant
impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources
and the actions taken to manage
them

WA RB A ERERRAEIRD
EXFENCREDNEERATZEN
E

Related chapters

in this report

AEERNEEE

N/A
TE R

Remarks

o

Our operation does

not have a significant
impact on the natural
environment and the
availability of natural
resources. Therefore, the
issue is not material to the
Group.
BPNEBHBEARER
RABRNFIBENEE
ATE - Bt 2FEH
REBWTEK -

Aspect B1: Employment

EmB1 : EE

General disclosure

~RHE

Information on:
(a) the policies

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer related to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare

ERZM N EE BB RE -

THESE BY FEHKE 2T

b~ RIBARIA BB AR 738 R AR AR -

(@) B3R

(b) HEFEHBETABERTEMNA
Bk K AR B

HE R

Our employees

nfmES
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ARARER

Descriptions
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Aspect B2: Health and safety

EmB2 : gFELTE

RE - HEREREBE

Related chapters

in this report Remarks

AR ERNEBEED B

General disclosure

—REE

Information on:

(@) the policies

(b)  compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer related to
providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational
hazards

FERRHLETERRELRERE

MRBEMEREN

o

A

(@) HBK

(b) BTHBETABEAZENHE
BRORE R AR B

B E R

Our employees

BZHESR

Aspect B3: Development and training

BEB3 : HE R

General disclosure

—RIE

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work;
description of training activities
ERRTEREET TERAENNH
&3 2: 0028 I PUBE V)

Our employees

ZHmESR
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Descriptions

Aspect B4: Labour standards

Related chapters

in this report
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Remarks

o

General disclosure

—REE

Information on: (a) the policies (b)
compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer related to
prevention of child and forced
labour
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xR L#ﬂ%ﬁAﬁiK@%m
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Our employees

ZHESR

Our employment practices
follow the labour-related
regulations in Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland
China, and we do not
engage any child or forced
labour.
BAMEREEERE
7 ORI R B R 5
Iﬁ@ﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁiK
ZREEMETIHEHST -

[ETEBS : (EHEE IR

Aspect B5: Supply chain management

General disclosure

—RWE

Policies on managing
environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.
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Our services
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Aspects, general

disclosures and
key performance
indicators (KPlIs)
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Descriptions

i

Aspect B6: Product responsibility
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RE - HEREREBE

Related chapters
in this report Remarks

AR ERNEBEED B

General disclosure

—REE

Information on:
(@) the policies

(b)  compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on
the issuer related to health
and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy
matters related to products
and services provided and
methods of redress
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Our services
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Aspects, general
disclosures and
key performance Related chapters

indicators (KPIs) Descriptions in this report Remarks
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EMEB7 : RAS

General disclosure Information on: Our employees
—REE ZHmESR

(@) the policies

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on
the issuer related to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money

laundering
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Aspect B8: Community investment

[EMEBS : ttRIKRE

General disclosure Policies on community Our community
—MRE engagement to understand A )= okad

the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and

to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for FY2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are set out
in “Chairman Statement” on pages 4 to 18 of this annual report
and in “Management Discussion and Analysis“on pages 19 to 35 of
this annual report, which forms part of this report of Directors. The
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements. Besides,
the potential risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, key
relationship between the Group and its employees, customers and
suppliers, the environmental policies of the Group and compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact
are set out below.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Groups’ results and operations are subject to various factors
with the key risks summarised below:

Strategy Risk

As part of business strategy, the Group has recently begun to expand
its operations to certain major cities in the PRC. As the Group
has very limited experience in the PRC market, such expansion
strategies are subject to uncertainties and risks such as strain on
managerial, operational and financial resources, competition with
existing healthcare services providers in the PRC, differences in
the business, regulatory and political environment, difficulties
in obtaining the requisite permits, licences, certificates or other
government approvals in connection with the Group’s operation
in the PRC, difficulties in establishing a brand, reputation and
new customer base, difficulties in recruiting skilled and qualified
healthcare professionals and management personnel, and difficulties
in securing suitable premises for the medical centres. In addition,
the private healthcare market in the PRC is still developing.
Medical expenses of corporate employees are currently covered
by mandatory government insurance programmes. There is no
assurance that corporations in the PRC will be willing to top up
healthcare benefits payment for their employees and offer additional
healthcare services by private providers, such as the Group.
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Reputation Risk

The Group’s success in Hong Kong depends significantly on the
recognition of its brand and reputation as a leading corporate
healthcare solutions provider. However, Doctors, Dentists and
Auxiliary Services Providers working in the Group may from time
to time be subject to complaints, allegations or legal actions
regarding the adequacy of patient care, treatment outcome and
medical services provided, which may harm the business, results of
operations, financial condition, brand and reputation of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s business operations, Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary
Services Providers in the Group’s network working in Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC are subject to extensive laws, regulations
and licensing requirements, any failure to comply with such laws,
regulations or licensing requirement could harm the Group’s
business, results of operations, financial condition, brand and
reputation.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE GROUP
AND ITS EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing
high-quality services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s

sustainable development.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

As a responsible corporation, the Group recognises the importance
of good environmental stewardship. In this connection, the Group
strictly adopted and implemented policies and procedures to ensure
environmental protection. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment
and the environment. During FY2019, no environmental claims,
lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions were reported to our

management.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC while the Company
is a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
its Shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Our
establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC. During FY2019, our businesses were in
compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations in Cayman

Islands, Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC in all material aspects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The profit of the Group for FY2019 and the Group’s financial

position as at 30 June 2019 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 140 to 143 of this annual report.

The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK2.55
cents per Share for FY2019 (FY2018: HK2.35 cents) and proposed
that Shareholders be given the option to receive the proposed 2019
final dividend of HK2.55 cents per Share in new Shares in lieu of
cash (“Scrip Dividend Option”). The Scrip Dividend Option will be
subjected to the approval of Shareholders at the 2019 AGM to be
held on Wednesday, 20 November 2019 and the Stock Exchange
granting the listing of and permission to deal in the new Shares to
be issued pursuant thereto. The proposed 2019 final dividend is
expected to be distributed on Wednesday, 22 January 2020 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Friday, 6 December 2019. A circular containing details
of the Scrip Dividend Option will be despatched together with a
form of election for scrip dividend in December 2019.

Together with the interim dividend of HK0.65 cent per Share paid
in April 2019, the total distribution of dividend by the Company for
FY2019 will be HK3.2 cents per Share (FY2018: HK2.9 cents per
Share).

DIVIDENDS POLICY
The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the

“Dividend Policy”). The Company is endeavor to maintain sufficient
operating capital to develop and operate the Group’s business, and

to provide stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders.
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In considering the declaration and payment of dividends, the Board

will take into account the following factors:

o financial results;

o cash flow situation;

J business conditions and strategies;

o future operations and earnings;

. capital requirements and expenditure plans;

o interests of shareholders;

J any restrictions on payment of dividend; and

J any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Board will also constantly review the Dividend Policy and
reserve the discretion to update, revise, modify and/or cancel the
Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend will not in any way
constitute a legally binding commitment of the Group in relation to
its future dividends and/or will not in any way render the Company
obligated to declare dividends at any time or from time to time.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2019
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 18 November 2019 to Wednesday, 20 November 2019,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify as members entitled to attend and
vote at the meeting, investors should lodge all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms
with the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15
November 2019.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed 2019 final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 5 December 2019 to Friday, 6 December 2019 both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 4 December
2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material subsequent events undertaken by the
Company or by the Group after 30 June 2019 and up to the date of
this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on
page 324. This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the share capital and share options
of the Company for FY2019 are set out in notes 33 and 34 to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during FY2019.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for FY2019
are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” of this annual report.

As at 30 June 2019, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to HK$415,060,000, of which
HK$19,324,000 has been proposed as final dividend for FY2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the Group’s property,
plant and equipment are set out in note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements in this annual report.

BORROWINGS
During FY2019, the Group did not have any bank borrowings

or entering into any bank loan facility and as at 30 June 2019,
the Group had no outstanding bank loans, other borrowings or
indebtedness.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of pledge of assets during the year are set out in section
headed “Pledge of Assets” in the “Management Discussion and

Analysis” of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During FY2019, the revenue attributable to the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 19.3% of the Group’s revenue for the
year and the largest customer included therein accounted for 8.7%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less

than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or
any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
shareholders of the Company that owned more than 5% of the
issued Shares had any direct or indirect interest in the five largest

customers or the five largest suppliers of the Group during FY2019.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during FY2019 and up to the date of

this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (Managing Director)
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John sBs jp

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss jp

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike
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RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. The details of Directors (as
required by the Listing Rules) who will retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM, will be provided in
the accompanying circular. The re-election of each Director will
be subject to vote of shareholders of the Company by separate

resolutions.

Accordingly, Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen
and Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael shall retire by rotation at the 2019
AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each Director has disclosed to the Company the names and the titles
and nature of office held in the public companies or organisations
prior to the acceptance of the appointment and promised to inform
the Company timely of any relevant change. The Company will also
require Directors to submit written confirmation twice a year, and
update their biographical details, if any.

THE BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Company are set out in pages 36 to 48 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATIONS FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view

that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees in the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Details of the remuneration payable to the senior management in the

Group are as follows:

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

BUFIITESNELRRS

ARRARDEEBYIFRTESTTARELT
BRANEI MR B85 - sLEB I
HEOERFERER - ARRARBRABBILIE
HWITESYBBILAL -

EENBRBEEN
BEEFRAQ R L TUMAARLH
RIS B 2 B — 4 PO AR A TSR 78 R B 1 O
ERERIN) ORBERRBAD -

EERGREEENTH

EERAKEREARRHEENTMFEE
RAFHREE M BRI TR -

ENAEESREZEAENFMFBOT :

Number of senior
management
(FY2019)
EREEBAY
(2019 L F )

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$1,500,000 or below

2,500,001%8 7T 23,500,000/ 7T 1
1,500,00178 7t £2,500,0007% 7T 1
1,500,000/8 T2 LA T 5

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR



102

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRSE

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee periodically. The
emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and are decided by the Board, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable

market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes and a share
award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and eligible
participants. Details of the schemes are set out in pages 107 to 115

of this report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during FY2019.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, East Majestic
Group Limited and EM Team Limited, our controlling Shareholders,
have undertaken to the Company in a deed of non-compete
undertaking that, subject to and except as mentioned in the
Prospectus, they would not carry on, engage, invest, participate
or otherwise be interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete with any of the existing and/or future businesses
carried on by any member of the Group in relation to the provision
of corporate healthcare solutions and consultancy services in non-
UMP medical centres in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.

Each of them has confirmed in writing to the Company of
their compliance with the deed of non-compete undertaking
for disclosure in this annual report during FY2019. No new
business opportunity was informed by them as at 30 June 2019.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the deed of non-compete undertaking and are of
the view that the non-competition undertakings have been complied
with by Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, East Majestic Group Limited and EM
Team Limited for FY2019.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business
at any time during FY2019 and up to and including the date of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 30 June 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be entered into the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were set out below:
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34201981 B 4 [ PO il B5 B B AR 40 %5
8 (BEEE) I BEEFRAAEEESMN
ShEREEEREE LB E BN
T A M 8 T M 3 58 R ] 5 R
A -

EERRETRAERAQRANR
HEBZIBENKRGD HBEROK
BENERERAR

M2019F6A308 ' EER AR A HZEEITH
AERARFNEFMEEEZB (EERES
RERE EBIEXVER) ARG - ERHD &,
HEHF(RFBERAE)R  BERBELSR
HEKFIEXVEE7TRESDBMAMNG AR
AR R AT R AR (BREESREZSE
FBHENMBEKRIEXMERIEREEEERN
B NKR) » HBARERARFREZES N
HEKROEISEBEFEN SR MANER R
#KE - HIRBRETFAMANE AR R R
RS RABIT ¢

(i) The Company (i) AT
Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares ~ Note  shareholding (%)
Rt/ 88
EEfs R/ %R gt RO#E ME  BOBREA%
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Long position Beneficial owner 16,726,000
BRIBE 78 BEBAA
Long position Interest held by his
#8 controlled corporations 243,756,343 1
BamAEHEERE
Long position Beneficial owner 700,000 3
5§ ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 2,300,000 4
R 53 2PN
263,482,343 34.77
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Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares ~ Note shareholding (%)
Rt/ 88
Esng #R/ AR af Bo#E ME  BOBRLA%
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen Long position Beneficial owner 17,748,657
BEERLE iR EGBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 11,380,000 2
fF8 ERBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 500,000 3
iR ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 4
fFe BaBAA
31,128,657 4.11
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 600,000 2
BRERE R BEBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 400,000 3
R ESfAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 4
R BEBAA
2,500,000 0.33
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 12,590,000
EXBEL iR ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 400,000 3
5y ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 4
iR ERBAA
14,490,000 1.91
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Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares ~ Note  shareholding (%)
Rt/ 88
Esng #e/ %R gt Bo#E ME  BOBRLA%
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Long position Beneficial owner 1,238,000
e i 7R ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 10,242,000 2
7e ERAEA
Long position Beneficial owner 500,000 3
7R ERBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 4
7R EGBBA
13,480,000 1.78
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 19,565,000
FREBE R 532U
Long position Beneficial owner 400,000 3
iR ERBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 4
R EEBBEA
21,465,000 2.83
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP Long position Beneficial owner 200,000
SUBRE(WENEE XTVHL) R ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 300,000 4
7R EaBEA
500,000 0.07
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $BS JP Long position Beneficial owner 308,000
SERBL (HENEE X TPHL) HR 532U
Long position Beneficial owner 300,000 4
iR ERBAA
608,000 0.08
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike Long position Beneficial owner 200,000 4 0.03

BRERE

72

EafAA
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(ii)

Notes:

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong is deemed to be interested in the 199,601,343
Shares held by East Majestic Group Limited, being his controlled
corporation, and is also deemed to be interested in 44,155,000
Shares held by EM Team Limited, also being his controlled
corporation.

These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options
granted by the Company on 18 August 2015 pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

These Shares represented the share award granted by the Company
on 17 July 2018 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options
granted by the Company on 6 November 2018 pursuant to the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Associated Corporations (within the meaning of the

SFO)

Procare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited®

(ii)

GEX

1. FERIBEABEKANHERIEZEZHE
East Majestic Group Lxmlted?—rﬁm
199,601,343 A xR - TR
BRRAEAEZABEM Team Limited
FEH #944,155,00008 Bz 0 R A e 2s ©

2. ZERMIEARAN201568 818 RIE
BRARBEAMBERETERDLNER
I THEBEARG -

3. ZERMIEARRN20185F7 A17BRIE
AR 15 SE B &t B35 H WO B A9 58 R

4. ZERMIEARAN2018F11 A6 BRI

BRAFREERBREAIRBOER
IR T EARR R

HEZE(EEREEZRAEKH)

ERBBEXARLLBPLERAFO

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Long/short position Capacity shares (%)
BARR 5
Exgs BR KR =87 B EE (%)
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael  Long position Beneficial owner 625 6.25
BXREL A BamlA A
Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited® ABEE DL RPOBERAIF?
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Long/short position Capacity shares (%)
B4 5 IR )
E=ps BR/ KR &4 R & E (%)
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael  Long position Beneficial owner 95 6.33
BXEBL A BamlEA A
Notes: M 5E

(M

UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, holds 62.5% of the entire issued share capital of Procare
Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited.

UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, holds 20% of the entire issued share capital of Causeway
Bay MRI Centre Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, none of the Directors
or Chief Executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, namely
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option

Scheme.

Pre-IPO Share option Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 18
August 2015. Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as
follows:

(@) Purpose
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentive or reward to eligible participants for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of, the Company and to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees. In determining the basis of
eligibility of each eligible participants, the Board would take
into account such factors as the Board may at its discretion

consider appropriate.
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B EXXFT#H T &SN - R2019F6A30H - &
ERARAEBITEABRAR A & H
EE(EERESRBEKRAEXVE) M9
H - HEARDREST  BEEEREES
KB EHIEXVEE7 R B D B MAME AR
AR RBRITHEAERSAR (BREESER
BZEEF R E OGS AR fE R & 1
BAENERIOKE) @ JIRBFES RS KO
E352{F AR BN % IR AT I B S A (R dE
PARE - KB BIRETE MEARRQ A K
R EAR ©

BRREsTE
AR R AR AR AT B BDE R DB
BENBRES B RERAMEERBRIE

AHEl .

BRAAHREBRETE
KARR2015F8A18ARMB RN ABEE
ATIEARAERT B - X N F B E AT EIRERTE
BT

@ B
BRARABEAERETEEEREE
BR2EEHAEENERMREES A
AN B A F &5 (A P9 1 S 22 B e 52
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(b)

Summary of Key terms

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon full
exercise of all outstanding share options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 27,008,000, being
approximately 3.56% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 30 June 2019.

The subscription price for the Shares under the options
granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
HK$1.2228 per Share.

All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme may only exercise their options in the
following manner: (i) 10% of the option shares shall only
be exercisable from the first anniversary of the grant date
up to and including the end of the Option Period; and
(ii) 90% of the option shares shall only be exercisable
from the second anniversary of the grant date up to and
including the end of the Option Period.

The “Option Period” means the period from the Listing
Date and end on the date immediately before the seventh
anniversary of the Listing Date.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was only in force
during the period from 18 August 2015 to 9 November
2015, and no further options are to be granted thereunder
but in all other respects the provisions of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
to the exercise of any options granted.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

FERRBPE

AREBEEXAFREEFIERES
FEREBNMBRITEBRER
BHITEMB TEITHRMDER
F R %&27,008,0000% @ Bl A& R 7]
MR2019F 6 A30F B B ITR AL
3.56% °

BREBXAARAESAHERESTS
HEMBREEBTROREES
FA%1.22287 7T, ©

BEE X RS ERETE
ERBRENMARE ARAR
THN TR AT AP A REARAE - ()ER
AR AD Y1 0% (2 ] AR B Hi—
FAFEEEZBREARER (B
B H) 1T - KB IRERH &
WwREANRELBHMEFEESR
BRESRAR(RIEER) LT
fif o

(BREHRIELMAREEER
& b HEE AT B B AR -

BRAHBERNBERETEER
20158 A18H £2015F 11 H9H
HEAEN - BRI BRILE—F
ROERE  HERARBERE
R EMIEXERBEMAE
BHETEEAEREEREDRA
BEBETRBRARIER -



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

(c) Outstanding options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option  (c)

Scheme

Details of movements of the share options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme for the year ended 30 June 2019

REEALAHZEIBRETZCE Y
91 R AT R B AR A
HZE2019F6 308 EFEREH AR
MEEmERESSRENBRES

are as follows: FIBEWT
As at Granted Exercised  Cancelled/ Asat
Exercise price  Exercise 1 July during during  Lapsed during 30 June
Grantee Position Date of grant per Share period 2018 theperiod  the period the period 2019
i i H2018% i Bh RonoE
ERA Bf REBE BROKE R 7RI BARE  BATE  HE#/AN 68308
(dd/mmpyy) (HK$)  (dd/mmiyy)
/88 @D @A
Directors
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen Managing Director and 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 1,138,000 - > - 1,138,000
CEb S Executive Director 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 = 5 - 10,242,000
BELANRNNES
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Exeggtive Director 18/08/2015 1.2228  18/08/2016-26/11/2022 60,000 - - - 60,000
BRRRE #17g% 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 540,000 - = = 540,000
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Exegl‘mve Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 60,000 - 60,000 - -
AXBEE #1782 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 540,000 - 540,000 - -
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Exeggt]ve Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 - - - 10,242,000
FFBLE §nEs
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick Executive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 200,000 - 200,000 - -
HEEL HES 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 = =
Sub-total: 24,822,000 2,600,000 22,222,000
g
Employees
g
In aggregate
At - 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 3,186,000 - - - 3,186,000
Sub-total: 3,186,000 - - - 3,186,000
b
Other eligible grantees
EtAERARA
In aggregate - 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 220,000 - 60,000 - 160,000
ait 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 1,980,000 - 540,000 - 1,440,000
Sub-total: 2,200,000 600,000 1,600,000
g
To@al: 30,208,000 3,200,000 27,008,000
it

Note: The weighted average closing prices of the Shares immediately before the

BsE

dates on which the share options were exercised by Dr. Sun Man Kin,
Michael, Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick and the Other eligible grantee were
HK$1.76, HK$1.78 and HK$1.66 respectively.

BRERANBRELE THEBERHEMEER
EEATERREE BRIRG 2 miEFHk
MED R AE1.7677T ~ 1.788 T K1.668TT ©
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme on 2
November 2015. Details of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are

as follows:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purpose

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
incentivise and reward the Eligible Persons (as defined in
sub- paragraph (b) below) for their contribution to the Group
and to align their interests with that of the Company so as to
encourage them to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company.

Participants

The Board (including any committee or delegate of the
Board appointed by the Board to perform any of its functions
pursuant to the rules of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme)
may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant an option
to subscribe for such number of Shares as the Board may
determine to an employee (whether full-time or part-time) or a
director of a member of the Group or associated companies of
the Company (the “Eligible Persons”).

Total number of securities available for issue

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes (including but not
limited to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of

Shares in issue as at the Listing Date.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No options shall be granted to any Eligible Person under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other Share option
schemes of the Company which, if exercised, would result in
such Eligible Person becoming entitled to subscribe for such
number of Shares as, when aggregated with the total number of
Shares already issued or to be issued to him under all options
granted to him (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of offer of such options, exceeds 1% of the Shares in issue at

such date.
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(e)

)

(g

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option

Any vested option which has not lapsed and which conditions
have been satisfied or waived by the Board in its sole
discretion may, unless the Board determines otherwise in its
absolute discretion, be exercised at any time from the next
business day after the offer of options has been accepted. Any
option which remain unexercised shall lapse upon the expiry
of the option period, which period shall be determined by the
Board and shall not exceed ten years from the offer date of the

option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period
for which an option must be held and performance targets that

must be achieved before an option can be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on acceptance of
the option

An offer of options shall be open for acceptance in writing
or by telex or facsimile transmission or (if the Board agree)
by electronic communication received by the Chairman (or a
person designated by him with the approval of the Board) for
such period (not exceeding 30 days inclusive of, and from,
the date of offer) as the Board may determine and notify to
the Eligible Person concerned provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the expiry of the duration
of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. An offer of options not
accepted within this period shall lapse.

An amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the
grant of an option and such payment shall not be refundable
and shall not be deemed to be a part payment of the exercise
price.
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(h) Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the
Board and notified to an option-holder and which shall not
be less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of offer of the option; (ii) the average of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

(i) Life of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will expire automatically
on the day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of
the Listing Date, subject to early termination provisions in the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The summary below sets out the details of the movement during the
year ended 30 June 2019 of all the options granted pursuant to the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme:

(h)

(i)

BETEENEE
TEEERARESEETY BNBRE
FEANER  RTISERATHRS
EF:(O)RORBREEYN R BN AR
FHEBERMIOEHE : (DRORE
ERPEZNABAER S B RBR
P A RERMAIIFHRHE : Riii)
A EE -

BEROMBERBRETENES
REBEERXAHZERBIRETEONEN
AR - BRARBERERE S
BEERE EMBESM+BFI—XaBE
o

UWTEEEBEE R AMEESEERET
EEENAEBREREZ2019F6A30H

IEFEEHE

B

Number of Shares issuable under the share options

BREETUFRTRAEA
Cancelled/
lapsed As at
Exercise As at Granted Exercised during 30 June
Date of price  Exercise 1]uly 2018 during during the period 2019
Name grant per Share  period 20185 the period the period B R2019%
#e REAH SROEE EH 7A1A BRE BRiE /4% 6A308
(dd/mmiyyyy) (HKS)  (ddimmiyyyy) (Note 1)
(B/R/%) (A1) (R/B/%) (FizE1)
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman, Chief - 30/06/2016 127 30/06/2018-29/06/2021 1,213,000 - 1,213,000 - -
Executive Officer and Executive (Note 3)
Director) (BzE3)
RRIRE (158 THEH 06/11/2018 206 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 = 2,300,000 S - 2,300,000
FHEE)
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, 06/11/2018 2,06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
Jacquen (Managing Director and
Executive Director)
DERRT (EZLE4ERHTEE)
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick 06/11/2018 2,06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
(Executive Director)
ERERE(HEE)
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael 06/11/2018 2,06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
(Executive Director)
EXBRE(H17EE)
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix 06/11/2018 2.06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
(Executive Director)
SRREEHIES)
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick 06/11/2018 2,06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000

(Executive Director)

gL (H77EZ)
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Number of Shares issuable under the share options

BREETTFRORMBEUE
Cancelled/
lapsed As at
Exercise As at Granted Exercised during 30 June
Date of price  Exercise 1]uly 2018 during during the period 2019
Name grant per Share period #2018% the period the period L #2019%
e RiHAH BRAKE A 7R1B AR BNk H#/ 5% 6£308
(dd/mmiyyyy) (HKS)  (dd/mm/yyyy) (Note 1)
(B/R/%) (Bn) (B/R/%) (B
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP 06/1172018 206 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 - 300,000 - - 300,000
(Independent Non-executive
Director)
FRBLE (WEHEE XTHL)
(BU#ifEE)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $BS JP 06/11/2018 206 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 - 300,000 - S 300,000
(Independent Non-executive
Director)
FEARSE (REHEE A THT)
(BUFHEE)
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike 06/1172018 2.06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 = 200,000 = = 200,000
(Independent Non-executive
Director)
BRAKE(BUHHER)
Sub-total:
It 1,213,000 10,600,000 1,213,000 - 10,600,000
Employees
&
In aggregate
Ak 23/03/2017 206 30/06/2017-29/06/2022 340,000 - - - 340,000
2310312017 206 30/06/2018-29/06/2022 330,000 - - - 330,000
23/03/2017 2.06  30/06/2019-29/06/2022 330,000 - - 330,000 S
06/1172018 206 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
05/0512019 1.56  04/05/2020-03/05/2025 750,000 = = 750,000
(Note 2)
GiE#)
05/05/2019 1.5 04/05/2021-03/05/2025 1,500,000 = = 1,500,000
(Note 2)
(Hik2)
05/05/2019 1.56  04/05/2022-03/05/2025 2,250,000 = = 2,250,000
(Note 2)
(M)
Sub-total:
It 1,000,000 5,500,000 - 330,000 6,170,000
Other eligible grantees
EABRARA
In aggregate 06/1172018 206 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 = 1,000,000 = = 1,000,000
GES 05/05/2019 156 04/05/2020-03/05/2025 - 250,000 - - 250,000
(Note 2)
GiE2)
05/05/2019 156 04/05/2021-03/05/2025 500,000 - = 500,000
(Note 2)
(K2
05/0512019 1.56  04/05/2022-03/05/2025 750,000 - - 750,000
(Note 2)
ik:2)
Sub-total:
It - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
Total
At 2,213,000 18,600,000 1,213,000 330,000 19,270,000
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(1) The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the
share options were granted was HK$1.75 per share.

(2)  The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the
share options were granted was HK$1.56 per share.

(3)  The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the
date on which the share options were exercised by Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong was
HK$1.76.

The estimated fair value of the share options granted during the
year ended 30 June 2019 was approximately HK$13.5 million. The
estimated fair value of the share options granted was measured using
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the fair value per share
option of HK$0.73, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted.

The fair values calculated are inherently subjective and uncertain
due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the model used.
The value of a share option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Any change in variables so adopted may

materially affect the estimation of the fair value of a share option.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was expired, cancelled
or lapsed under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 30 June 2019.

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon full exercise
of all the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is 73,600,000,
being 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date.

The total number of Shares currently available for issue under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is 19,270,000 Shares, representing
approximately 2.54% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2019.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME
The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on 30 June

2016, to recognise the contributions of and provide incentives
for the key management personnel including Directors and senior
management, employed experts and employees of the Group.
Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board,
pursuant to the trust deed, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption
date. The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a
selected participant under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed
one per cent (1%) of the issued share capital of the Company in
each year. The Board shall not make any further award of awarded
shares which will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded
by the Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding two per cent
(2%) of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

As at 30 June 2019, the details of the share award granted and
outstanding under the Share Award Scheme are set out as follow:
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% 17 22 B 5t &l
KABRER20165F6A308 A M D EE =T
2 ERPEHTEEEAES (BEEEN
BREEREE AEEXEERKEES)FIE
Rt XEE QR REE TN EMIRATR LR
IR RIREERE  BRHOEEEREMNE
BT T ERMAR L AR - RIERDER
EAETRELEENBROEE LRT
BBEARASFERTRANED Z—
1%) - BEZEMERIIMNSEREZSR
BROBEAEBHBAARRTREET
BRAHBE D ZZQ%) ZRNHEENE—F1
B -

M2019F 6 A308 - WH EEFFEI B TER
B EARITE 2RO SEEFEEH T

Cancelled/
Granted during Vested during lapsed during As at
Name Exercise period Asat 1 July 2018 the period the period the period 30 June 2019
## L R2018%7A18 Rk AABE BACHE/ KX R2019F6A30A
Directors 30/06/2019-30/06/2021 = 2,900,000 2,900,000 = 2,900,000
EE
Other eligible grantee(s) 30/06/2019-30/06/2021 = 400,000 400,000 = 400,000
Rt R ERARA
30/06/2019-30/06/2020 = 1,305,000 1,165,000 140,000 1,165,000
30/06/2020-30/06/2021 = 1,305,000 = 140,000 1,165,000
Total
A3 - 5,910,000 4,465,000 280,000 5,630,000
Notes: M et
1. The date of grant was on 17 July 2018. 1. Y BEA2018E7 3178
2% The exercise price per awarded share is HK$1.5. 2. EREERD 2T EE A1 55T -

Certain Shares have been purchased and 5,910,000 awarded
shares have been granted under the Share Award Scheme. A total
of 280,000 awarded shares have lapsed during the period and
4,465,000 awarded shares have been vested during the year ended
30 June 2019.

ERBERMDEBFEEESTROEED
5,910,0000% 2B A% 10 ° L 2201956 H30H
IEFE - 53£280,0000% #ENAX (5 B R EIAK
B 4,465,000 HE)RH BEHB °
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Share Award Scheme” in this report, at no time
during FY2019 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance subsisted in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, during or at the end of
FY2019.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

Under the Articles, every Director and officer of the Company acting
in relation to any of the affairs of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs and damages and expenses which
they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or omitted in
or about the execution of their duties in their respective office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’

liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’” INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2019, so far as was known to the Directors of the
Company, the following persons/entities (other than the Directors
or Chief Executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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FERRREAQARG REER
DR R RE

201956 H308 - BARRIESZA - I
TAL/ BE(ZEZSARARaTRABR
M) AR RIRI IR SR BARR (0 AP HE B S AR
BEBAREESRBEGEXVIEE2RS
2 B SC R A A &) B B 32 BT Y FE O M A A
B HRENARRAREES KIS K
FE3BeTFEMBTLMAMES AR -

Interests Approximate
Name of substantial Long/short Number of Shares/  under equity percentage of
shareholder position Capacity underlying shares derivatives  Notes shareholding
. BRATETIA
TERREH #R/ %R BH ke HERG®E ETzEz KW BA R
(%)
East Majestic Group Limited  Long position  Beneficial owner 199,601,343 - 1 26.34
) ESBEA
EM Team Limited Long position  Beneficial owner 44,155,000 = 1 5.83
e Eal
Cheng Yu Tung Family Long position  Interest held by its 110,411,000 - 2 14.57
(Holdings 11) Limited HE _controlled corporations
BEMETEERE
Cheng Yu Tung Family Long position  Interest held by its 110,411,000 - 2 14.57
(Holdings) Limited FE _controlled corporations
BEMETEERE
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 - 2 14.57
HE _controlled corporations
BEMETEERE
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Long position  Interest held by its 110,411,000 - 2 14.57
Limited HE _controlled corporations
AARE(ER)BRAF BRmERIPEERE
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Long position  Interest held by its 110,411,000 - 2 14.57
Limited HHE _ controlled corporation
AABERBRAT BRmERIPEERE
Healthcare Ventures Long position  Beneficial owner 110,411,000 - 2 14.57
) ESBEA
China Resources National Long position  Interest held by its 97,311,000 - 3 12.84
Corporation 3 _controlled corporations
FEEBRARF BamEXTEERE
CR Medical Long position  Interest held by its 97,311,000 - 3 12.84
ZEER HE _controlled corporations
BumERTEERE
Law Siu Wah Eddie Long position Interest held by its - 110,411,000 4 14.57
BEF HE controlled corporations

BRBERBEERSE
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Notes:

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong was deemed to be interested in the 199,601,343 Shares
held by East Majestic Group Limited, being his controlled corporation, and
was also deemed to be interested in the 44,155,000 Shares held by EM
Team Limited, also being his controlled corporation. Dr. Sun’s interests in
Shares are disclosed in this annual report in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its associated Corporations”.

Healthcare Ventures was wholly-owned by CTFE, which was wholly-owned
by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (“CTFH”). CTFH was held as to
81.03% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited (“CTFC”), which was in
turn held as to 48.98% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited
(“CYTF”) and as to 46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
(“CYTFIl”). By virtue of the SFO, CTFE, CTFH, CTFC, CYTF and CYTFIl were
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Healthcare
Ventures was interested.

Pinyu Limited was the beneficial owner of the Shares. Pinyu Limited was
wholly owned by Unison Champ Limited, which was wholly owned by CR
Medical. CR Medical was held as to 35.7% by CRH (Phoenix Healthcare)
Limited and as to 0.82% by Commotra Company Limited. CRH (Phoenix
Healthcare) Limited was wholly owned by China Resources Healthcare
Group Limited, which was wholly owned by CRH (Healthcare) Limited.
Both CRH (Healthcare) Limited and Commotra Company Limited were
wholly owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, which
was wholly owned by CRC Bluesky Limited. CRC Bluesky Limited was
wholly owned by China Resources Co., Limited, which was wholly owned
by China Resources National Corporation. By virtue of the SFO, Unison
Champ Limited, CR Medical, CRH (Phoenix Healthcare) Limited, China
Resources Healthcare Group Limited, CRH (Healthcare) Limited, China
Resources Co., Limited, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, CRC
Bluesky Limited and China Resources National Corporation were deemed to
be interested in the same parcel of shares of the Company in which Pinyu
Limited was interested.

This represented an aggregate of 110,411,000 underlying shares comprised
in unlisted warrants granted to Humble Guard Limited, Colour Sino Limited
and Claymore Global Limited pursuant to the subscription agreement dated
24 October 2018. Each of Humble Guard Limited, Colour Sino Limited and
Claymore Global Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Law Siu Wah Eddie. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Law Siu Wah Eddie is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Humble Guard Limited, Colour Sino Limited and Claymore
Global Limited
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According to disclosure of interest filings available on the Stock
Exchange website, Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd. (“SLCMF”)
and Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. (“SLCMLF")
beneficially owned 100,000,000 and 20,640,000 Shares
respectively. SLCMF was held as to 80.93% by Snow Lake China
Offshore Fund, Ltd. (“SLCOFL”) and accordingly SLCOFL was
deemed to be interested in the 100,000,000 Shares held by SLCMF
pursuant to the SFO. Snow Lake Capital Limited (“SLCL”) and
Snow Lake Capital (HK) Limited (“SLCHKL”), which were wholly
controlled by Mr. Ma Sean, were the investment manager and
the investment adviser to both SLCMF and SLCMLF respectively.
Accordingly, Mr. Ma Sean, SLCL and SLCHKL were deemed to be
interested in the aggregate holding of 120,640,000 Shares owned
by SLCMF and SLCMLF pursuant to the SFO, representing, for
illustrative purpose, 15.91% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 30 June 2019. Out of these 120,640,000 Shares,
86,984,000 Shares (representing, for illustrative purpose, 11.47% of
the total issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2019) are
interests in cash-settled equity derivatives.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, the Directors
have not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or
Chief Executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save for the transactions mentioned below, none of such related
party transactions constituted a non-exempt connected transaction
or a continuing connected transaction of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as and where applicable and relevant.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected transactions RRTERERS
The Company has entered into certain non-exempt continuing ARXAREFINE TIHREHFERER
connected transactions, the annual caps and the actual transaction 2019 BRFENFE LR EERR 45
amounts of which for FY2019 are set out as follows: AT
Actual transaction
Annual cap for Amount for
the year ended the year ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2019
Connected transaction Connected Person (HK$’000) (HK$’000)
BE2019F BE2019F
6A30BLFE 6A30HLFE
NEELR NERRZER
BERXS BEAL (FER) (FEx)
A Property Leasing Framework Agreement Rich Point Group 4,300,000 4,180,158
NEREERGE BEXE
B. Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick  Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick 6,000,000 4,510,337
BRRERINERBE FHEBL
C. Medical Services Framework Agreement CTFE 27,000,000 17,648,735
ERRGERDS YNNI S
D. Medical Services and Administration Agreement HAML 28,000,000 4,234,547
BERGLEE RS BREEER

The above non-exempt continuing connected transactions are LL?F%% iﬁiﬁ EXGRABTRE NG

subject to reporting, announcement and, in respect to items (C) and AR (b D)IR) B RERIERTE ©

(D) above, independent shareholders” approval requirements.

In respect of item (C) above, upon the listing of the Company’s #t E#ll(CQ)BME © NAR B B BT =
Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Stock R @ BiXFI#/EHTEREBRERIH
Exchange approved the annual caps of this continuing connected & & FFR - W E % A A 538 57 78 3 IR R L&
transaction and granted a waiver to the Company from compliance  #i7E °

with independent shareholders’” approval requirements.
In respect of item (D) above, the Company obtained approval from Ft Eili(D)EME @ AARER20179F288H

its independent shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of BT AR R REFRI AL FRESEBIK
the Company held on 8 February 2017. RELE -
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Property Leasing Framework Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Rich Point Group
entered into a property leasing framework agreement (the
“Previous Property Leasing Framework Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Group leased properties from Rich Point Group
for the purposes of operating medical centres and warehouses.
During FY2019, the Group agreed to continue leasing the
properties leased from the Rich Point Group after the expiry
of the Previous Property Leasing Framework Agreement. On
6 September 2018, the Company entered into a new property
leasing framework agreement (“Property Leasing Framework
Agreement”) with Rich Point in respect of the properties of the
Rich Point Group for a term up to 30 June 2021. The major
terms of the agreement are set out as follows:

o with respect to the relevant leased properties, the
Company and/or its subsidiaries and the relevant
Rich Point Group member shall enter into individual
agreements which prescribe specific terms and conditions
of the leasing arrangements, including rental amount,

payment method and other relevant terms;

e the terms of the individual agreements shall be on normal
commercial terms or, from the Group’s perspective, more

favourable to the Group;

o the rental amounts payable under the lease agreements
shall reflect the then prevailing market rates and no less
favourable than the terms and conditions offered by
independent landlords or lessors of comparable premises;
and

o the Property Lease Framework Agreement shall
commence from the Listing Date until 30 June 2021 and

may be renewed by mutual consent of the parties.
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The management has made reference to the historical rentals
paid for such properties to ensure that the rents payable
under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement are fair
and reasonable to the Group. Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of
the Company, holds more than 30% interests in Rich Point.
Accordingly, Rich Point is an associate of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
and a connected person under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Property
Leasing Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The annual cap for the total rent paid by the Company to
Rich Point Group for FY2019 was HK$4,300,000 and the
actual amount paid or payable to Rich Point Group was
HK$4,180,158.

Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung Patrick

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick entered into a consultancy agreement (the
“Previous Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick”), pursuant to which the Group appointed Dr. Lee
Pak Cheung, Patrick, as a consultant to provide Medical
Services, in particular Dental Services, to the Group. During
FY2019, the Group agreed to continue engaging Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick as a consultant after the expiry of the Previous
Consultancy Agreement. On 6 September 2018, the Company
entered into the Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick for a term up to 30 June 2021. The major
terms of the agreement are set out as follows:

o Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick shall provide Dental Services
to the Group;

J the annual fees charged by Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick
to the Group shall be negotiated on an arm’s length
basis, and shall be on normal commercial terms which,
from the Group’s perspective, are expected to be no less
favourable than those which the relevant members of
the Group could obtain from independent consultants of
similar expertise, experience and reputation for similar

role, scope of services and responsibilities; and
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J the Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick shall commence from the Listing Date until 30
June 2021 and may be renewed by mutual consent of the

parties.

The Company has made reference to historical aggregate fees
paid by the Group for medical services provided by Dr. Lee
Pak Cheung Patrick of similar scope of services to ensure that
the consultancy fees payable are fair and reasonable to the

Company.

Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick is a director of the subsidiaries
of the Company, and accordingly, a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the Consultancy Agreement
with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the consultancy fees paid by the Company
to Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick for FY2019 was HK$6,000,000
and the actual amount paid or payable to Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick was HK$4,510,337.

Medical Services Framework Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and CTFE has entered
into a medical services framework agreement (the “Previous
Medical Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Group shall provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary Services
to the employees of CTFE and/or its associates. During FY2019,
the Group agreed to continue providing medical, dental and
auxiliary services to the employees of CTFE and its associates
after the expiry of the Previous Medical Services Framework
Agreement. On 6 September 2018, the Company entered into
the Medical Services Framework Agreement for a term up to
30 June 2021. The major terms of the agreement are set out as

follows:

e the Group shall provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary
Services to the employees of CTFE and its associates;
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e the relevant members of the Group shall enter into
individual agreements which prescribe specific terms and
conditions, including scope of medical services, service

amount, payment method and other terms;

e the terms of, and the service amounts payable under,
each individual agreement will be negotiated on a case-
by-case and on an arm’s length basis, and shall be on
normal commercial terms which, from the Group’s
perspective, are no less favourable than those which
the relevant members of the Group could offer to
independent third parties, with a comparable scope of

services; and

o the Medical Services Framework Agreement shall
commence from the Listing Date for a term of three years
and may be renewed by mutual consent of the parties.

The management has made reference to the prevailing price of
medical services offered by the Group to other customers and
the historical service fees the Company received for medical
services with a similar scope to ensure that the service amounts
payable during the service period are fair and reasonable to the
Company.

CTFE is a substantial shareholder of the Company and,
accordingly, a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Medical Services Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees to be received by the
Company from CTFE for FY2019 was HK$27,000,000 and the
actual amount received or receivable by the Company was
HK$17,648,735.
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Medical Services and Administration Agreement with HAML
On 15 December 2016, the Company and HAML entered into
a medical services and administration agreement (the “Medical
Services and Administration Agreement”) to govern certain
transactions between the Group and HAML and its subsidiaries
(the “HAML Group”). The major terms of the agreement are set
out as follows:

o the Company shall, or procure the members of the Group
and their respective associates to, on a non- exclusive
basis, make available the medical centre network of the
members of the Group and their respective associates in
the PRC and Hong Kong and provide Medical, Dental
and Auxiliary Services to members or customers of the
HAML Group;

. HAML shall, or procure its subsidiaries to, on a non-
exclusive basis, make available the medical centre
network of the HAML Group in the PRC and Hong Kong
and provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary Services to
members or customers of the Group and their respective
associates;

e the Company and HAML shall enter into, or procure
their subsidiaries or associates to enter into, separate
contracts for the Medical, Dental and Auxiliary Services
in accordance with the principle of the Medical Services
and Administration Agreement to set out the specific
terms and conditions of the services, including but not
limited to the scope of services, service amount, payment
method and other relevant terms;

e  the service fees shall be determined by the relevant
parties through arm’s length negotiation and on normal
commercial terms and with reference to the historical
service fees paid for the Medical, Dental and Auxiliary
Services and the prevailing fees charged by the Group or
the HAML Group offered to independent customers with
similar scope of services;
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o the effective term of the Medical Services and
Administration Agreement shall commence from 23
March 2017 (being the date on which all conditions of
the Medical Services and Administration Agreement have
been fulfilled) until 31 December 2026.

HAML is a joint venture company formed by a subsidiary
of New World Development Company Limited (stock code:
17), NWS Subsidiary and Healthcare Ventures, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, HAML is a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Medical
Services and Administration Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees payable by the Company
to HAML for FY2019 was HK$28,000,000 and the actual
amount paid or payable by the Company was HK$4,234,547.

The Company’s independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions for the
year ended 30 June 2019 and confirmed that:

(@) the transactions have been entered into by the Group in the
ordinary and usual course of its business;

(b) the transactions have been entered into either (i) on normal
commercial terms or (ii) (where there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms) on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(c) the transactions have been entered into in accordance with the

relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The Company’s auditors have reported to the Directors that (i)
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board; (ii) nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that the transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (iii) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and (iv) with respect to the aggregate amount of
each of the above continuing connected transactions, nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as
set by the Company.

The Company and all Directors had reviewed all connected
transactions and confirmed that the Company was in compliance
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group during FY2019.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Schemes and Share Award Scheme
as disclosed on pages 107 to 115 of this annual report, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company, or
existed during FY2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman lIslands where the
Company is incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
provided by the Snow Lake Group, and to the best knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company had maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during FY2019.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming 2019
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 September 2019

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

B e 4 84 Hhh R
B AR SREE 1072115 5 T 450 38 40 P AU 12

KB fn BB A SIS R2019 BEFE AR - K
R B TS IR A AT B A 88 1 %

BrRBERE
NRMAIKEIL B S (AR A R BT

7)) HEEPISERE AR R ALLOIFIRE
BRREZHMRMDNELEEREG -

EHANBERE
RARFTB 2 ARENRBES HEBRE
HOBERAT  WARBESAFRA IR
i EEWRN20190 REERQAC#
BEMBRAUFMREZRTARERE -

B Em
RO BE BT F R A RD TR

019FBRBFAGLRE-HBEEENZ
BEERARR R ZBENHRFESR

REEFE
TE

E#E 0 2019F9AH26H



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

EY::

To the shareholders of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of UMP
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 140 to 323, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matters is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

B 2B RS

ERETTEE )

Key audit matter

BRBETER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BMWESTNMEEFERETEER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets

BAERERFUNELEE ZRENGE

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had goodwill of HK$163.7
million and indefinite-lived intangible assets of HK$65.6
million, representing 23.9% and 9.6% of the Group’s net assets,
respectively.

R2019F6A30R - EXREHEEEE163.78 BB T RERFHM
B AE.6BBBIL DRMEEN EXREAEFEN 23.9%
9.6% °

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets must be tested
for impairment at least on an annual basis. The determination
of the recoverable amount, being the higher of value-in-use and
fair value less costs to dispose, requires judgement on the part
of management in both identifying and then valuing the relevant
cash-generating units (“CGUs”). Recoverable amounts are based
on management’s cash flow projections on financial budgets and
the most appropriate discount rates.
BAEMERFHNEBTVEELVAZELSFETHENS -BEEA
WEEHEBIEREERAABERLIERACRSE) AEEE
s kA EEReELEN ((ReEEEM]) MEEELH
- T EERIEREEEAVMBRENRSRERAN LK
EENITIRE -

We assessed the key assumptions used in
management’s cash flow projections for
impairment assessment of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets, including,
amongst others, budgeted revenue,
growth rate and discount rate, taking into
consideration the historical results, market
conditions and trends and reliability of
previous projections.
EAFHEEEERAERERFHNELE
EZREFEFELZRESRERAMABIE
R R (EFaF) BEEA BEXR
BRIz AIERE -

In addition, we involved our valuation experts
to assist us in evaluating the discount rate
adopted in the value in use calculation. We
also assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
connection with the impairment assessment of
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FERETTEE )

Key audit matter

BREBEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BMWETNMEERARETEHR

Impairment assessment of goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets (Continued)

BERERFHNETEE 2R EFE (&)

The impairment assessment is significant to our audit due
to (i) the magnitude of the carrying amounts involved; and
(ii) significant estimates involved in the estimation of the
value-in-use of the CGUs to which the goodwill is allocated
and indefinite-lived intangible assets, including, amongst others,
expected future cash flows and discount rates.
MEFHHRMZEAMEBER  REAROAS R ZEREEZ
BE: RNVGTEDEBELERFHNETLEENRSELE
NzERBESRERGT  BFE(HPEE) Bt AKE2RE
RATIRE o

The Group’s accounting policies, disclosures of estimation
uncertainty and impairment assessment of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets are included in notes 2.4, 3 and
16 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

BEEBZE R BATHEARZHBEALRBERERSH

METLEE CRENEDRENGEMBHRRMT2.4 - 3R16°
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

B 2B RS

ERETTEE )

Key audit matter

BRBEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BB NMEEFERETER

Assessment of expected credit losses on trade receivables

FEEZEURENERCEERR

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s trade receivables amounted to
HK$105.0 million, representing 15.3% of the Group’s net assets.
Assessment on expected credit losses (“ECLs”) of trade receivables
is performed by management based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate.
R2019F6A30R - EXREMNE S EUFIAR105.08 88T © 1
B EEEEEFEMNIS3% AEESERFIENTRRAEEES
BURREEBRD DHERERBRANIHZANRERE
R BEEEBRBEBNMEReREZHRNERREE  RKRE
BERNEEONERETA -

The Group uses a provision matrix and probability of default to
calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
ERERAREREREONAEETEE S ERFAENTEYRE
EEE - BAEXDARAFREUBEREANSERF 2 HRER K
BURBETE - BEEELDER ESEZBEEERELR
WRBEFABENMEEREREERITAE -

The assessment is significant to our audit due to (i) the magnitude
of the carrying amount involved; and (ii) significant estimates
involved in determining the future cash flows that the Group
expects to receive from such receivables based on, among others,
the correlation among historical observed default rates, forecast
economic conditions (i.e. gross domestic products) and ECLs.
AEHRMANEMEBER  RRARBOFIR2EAEZIRE &
(i) |RIFB (AP EF) BEBREMBORKEL X - FRALERE (A
BALEARE RRBEEER HANEEREEET E5EES
BREFREFARDNARAKRRERES REAER -

The Group’s accounting policies and disclosures of accounting
estimates on the provision for ECLs on trade receivables and
information about the ECLs on trade receivables are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
EEBEABEIRURENTAHEEFR 2 BEN ST BE K
BULEBEZRERENTRHEEEBENER DRSNS M
BHKRMIEE2.4 - 3]%22 -

We assessed management’s assessment
by (i) checking the grouping of customer
segments; (ii) test checking the correctness
of aging report of the receivable balances;
(iii) reviewing the past repayment history
and historical credit loss experience; (iv)
benchmarking the forecast economic
conditions (i.e. gross domestic products)
against market data; and (v) reviewing the
arithmetic accuracy of the calculation of
the ECLs. We also assessed the adequacy
of disclosures in connection with the
assessment of expected credit losses on trade
receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FERETTEE )

Key audit matter

HREETSER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BEMWETNMEE@ARETEE

Purchase price allocations of business combinations

RESHNBEERI R

In the prior year, the Group acquired a 60% equity interest in
a medical laboratory and imaging business and a further 45%
equity interest in Longway Consultants Limited. As at 30 June
2018, the Group recognised an aggregate goodwill arising from
the provisional purchase price allocations of HK$19.6 million.
Upon the finalisation of the purchase price allocations process
in 2019, measurement period adjustments were made on the fair
value of certain identifiable assets and liabilities resulting in a
reduction of goodwill of an aggregate amount of HK$4.5 million,
as compared to the provisional amount previously disclosed of
HK$15.1 million, in aggregate.

RE—FE > BERERBE-HBSLBRETZEEBHN60%RER
REBMARABMEINMSLEL - 201867300 HEXKE
BRAEEREERIRELZABTER9.6BE AT - 2019FR
TRREABEERIERFR  BEXEDNRETARNEERE
BENAABEELAENEAR SRHEEBRRNBERECY
EE2BAI5 1 8RBT BT4588BT -

During the year, the Group has made certain business
acquisitions including a 70% equity interest in the physiotherapy
centre chain, a 55% equity interest in the medical clinic business
and a 60% equity interest in SkinCentral Limited (“SkinCentral”)
(collectively, the “Acquired Businesses”) for a total consideration
of HK$146.1 million (net of potential adjustments to Contingent
Consideration) (as defined hereinafter).

FR BEXREETETEBRE SRREHMERESRLH
70%RX #E ~ Y B8 R 2 BT 3 7 H)55%A% #E K pASkinCentral Limited
(['SkinCentral ) B960% x4 (GihE [ W iE 75 1) - R(ER146.18
BAT (RHGKXAREB(EREETOMNEERAE) -

With the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, we evaluated the valuation
methodologies and assumptions used
in the purchase price allocations by (i)
examining the terms of the relevant sale
and purchase agreements; (ii) assessing the
valuation methodologies adopted for the
purpose of determining the fair values of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed; and (iii) evaluating management’s
estimation of the probability of fulfilling
the Profit Guarantee and valuation of the
Contingent Consideration and the Call
Option with reference to profit forecast,
historical performance and performance of
the Acquired Businesses for the year ended
30 June 2019.
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R EEEBREE2019F6 A30R LFE 2 K
i o

In addition, we considered the independence,
objectivity and competence of the external
valuer engaged by management. We also
assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
connection with the business combinations.
o HMIZER T EREE BRI B ELD
B - BB o MAAIMATE T X
BaHBEBENRERSRD °
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

B 2B RS

ERETTEE )

Key audit matter

BRBEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BB NMEEFERETER

Purchase price allocations of business combinations (Continued)

EBAHNBEERDE (H)

According to the sale and purchase agreements, the
considerations of the Acquired Businesses are subject to potential
adjustments (“Contingent Consideration”), which are dependent
on the future performance (“Profit Guarantee”) and exercise of a
call option (“Call Option”) in which a seller has the discretion to
repurchase the equity interest sold to the Group during designated
periods of time.
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The Group engaged an independent external valuer to perform
the purchase price allocations on the fair values of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the business
combinations and the fair value of the Contingent Consideration
as at the respective acquisition dates. The purchase price
allocations are significant to our audit due to (i) the significant
judgement involved in the identification of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed; and (ii) the determination of the fair values
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the
consideration transferred, including, amongst others, fair values of
the Contingent Consideration and the Call Option, is dependent
on a range of estimates, including discount rates and interest
rates as well as the probability of the Acquired Businesses’
achievement of the Profit Guarantee.
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Details of the business combinations are disclosed in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RE

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.
The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STA

TEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wu Ka Lai, Cary.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

26 September 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBRER

For the year ended 30 June 2019

BZE2019F6 A30R IEFE
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 THET FHET
(restated)
(=5)
REVENUE I'PN 5 567,377 463,441
Other income and gains Haug A R W 6 25,414 11,591
Professional services expenses HERKER (229,321) (187,075)
Employee benefit expense BITRAMAL (143,817) (121,428)
Property rental and related expenses ¥ & MiHEF (54,390) (42,673)
Cost of inventories consumed BEREFERAN (30,624) (23,730)
Depreciation and amortisation WER#H (22,701) (19,997)
Other expenses, net Hui % HeE (80,118) (34,116)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE I R B A
Joint ventures RN 11 254
Associates N 2,444 2,238
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR Bt A0 7 7 34,275 48,505
Income tax expense FrEfiE R 10 (14,726) (11,003)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFE 19,549 37,502
Attributable to: AT & F R
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZ Z DN 12,798 37,555
Non-controlling interests FEPR AR HE 6,751 (53)
19,549 37,502
EARNINGS PER SHARE KAREBEREEA 12
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEER2F
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
Basic K HK1.71 centsi&1{ll HK5.04 centsi& il
Diluted s HK1.69 centsi#fll HK4.95 centsi# 1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEHEBAR

For the year ended 30 June 2019

BZE2019F6H30RLLFE
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 3t THET THET
(restated)
(7&&51)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERAE 19,549 37,502
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H 2 & It A
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REZHAMAIEEFDER
that may be reclassified to profit Bz EMEEW A
or loss in subsequent periods: (E518)
Changes in fair value of AHEEREZAR
available-for-sale investments BEZ 20 - (213)
Changes in fair value of debt BRAgBEAARMER
investments at fair value WARHBBRENRDR
through other comprehensive BESZ
income 48 =
Exchange differences on FEBINEBHIEN ZH
translation of foreign operations (1,238) 181
Share of other comprehensive S5 — B AR e E M
income/(loss) of an associate 2EBA(EE) (79) 11
Share of other comprehensive DIE—EEE R AN EAM
income/(loss) of a joint venture 2EBRA(EE) (48) 21
Net other comprehensive loss that HREG BB AIEEHDEE
may be reclassified to profit or EafEm2mERFHE
loss in subsequent periods (1,317) -
Other comprehensive income that  REZ B IS EHHEE
will not be reclassified to profit or 1Bz E M 2 E WA :
loss in subsequent periods:
Changes in fair value of equity BEREARBETA
investments designated at Hfh 2 WA Z IRA
fair value through other RENLDAEBES
comprehensive income 2,979 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREf2EU A - MR
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX FIE 1,662 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRZHE KA B
FOR THE YEAR 21,211 37,502
Attributable to: A& 77 FEG -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEF SN 14,460 37,555
Non-controlling interests FEVERR #E 2 6,751 (53)
21,211 37,502
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B B ISR 3R

As at 30 June 2019

7201956 A30H
2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FHET FET
(restated)
(e=:751)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENRE 13 101,061 103,809
Goodwill kS 14 163,711 58,227
Other intangible assets Hib BB E 15 79,378 9,353
Investments in joint ventures REEBEREINKRE 17 1,158 1,196
Investments in associates REE R RIMIRE 18 8,976 5,485
Held-to-maturity investments RAEZIHKRE 19 - 58,570
Financial assets at amortised cost RBHEK AT ENEREE 19 46,668 =
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 20 = 9,848
Investments at fair value through BRAABEFAEMEZE
other comprehensive income WARKE 20 52,938 -
Deferred tax assets R IEE E 31 1,300 1,016
Deposits REE® 23 15,927 15,696
Total non-current assets FnBEERTE 471,117 263,200
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories BE 21 11,803 8,244
Trade receivables 2 5 W FIE 22 104,997 78,800
Prepayments, other receivables and AR RIE - E A YR &
other assets Htb & E 23 20,951 12,262
Financial assets at fair value through BRARBEFABREN
profit or loss ERMAEAE 24 2,400 2,427
Held-to-maturity investments RAEZIHKRE 19 = 10,927
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHENATENEREE 19 14,066 -
Due from associates JE L BS & X B 5RIR 25 4,077 5,640
Due from related companies JFE L2 B8 Bt 1% R FRIR 26 3,633 2,735
Due from a joint venture JEW—&ERaEHIE 17 - 415
Tax recoverable R ER 58 977
Pledged deposits EAEUIRER =N 27 1,354 1,352
Cash and cash equivalents ReMEeFEY 27 207,644 293,970
370,983 417,749
Assets of a disposal group classified SEABELEN—ELE
as held for sale EBMEE 40 = 56,671
Total current assets MBI EERRE 370,983 474,420
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PR R

As at 30 June 2019

20196 H30H
2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & FET FAET
(restated)
(EY)
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B 5 RN IR 28 49,589 39,152
Other payables and accruals HM B ETE R 29 73,084 48,486
Due to associates JEHE?&A’\ AR IE 25 138 207
Due to related companies JE& 1t R Bst 1% B 5RIR 26 620 452
Due to a joint venture JT%H_FEﬁ/En\é’_\ CIE S 17 180 -
Derivative financial instrument ESMIT A 30 743 =
Tax payable PR IR 14,362 9,523
138,716 97,820
Liabilities directly associated with the EOEABIELENEE
assets classified as held for sale E&ﬁ?ﬁﬁ’]%ﬁ 40 = 43
Total current liabilities mMBAaGe 138,716 97,863
NET CURRENT ASSETS ﬁﬁzﬁéﬁ%ﬁ 232,267 376,557
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERTBASR
LIABILITIES 703,384 639,757
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIAA G 31 14,609 3,130
Provision B 32 2,813 2,222
Total non-current liabilities FEREaERRE 17,422 5,352
Net assets BEFE 685,962 634,405
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the KARER ABIGRER
Company
Issued capital B EITIRA 33 758 753
Reserves R 36 612,237 566,383
612,995 567,136
Non-controlling interests JEFE R = 72,967 67,269
Total equity WS E 685,962 634,405

Sun Yiu Kwong
Director

EF

Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen

201943 » BEEBKE
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Director
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ah A\ EE

EARQA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEEBEBER

Year ended 30 June 2019

BIE2019F6A30RLLFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KOAREARR
Available-
Shares held for-sale
Share  Capital ~ underthe ~ Share-based  investment Fair Exchange Non-
lssved  premium  contribution  share award  payment  revaluation value legal  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
apitl  account  reseve scheme  reseve  resee  reseve  reseve resene profts Total  interests equity
Rk ARfE  THAE
AR EEY  REEG  QABE E
BRARE REREE UERRE SEGRD  (RER ik BE tERE RUBE  BFUE ait FEREE  RasE
Notes HKS000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 - HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Wit TEn  TEn TR TEr TR TAn TR R TAn TR TR TEn TER
(note 3] (note36)  (note 35 (note 36) (note 36)
() (ase) (k) (Hibe) (Hite)
AtTJuly 2017 N0EIRIR BT 355,560 36,131 (5,843) 15,104 418 - 035 (1072) 130949 532,619 62995 595,614
Proftor the year ERHE = = = - - - - - S 11 T 1 B3y 3750
Other comprehensive income EREp2ERA
for the year: -
Changes in fair value of TRAERELA
available-for-sale investments EEZY 0 - - - - - (13) - - - - ) - (213)
Exchange diferences on tanslaion ~~ FEEH £54
of foreign operations EizE - - - - - - - - 181 - 181 - 181
Share of other comprehensive BhE-BRELTN
income of an associate AfE2EkA - - - - - - - - n - 1 - 1
Shre of other comprehensive El-BRERAN
income of  jont venture AT ON - - - - - - - - b - 2 - i
Total comprehensive income EnrEkALE
for the year - - - - - (213) - - Ak} 37,55 37,555 (53) 37,502
Acqisitions of asubsidiary/ WE-RNELA/ 2k
business (restated) (&35 3 - - - - - - - - - - - 5314 5314
Waiver ofother payable o a —AHEERRRES
former non-controlling interest HHERRE 5 8 1,163 s 5 8 s 5 8 S 1,163 8 1,163
Diidends paid/payable to Bl/EfiAERERRS
non-controlling nterests - - - - - - - - - - - (987) (987)
Final 2017 dividend WIERHRE 1 - - - - - - - = S (16,463 (16,463 S (16,463)
Interim 2018 dividend 01854 HRE Il S S S s 5 - - - - [4116) (4116) - 4,116)
Issue of shares upon exercise BREEGEREARG
of share options 33 16 24901 S s (5,401) S S 5 S S 19516 S 19516
Purchases of shares for HROERHHBEORA
the share award scheme 35 - - - 4909 - - - - - - 4909 - 4909)
Equity-setled share-based HEREENIRNA
payment arrangements ERNAZRE 3 . s & s 1,771 e e s e e 1771 s 1771
Transfer to legal reserve BRTIREE - - - - - - - m - [ - - -
At30 une 2018 (restated) H2016%6A308 (&5 753 380461 3204 (l0752F 11474 205 B B46* (859 14774 567,136 07269 634405
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 30 June 2019

BE2019%6H308ILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KARERARG
Available-
Shares held for-sale
Share  Capital ~ underthe ~ Share-based  investment Fair Exchange Non-
lssued ~ premium contribution  shareaward  payment  revaluation value legal  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
aptl  account  resee  scheme  reseie  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
Akt AREE  WR4E
RBitd  EEY  REER  DAEE B
BRTRE RERER HERE SENRE ARG i Bf EREE RIEE AR Rt FEREE  EEEE
Notes HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
it Tin Tan  TEr TER Tin Tan  Thn Tian Tin  Thn Tin fin  Thn
(note 33) (note36)  (note35) (note 36) (note 36)
(i) (i) (M) (Hide (i6)
At30 June 2018 (restated) 018567308 (LE5) 753 380,461 204 (10752F 11474 205* B 840+ (859)F  147,714% 567,136 07,209 634,405
Effect o adoption of HKFRS 9 SRl
Enze 11 = = = - - (205) 417 = = = 3,967 = 3,967
AL July 2018 frestated) H01857718 (HE5) 3OOS04 a4 (07) 114 - 846 @9 WM S8 %9 683N
Proft for the year ERE - - - - - - - - - 1% 179 6,751 19,549
Other comprehensive income EREHZERA
for the year:
Changes infar vlue of equity RAREEHALY
investments at fai value thiough PERANRARE
ather comprehensive income iEE2Y - - - - - - 2979 - - - 2979 - 2979
Changes in fai velue of debt BRnBEALf
investments at fair value through AERANERRE
other comprehensive income - - - - - - ] - - - 4 - 4
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - - - - - - (1,238) - (1,239) - (1,28)
Share of other comprehensive M-RBEATN
Joss of an associate Af2EEE - - - - - - - - 1) - ) - (1)
Share of other comprehensive Mi-RREAT
loss of a joint venture EH2EER = = a = = = = = (48) a 49) = (48)
Total comprehensive income ERRENALE
fo the year - - - - - - 3w S 1% M0 65T 2
Acquistons of subsiciares/ WEREAT/ 5%
business 38 - - - - - - - - - - - 26,672 26,672
Acquistion of non-controlling
inferests - - - - - - - - - - - (277) )
Deregistration of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - (390) (390)
Dividends paidipayable to k&
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - @7,058)  (27,038)
Final 2018 dividend WBERERE 1l - - . - - - . = - (5 -
Interim 2019 dividend WI9ERERE I = = = = = = = = = (4867 (43867 = (4867
Isse of shares upon exercise BREERNERN
of share options 3 5 7,14 - - (1,693) - - - - - 5453 - 5,453
Purchases of shares for ARnEBHEEENRA
the share award scheme 35 - - - (3,868) - - - - - - (3,868) - (3,868)
Equity-setled share-based WEREENNRIE
payment amrangements ERNARES 34,35 - - - - A3 - - - - K] - 43
Transfer to legal reserve BRRITEE - - - - - - - 3% - (394) - - -
At30June 2019 #2019%6A308 758 387,602 098 (14620¢ 56,082 B 7199 1,240 (2,247 137604 612,99 7297 685,962
g These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERBERFPERGAVBRARARANES &

HK$612,237,000 (2018: HK$566,383,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

612,237,000 7T (20184 : 566,383,000/

JTL) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEBRERER

Year ended 30 June 2019

BE2019F6A30HLFE
2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt E FERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZDNHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax F A5 51 A1 34,275 48,505
Adjustments for: M THI R IEFE
Share of profits and losses of fEME& & R AAE M EE
joint ventures 1) (254)
Share of profits and losses of associates  fE{GEE & A & FBH R EE (2,444) (2,238)
Bank interest income RITHLBWA 6 (1,071) (376)
Interest income on held-to-maturity FHEZIHEE
investments M EHA 6 - (2,870)
Interest income on financial assets BHHN AT ERN
at amortised cost TREENT WA 6 (3,645) -
Interest income on available-for-sale A HERE
investments FEWA 6 - (1,688)
Interest income on debt investments BRARBETTARAM
at fair value through other PHRANEBRE
comprehensive income B F B A 6 (1,895) =
Dividend income from financial assets BAREAETAEBRED
at fair value through profit or loss TRIEERE uﬁU\ 6 (96) (85)
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial BARBEFTABREN SR
assets at fair value through é{FE’J’D\j’ﬂETﬁEETﬁ/
profit or loss (Yezm) 7 27 (71)
Fair value gain on contingent JEW s A REM
consideration receivable N EERE 6 (2,777) =
Fair value gain on derivative financial PTESMIAENQAAEBE
instrument e 6 (2,036) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B A R e s 6 (9,315) =
Gain on remeasurement of previously BT EREME B H
held interest in an available-for-sale HERERERM IS
investment 6 — (500)
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity ﬁ’ii—ﬁﬁ_ EEHIEE R
investments, net I %5 F R 6 - (169)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & A E R
investments, net W 2 5 RE 6 - (78)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment #iBIEE B 6 (520) -
Waiver of other payable o H A JE A FRIA 6 = (152)
Depreciation and amortisation e Ny 7 22,701 19,997
Write-off of items of property, plant and 5% - BiE L &REHER
equipment 7 92 54
Write-off of trade receivables WiEHE 5 M 7 226 116
Write-off of receivables due from a il = Fﬁﬂ EE’]JE%Z
related party IA 7 = 195
Impairment of amounts due from JiE W Bt &5 8 R BUE
associates DERIE] 7 695 2,149
Equity-settled share-based payment J/A%/\Z*MEI']MHXT%/%
expense e £ 54 3R B 2 7 48,301 1,771
82,507 64,306
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MEBERER

Year ended 30 June 2019

BZE2019F6H30B ILLFE
2019 2018
2019 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7E FHET FAT
Increase in inventories 7 E A0 (2,097) (1,557)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 M W R IEE N (25,353) (20,657)
Increase in prepayments, other receivables T8~ 2018  H #b & U 508
and other assets &Eﬁﬂ;ﬁﬁiﬁ pill (5,398) (2,974)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due JFE Ui Bt i N R R IEOR
from associates (#n) 1,369 (1,596)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from JEUL A5 A TR B R L
related companies (35 hn) (851) 2,380
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables Z 5 ENFIEE N, O ) 10,067 (15,020)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and E th & {5 X 1B K fE 51 &
accruals # 5, G ) (5,451) 10,612
Decrease in amounts due to associates  JE S EE & A 7R IE R 4 (69) (6)
Increase in amounts due to related JE A5 B BSE X R FRIB S A0
companies 152 16
Cash generated from operations REXBELENER S 54,876 35,504
Interest received B F B 1,071 376
Hong Kong profits tax paid Eﬁ%/% MEFH (5,879) (7,861)
Overseas taxes paid 2t igsiIa (3,273) (2,208)
Net cash flows from operating activities KE EFHELREHREFTE 46,795 25,811
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest income on held-to-maturity BEZIEHEERNBWA
investments - 2,067
Interest income on financial assets at BB HK NG ES
amortised cost TREENTBWA 3,426 -
Interest income on available-for-sale AIEHERER B WA
investments = 1,658
Interest income on debt investments at fair ~ E AR BEGAEMEEUE A
value through other comprehensive income — #){& %% & ) F B U A 1,895 -
Dividends received from financial assets B WiZ A7 EBETT ABZEH
at fair value through profit or loss TREENRE 96 85
Dividends received from associates BB & N E IR A = 2,250
Acquisitions of subsidiaries/businesses WM B AR, ¥ 38 (113,492) (24,043)
Disposal of subsidiaries k=00 N 39 65,920 -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Ui 3% JE 4% A% 4 25 (711) -
Decrease/(increase) in balances with HAEERRZEHRLD,
joint ventures (iﬁ ) 688 (415)
Investments in associates AR & R EIRIRE (1,625) (2,370)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEBRERER

Year ended 30 June 2019

BIE2019F6A30RLLFE
2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 3 TET FHETT
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEMHE  WERKHBIERB
property, plant and equipment B P15 518 520 =
Purchases of items of property, BEYWE BELRKEIEE
plant and equipment (12,178) (121,820)
Proceeds from redemption/disposal BE,/ HEFREEINHRE
of held-to-maturity investments P15 SRIA - 118,940
Proceeds from redemption of financial BEIZEENATER
assets at amortised cost CREEMBRIA 21,085 -
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments BEE £ ZF|HRE = (127,529)
Purchases of financial assets BERBHKAAEN
at amortised cost TREE (12,314) =
Proceeds from disposal of HERMHEERE
available-for-sale investments 1S 3K IR - 82,498
Proceeds from disposal of HERAABESAEMEZE
investments at fair value through WARIEE B RIE
other comprehensive income 149,813 -
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHEERE
investments - (82,998)
Purchases of investments BEROAABESARM
at fair value through other ZHEHBANKE
comprehensive income (185,848) -
Deposits paid for purchases of items of  BEEWE - MEMELHEEE
property, plant and equipment XNWMERESR (2,204) (2,144)
Deposit paid for acquisition of Y RE PR BB 1t B 2 [ ) (R BB &
subsidiaries — (6,000)
Increase in pledged time deposits AR H1F E 0 (2) (531)
Net cash flows used in REZE A
investing activities REREFH (84,931) (160,352)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZBNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares, EITIRAD PRS FRIE
net of issue expenses R BEITH X 33 5,454 19,516
Purchases of shares for the Share Award  FLA% {5 2B H 2188 B I 1D 35
Scheme (3,868) (4,909
Dividends paid RN EE) (22,454) (20,579)
Dividends paid to non-controlling EANEFZI T Fa ) ¢=)
interests (26,408) =
Net cash flows used in mEEE A
financing activities ReEREFH (47,276) (5,972)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MEBERER

Year ended 30 June 2019

BZE2019F6H30B ILLFE
2019 2018
2019 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FERT FAT
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH HeRESEEY
EQUIVALENTS WA R (85,412) (140,513)
Effect of foreign exchange SNETE R BB B F
rate changes, net 914) 410
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRELREREEY
beginning of year 293,970 434,073
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 207,644 293,970
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBEEBEBYHEHRDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B& RIRTHER 27 105,477 292,785
Non-pledged deposits with original RESHRIBAAELN
maturity of less than three months =& A EERER
when acquired 27 102,167 1,185
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRE & RIREEEY 207,644 293,970
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited is a limited liability

company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at Room 1404-
1408, 14/F., Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the
provision of healthcare services which include:

. corporate healthcare solution services;

J medical and dental services;

J medical imaging and laboratory services;

J other auxiliary medical services; and

J healthcare management services

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board

of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 27 November 2015 (the “Listing”).

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

AAREEEE (8

MEARER
ARARETEMBRARZFFBET

follows:
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
MR/ BRTEE/
1 RERHE EMRA  AOBEERELA FERE
2019 2018
2019 2018F
UMP Healthcare Limited Cayman Island/ US$0.01 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Healthcare Limited REHE/ A 0.01%T Ragk
UMP Medical China Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$0.01 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Medical China Holdings Limited AERTEE/BE 0.01%7 REZR
AP Care Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of medical and
laboratory services
AP Care Limited B 10,000/7C REERRICBRRS
Dr. Lee Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Provision of dental services
FEETHPLERAT o 187 R R
eClaims (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of electronic medical
claims submission platform
and information technology
services
eClaims (Hong Kong) Limited Bk 10087 RUEETERRERF
FaRERRMRS
Hong Tai Polyclinic Limited (“Hong Tai")™  Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Provision of medical services
FRERARAR(RE)) 2P 25,000 % RUBERS
ProCare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 Provision of medical imaging
Centre (Kowloon) Limited and laboratory services
ERBREVERERTONE)BRAA BB 1A RUESPERLBRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

PAIREEER &)
M B A TG R ()

Place of Issued Percentage of

incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest

registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities

ML/ R BRTEE/
28 RExHE AREE ALFERERELA EREHR

2019 2018
2019 2018%
UMP Corporate Administration Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding and provision
Services Limited @ of company secretarial services
BEBBEZRBERAR i 1007 REERRRELANERS
UMP Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of dental services
BeBBHIRTLBR BB 10,0007 7T PG T R
UMP Dental Services Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 Investment holding
BREHTHRBEARAFY BR 2T REARK
UMP Health Centre Management Limited ®  Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
BEBBREDLVERBRAAY BR 2T REARK
UMP Health Plan Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
R EBRETHERERAEY BR 2T REARK
UMP Holdings (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 100 100 Investment holding
UMP% B (#F1) AR A7 R 25,0008 9% RrERR
UMP Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding and provision
of medical services

BREBHLERAA R 10087 RABRRRRHERRYE
UMP Medical Centre (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of medical services
BREBHL(BE)BR] A 1007 RUERRY
UMP Medical Centre Management (II) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of medical services
BREERTLER(E2)ARAA B 10,0007 RERERS
UMP Medical Centre (New Territories) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of medical services
BRgHHL (MR BERAR & 2T RUERRY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

PSRRI

30 June 2019

201996 A30H
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AR REEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) B A RER(E)
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
EMEYL/ ER BRAEE/
8 REZE EfEE  ALFEERERS ERRH
2019 2018
019%  2018F
UMP Professional Management Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,012 100 100 Investment holding and provision
of corporate healthcare
solution
BEEREXERARAA B 50,000,012 7T REARRRRECRERRE
BAIR
UMP Professional Management Macau MOP10,000 100 100 Investment holding and provision
(Macau) Limited @ of corporate healthcare
solution
UMPEXEE (RF1) BRAR Y RF 10,0002 9% RARRRRHERERRERR
UES
UMP Specialist Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of medical services
BREFENERTLERA R 100%7T RRERRS
UMP TCM Limited © Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of medical services
BoERTERARAAY Bk 10,0007 RUEBRRH
UMP Healthcare China Limited Cayman Islands/ Us$1 80 80 Investment holding
("UMP Healthcare China”) Hong Kong
UMP Healthcare China Limited BEEEVES: (E3 RERR
(HaBHPE])
United Medical Services (China) Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
United Medical Services (China) Limited EBRLEE /B 100%7 REZR
TRRRERBRARLD A0 People’s Republic of US$1,000,000 100 100 Investment holding and provision
China (“PRC") healthcare management services
TRRREERHARAA hEARAME ([ 1,000,000 7T RERRRREERREEE
&) %
20193 » BMABHEERERRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

PAIREEER &)
M B A TG R ()

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
HRRL/ ER BRITEE/
8 RExHE kA ALFEGRELS  FEXE
2019 2018
2019% 2018%
LERRRRAARKERAF PRC RMB3,500,000 100 100 Investment holding and provision
healthcare services
LERRRRAARKERAAY E AR% REERRRHBEERERS
3,500,0007C
T RRRMDHERAF PRC RMB3,500,000 100 100 Provision of healthcare and
medical services
ERBRAZBERAF W e AR% REBERELIBRRS
3,500,0007T
FBEEMZHAER AR PRC RMB3,500,000 100 100  Provision of healthcare and
medical services
LERRAZHERAT hE AR% REBERERBRRE
3,500,0007T
LERBFEFYBERAFY PRC RMB5,000,000 100 100 Provision of healthcare and
medical services
LERRRMZBERAAY E AR% REUEBERERBERE
5,000,0007T
UMP Healthcare (Shanghai) Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$0.01 100 100  Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Healthcare (Shanghai) Group Limited ~ EBRLEE/EE 0.01%7T REER
TBBEAEERAR AR PRC RMB15,000,000™ 100 100  Provision of corporate healthcare
solution
LERBELRERARAALY E AR% RECXBERRERANR
15,000,0007"
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

PSRRI

30 June 2019

20196 A30H
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AR REEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) B A RER(E)
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
EMEYL/ ER BRAEE/
8 REXHE EfEE  ALFEERERS ERRH
2019 2018
019%  2018F
UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited British Virgin Islands/ US§166.7 - 70 Investment holding
(“UMP Phoenix Healthcare”) ™ Hong Kong
EEBAERERAA ERRLES/BE 166.7% 7 REER
((BEHABE])™
UMP Phoenix Management Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$0.01 70 70 Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Phoenix Management Limited EBRUME/ B 0.01%7 RERR
TREBERERRAARA R PRC RMB 70 70 Provision of corporate healthcare
30,000,000 solution
TRBHEEERAAGRAFW HE N: RUECRBRRRERNR
30,000,0007c
238 Day Surgery & Endoscopy Hong Kong HK$10,000 68 68  Provision of day surgery and
Centre Limited endoscopy services
BYARFMEAREFLARAT R 10,000/ 7T REARFHRARERERS
238 Specialist Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 60 60  Provision of medical services
238EMERTLRRAA BB 10,0007 RUEERRH
Hirayanagi Shika Company Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 71.76 71.76  Provision of dental services
FHEMERAE &R 500,000 7T BT MR
Hong Kong ENT Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 50.5  Provision of medical consultation
("HK ENT") and surgical services
ERERBRTLERAA &k 10,000 7T REERRART MRS
([BRERBH L) aw
Metro International Clinic Limited Macau MOP100,000 69 69  Provision of medical services
BR X EERAARAA BF 100,000F5% REERRY
20193 » BMABHEERERRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

20196 H30H
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AIREBER &)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER (&)
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
SRR/ R BRTLEE/
2B REEHY aMBAE  AAFEERERH FEER
2019 2018
20195 2018%
ProCare Medical Imaging & Hong Kong HK$10,000 62.5 62.5  Provision of medical imaging
Laboratory Centre Limited laboratory services
ERESYERBRTLEBRAF B4 10,000/ T REBEZERILBRYE
UMP Central Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 90 90  Provision of dental services
BABBIRL (PR)BR e 1007T RETRRS
UMP Dental Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 82.35 82.35  Investment holding
UMP Dental Investment Limited © £ 2,000,000/ 7 REER
UMP Physiotherapy Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 60 60 Provision of medical and
physiotherapy services
BABEMERETLERAR Bk 1008 7T REBBERMESERYE
Health Network Medical Centre (Sha Tau Kok) Hong Kong HK$10,000 87.65 87.65  Provision of dental services

Limited (formerly known as UMP Tsim Sha

Tsui Dental Centre Limited) @

REEFDL (VAR ARAA(REE %6 10,0007 AL T R IR 7
EBIMRO(RDE)ERAR)

Excellent City Limited (“Excellent City") Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Property holding

Excellent City Limited ([Excellent City )@ &5 1B BEDZ

Way Spread Limited (“Way Spread”) @ Hong Kong HK$1 100 100  Property holding

Way Spread Limited ([Way Spread]) ®¢ B 1B BEDZ

New Season Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10 60 60 Provision of medical imaging and
(“New Season”) @ laboratory services

VIREEARADR ([LIE]) e &k 10T REBEZERILRRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2R Y =

30 June 2019

mE

20196 A30H
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION DARKEEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) - INCIE-E €]
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
EMEYL/ ER BRTER/
£ REXHE EfEE  ALFEERERS ERRH
2019 2018
019%  2018F
Longway Consultants Limited (“Longway”)®®  Hong Kong HK$20 55 55 Provision of medical imaging
services
REBEFARLA ([RE]) o &k 20ET RUEBBYBRE
ER(EBERBBERAR @0 PRC US$1,500,000 100 100 Provision of corporate healthcare
solution
(LB EXRBARAR o0 HE 1,500,000 7T RECXBEEREBATR
HARY) BERAERAR 6o PRC RMB100,0009 100 - Provision of healthcare training
and consultation services
e (R BRRABRARF o Gl AE%100,0007C9 R EFRREI LA AR
SKP Medical Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 70 - Provision of medical
(“SKP Medical”) @ physiotherapy services
EREREEARAR (EMER])" B 10,0007 7T REBEMERRRY
Causeway Bay Physiotherapy And Child Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 70 - Provision of medical
Development Centre Limited physiotherapy services
WEENERBREZRTLARARY  BR 1,000,000/ 7 REBENEARRY
Tsuen Wan Physiotherapy Limited @' Hong Kong HK$100,000 70 - Provision of medical
physiotherapy services
ERMDRRARAFW R 100,000/ 7T REBEMR RS
Queen’s Rehab Centre Limited @ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 70 - Provision of medical
physiotherapy services
RRMTEETLERAFW B 1,000,000 7T REBEMEER RS
2019564 « BMABHEREARAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

PAIREEER &)
M B A TG R ()

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
ML/ R BRAEE/
28 RERHE EMEE  RAFEERELRA EREH
2019 2018
2019% 2018%
Sai Kung Physiotherapy Limited @ Hong Kong HK$10,000 70 - Provision of medical
physiotherapy services
Sai Kung Physiotherapy Limited @/ G 10,0007 10 REBRRMDAERE
Mong Kok Physiotherapy Company Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 70 - Provision of medical
Limited @™ physiotherapy services
EAMERRERAR B 1,000,000 7T REBENEARRY
Aberdeen Physiotherapy Limited " Hong Kong HK$100,000 70 - Provision of medical
physiotherapy services
BRMZaRRRAAM BB 100,000% 7T REEENRRERY
Skyline Physiotherapy Limited @™ Hong Kong HKS$5,000 70 - Provision of medical
physiotherapy services
REMTERARA A i 5000870 REBENE R BRY
Health Network Medical Centre (Shatin) Hong Kong HK$100 55 100 Provision of medical services
Limited (“Health Network”) @
IRERTL (D) ERAT(RED &R 1007 BRI
SkinCentral Limited (“SkinCentral”) Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 60 - Provision of dermatological
services
SkinCentral Limited ([ SkinCentral |) @ B 1,000,000/ 72 RERER R
Hong Kong United Oncology Centre Limited  Hong Kong HK$100 60 50 Provision of oncology services
(formerly known as UMP Medical Centre
(Yuen Long) Limited (”United Oncology”))"
ERAMOERTLARLE (MRBAEYE BR 1007 RAtEE R

Bl () AR A )(f foEE)
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(a)

The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries are not
audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of
the Ernst & Young global network.

30% equity interests of these subsidiaries are held on trust by a
former non-controlling shareholder on behalf of the Group. In the
opinion of the directors, through various contractual agreements
entered into between the Group and the former non-controlling
shareholder, the Group obtains 100% control over these
subsidiaries. Accordingly, these subsidiaries are accounted for as
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under PRC law.

On 10 August 2017, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest in
Excellent City from an independent third party for a consideration
of HK$56.7 million. On 21 June 2018, the Group entered into
a provisional sales and purchase agreement to dispose of the
entire interest in Excellent City to an independent third party for a
consideration of HK$65.9 million. The transaction was completed
on 28 September 2018.

On 10 January 2018, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest in
Way Spread from an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$57.2 million. The major asset acquired was an owner-occupied
property to be used as the Group’s office premises.

On 29 March 2018, the Group acquired a 60% equity interest in
New Season from an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$6.

On 1 June 2018, the Group, through its 60%-owned subsidiary,
New Season, acquired a further 45% equity interest in Longway.
Immediately after the acquisition, the Group’s equity interest in
Longway increased from 10% to 55% and Longway became a
subsidiary of the Group thereafter. Further details of this business
combination are included in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 24 July 2018, the Group acquired a 70% equity interest in
SKP Medical and its subsidiaries from an independent third party.
Further details of this business combination are included in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

On 2 October 2018, the Group acquired a 55% equity interest
in a medical clinic business through acquisition of a 55% equity
interest in Health Network, a former wholly-owned subsidiary
from an independent third party. Further details of this business
combination are included in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

AAREEEE (8
B A TG R ()

(a)

ZEMBRROEERBHRRAIFBE
BRKGFTMEBARLKEHBES
—RERAREZ -

ZEM B A T R30%BHE B — & A JEE
BIEFRUAEEFRARAEE RIS - EF
RE - BBANEBEARFFEERRFET L
WEHENHE  AEEREBZENE
N AIET00%I% &l 1 - B UL - ZEMH B
REGIRARNEBHNZEWB QR -

ZEME R RREDBUEREM RIS
BELK-

R2017F8A108 » & E A56.78
BAEATHREM—EBLE=FHE
Excellent City#)100%% # - 7220184
6A218 LB —MHBEHESH
# o A6 9 B BB THRER BB
8 =7 i & Excellent Cityf) & & i % o
ZIER HER2018F9A28H %K ©

M2018F1A108 * NEBMUS7.28H 8
IR ER — 2B S =7 K iEway
Spread#J100% X% - FTREEH EEE
ER—BEFERME BREALSE
EHRAEYE -

201843 A29H + A& B LA6iE T &Y
RIER— BB E = H WELIEN60%
& #E o

R2018F6A1E  ASEEBEES
60%ES FH B A RIS B EE RiEM SR
IMAS%RERE - BRENIER - AEBRE
EATRRER10%EINES5%  MKE
HigpAREENNBAR - GHLE
E¥BAHE—THBHNREMER
=KIE38 ©

R2018F7A248 » XEEM—BBL
Fo=ARBEMBERERENBATN
70%AXHE o WWIBEE S HeEE— 58
BRERE ISR KM 738 ©

HR2018F10A2H - REBEFEBR—HA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

()

(q)

On 23 January 2019, the Group acquired a 60% equity interest in
SkinCentral from an independent third party. Further details of this
business combination are included in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 23 November 2018, the Group acquired the remaining 49.5%
equity interests in HK ENT from two non-controlling interests for a
total consideration of HK$0.7 million.

On 4 September 2018, the Group acquired a further 10% equity
interest in United Oncology, an inactive company which was
previously an associate of the Group. Immediately after the
acquisition, the Group’s equity interest in United Oncology
increased from 50% to 60% and United Oncology became a
subsidiary of the Group thereafter. United Oncology commenced
its business in provision of oncology services during the year.

Hong Tai and UMP Phoenix Healthcare were deregistered on 9
October 2018 and 31 May 2019, respectively.

As at 30 June 2019, the paid-up share capital of this subsidiary was
RMB2,723,780.

As at 30 June 2019, the paid-up share capital of this subsidiary was
RMB10,150,000.

As at 30 June 2019, the paid-up share capital of this subsidiary was
RMB6,707,248.

As at 30 June 2019, this subsidiary did not pay up any share
capital.

Except for UMP Healthcare Limited and UMP Medical China
Holdings Limited, the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by

the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for a derivative financial instrument, equity investments,
debt investments and a contingent consideration receivable
which have been measured at fair value. A disposal group held
for sale is stated at the lower of its carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell as further explained in note 2.4. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current

ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders

of the investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

e M HRRME
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2019%F6 A30H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A
ma
30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

B ISR M

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that

such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4, which are not relevant
to the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the new and revised
HKFRSs are described below:

(@) Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main areas:
the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement
of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction
with net settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to account
for vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled
share-based payments also applies to cash-settled
share-based payments. The amendments introduce an
exception so that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms
and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any cash-settled share-based payment
transactions and has no share-based payment transactions

with net settlement features for withholding tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (“HKAS 39”) for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting.

The Group used the modified retrospective approach and
would recognise any transition adjustments against the
applicable opening balances in equity at 1 July 2018.
Therefore, the comparative information was not restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

Classification and measurement

To determine their classification and measurement
category, HKFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except
equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based
on a combination of the entity’s business model for
managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash
flow characteristics.

The HKAS 39 measurement categories of financial assets,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial
investments and held-to-maturity investments have been
replaced by:

Debt instruments at amortised cost;

- Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, with gains or losses
recycled to profit or loss on derecognition;

- Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, with no recycling of gains
or losses to profit or loss on derecognition; and

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The accounting for the Group’s financial liabilities
remains largely the same as it was under HKAS 39.

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

22 B BEREBEESEH @)

(b)

R2018F1A1H K 2 & MR GF
EHIR - BAY B RS ERFE5R
BREB G EREINRLH T
A ERRE (BB ER
F395) c ERem T ASMAT
E-lrmE: pEKE - RER
gt e

AEE RIS BMEL G EH
2018F7A1HER A 2 E A
EHRERTARERE - Bt - It
REM T EEHN W EBRBEEL
R ERIFE3RER o

FERIE
BEESREENSERITER
B - B R A OB E
FASREE (RATARMET
AR BEEAEBEREER
TAANBERERBZ EBE
= TR 1 -

EREGHEUNEIRZERMEE
(BREEAABEAABRREZEZR
BE)  ERNEBUWIE - fJHH
ECRMBRERBAEIHRER
EBERIE A NBERA

- REERAFEZEBTIA:

- BoREBEFARGBEZEI

AZBEHTA  REIEER
B Ram B RERERR
=Sl

- BAsBEFAHMEZEEK
AZBRART R REIEER
BAgflamsERERE

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR

165



166

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)

As of 1 July 2018, the category of loans and receivables
under HKAS 39, including cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and amounts
due from associates, related companies and a joint

venture, was transferred to debt instruments at amortised

cost under HKFRS 9.

The following information sets out the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 9 on the consolidated statement of

financial position as at 1 July 2018:

22 EFBERBEESEH @)

(b) (&)

PERE(E)
HZE2018F7A1H & &t #
R399 T2 ERREWRKIEAZ
PE(BREASKECEEY &
SEMGRIE - sTABRNFIE - &
REMEBEBRREZSBEENR
Y E AT BB AR R—HEE
BRRIFIE) BREEAMBRESE
AR E R REHER AT EN
BEHEITA-

IWTERSINRANE BT ERE
HEBIFIEE2018FE7 A1 254

MBRRARNTZE

As Reclassification Remeasurement

originally under under As
stated HKFRS 9 HKFRS 9 restated
BEERME REFEHR
REER  BEREER
E9% L
BREE& EFDE ENGtE RE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEX TER TET
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE
- Unlisted equity investments —FETRAKE
(notes (a) and (b)) (B @) R(b) 9,848 (9,848) - -
Investments at fair value through 1R A% BE AEM
other comprehensive income ETLON:
- Unlisted equity investments —FLEMRAKRE
(note (a)) (B &E(a)) - 4,146 3,967 8,113
— Listed debt investments (note (b)) ~ — EWEHERE
(Bt (b)) - 5,702 - 5,702
Held-to-maturity investments HEZIERE
(note (c)) (M) 69,497 (69,497) - -
Financial assets at amortised cost & $4R At 1)
(note (c)) SMEE (HE©) = 69,497 = 69,497
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)

(b)

The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves as at 1

July 2018 is as follows:

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
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22 B BEREBEESEH @)
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TERIE(E)

R2018F7 1R BEERBYH
WMEERFIRERECZEN
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As Reclassification Remeasurement

originally under under As
stated HKFRS 9 HKFRS 9 restated
BEERNE REFBHE
BEER REER
ELL H9%
BEEIE EHSE EfitE REG
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TR TERT TER
Available-for-sale investment REEBEHER
revaluation reserve EI9FMAHNE
under HKAS 39 REBEMER 205 (205) = =
Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9 BEZ AN KRS ES|
FORNMAR EERRE - 205 3,967 4,172

Notes:

The Group elected to designate its unlisted equity investments
previously classified as available-for-sale investments as equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
because the Group invests in such investments for strategic
purposes and intends to hold for the foreseeable future.
Besides, the unlisted equity investments were previously
carried at cost less impairment. Upon initial application of
HKFRS 9 at 1 July 2018, the difference between the carrying
amounts and fair values was adjusted to fair value reserve of
equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group elected to designate its listed debt investments
previously classified as available-for-sale investments as
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
as they are held within a business model whose objective is
to both collect contractual cash flows and sell the financial
assets.

The Group has classified its debt investments previously
classified as held-to-maturity investments as financial assets
at amortised cost as their cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding and the
Group intends to hold and collect contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables and amounts due from
associates, related companies and a joint venture, and
that are not accounted for at fair value through profit
or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an
expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month
basis or a lifetime basis. The Group applied the simplified
approach and recorded lifetime expected losses on
its trade receivables. The Group applied the general
approach and recorded twelve-month expected losses on
its amounts due from associates, related companies and
a joint venture and deposits and other receivables. The
adoption of HKFRS 9 has had no significant impact on
the impairment of the financial assets of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(c)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue (“HKAS 18”)
and related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model
to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates.
The disclosures are included in notes 3 and 5 to the
consolidated financial statements. As a result of the
application of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed the
accounting policy with respect to revenue recognition in
note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group adopted HKFRS 15 using the full retrospective
method of adoption. The effect of the transition on the
current year has not been disclosed as the standard
provides an optional practical expedient. The Group did
not apply any of the other available optional practical
expedients.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M B ERERME

30 June 2019

20196 H30H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIESAND 22 € BERBESEE &)
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(c) (Continued) (c) (&)
Impact on consolidated statement of profit or loss for the HEF2018F6H30H IFFEAFE
year ended 30 June 2018 BamkoZ&

Amounts prepared under

RETIENFEHzEEHE
Previous
HKFRS 15 HKFRS Decrease
ERMKHRE AEBHK
FERIFE155% s %R A
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FHET FHET
Revenue WA (i) 463,441 585,630 (122,189)
Professional services expenses HEX R & A (i) 187,075 309,264 (122,189)
Impact on consolidated statement of financial position as HR2018F6H30H 8947 & 81 ik
at 30 June 2018 RERZZE

Amounts prepared under

BETIENGR SR

Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
EEMB®RE BE B #m/
ZERISE155% BEER (R 2)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(i FHET TET FHET
Liabilities nEBEE
Deferred income included in SEE B RE
other payables and accruals B8R ZELEWA (i) = 16,286 (16,286)
Contract liabilities included in &t A E fth &5 208 &2
other payables and accruals BEFBRAZAHEE (i) 16,286 - 16,286
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(c) (Continued)

@i

Principal versus agent consideration in revenue
recognition

The Group’s corporate healthcare solution services
to contract customers segment provides healthcare
solution to corporate customers by entering into
(i) fixed-fee service contract (i.e. capitation plan
contract and annual retainer contract) and (ii)
fee-for-service contract. As a result of the shift
from the risk-and-reward approach under previous
HKAS 18 to the transfer-of-control approach under
HKFRS 15, the Group has reassessed whether
the Group is acting as an agent or a principal for
its corporate healthcare solution services. Under
HKAS 18, the Group is a principal in the Group’s
corporate healthcare solution services because
the Group has exposure to the significant risks,
including credit risk, and rewards associated with
the rendering of the corporate healthcare solution
services and accordingly, reports revenue generated
therefrom on the basis of gross inflows of economic
benefits. Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
has made its principal versus agent assessment by
evaluating the nature of its promise to customers
under the transfer-of-control approach for each
type of corporate healthcare solution service
contracts. It has determined that the Group is the
principal for the corporate healthcare solution
services under fixed-fee service contract and
fee-for-service contract to the extent the healthcare
services provided by the Group’s consultants at
its self-operated clinics and that the Group is an
agent for the fee-for-service contract in which the
healthcare services are provided by its affiliated

doctors at their respective affiliated clinics.

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(Continued)

(c)

@

Principal versus agent consideration in revenue
recognition (Continued)

The change in presentation with respect to fee for
service rendered by the Group’s affiliated doctors
is primarily because the revenue contract within
the scope of HKFRS 15 becomes identifiable and
all criteria of revenue contract are fulfilled when
plan member receives and the affiliated doctor
provides the healthcare services (i.e. promised
service). Since the affiliated doctor has control
over the promised service before the promised
service was transferred to the plan member, the
affiliated doctor acts as a principal and the Group
acts as an agent in the transaction. As a result of
the change in presentation, the Group has reported
the related revenue generated therefrom on the
basis of net inflows of economic benefits and
restated comparative information by decreasing
both revenue and professional services expenses in
an amount of HK$122,189,000 for the corporate
healthcare solution services to contract customers
segment for the year ended 30 June 2018. There
has been no financial impact on the Group’s profit

before tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(c) (Continued)

(i)

Advances received from customers

The Group generally received advances from its
corporate customers of the Group’s corporate
healthcare solution services under the fixed-fee
service contracts. Prior to the adoption of HKFRS
15, the Group recognised consideration from
customers in advance as deferred income which
was included in other payables and accruals. Under
HKFRS 15, the amount is classified as contract
liabilities which are also included in other payables

and accruals.

There has been no financial impact on the line
items disclosed in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018
while the disclosure in the note of other payables
and accruals was restated, resulting in an increase
in contract liabilities of HK$16,286,000 and
decrease in deferred income of HK$16,286,000.

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H
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(c) (&)

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should
transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The
amendments state that a change in use occurs when
the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change
in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the
use of a property does not provide evidence of a change
in use. The amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine
the date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to
the situation where an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and recognises
a non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation
clarifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part of it) is the date on which an entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment)
or non-monetary liability (such as deferred income)
arising from the payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance of recognising the related item, the entity
must determine the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration. The interpretation
has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group’s accounting policy for the
determination of the exchange rate applied for initial
recognition of non-monetary assets or non-monetary
liabilities is consistent with the guidance provided in the
interpretation.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

()

Amendments under Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures:
Clarifies that an entity that is a venture capital
organisation, or other qualifying entity, may elect, at
initial recognition on an investment-by-investment
basis, to measure its investments in associates and joint
ventures at fair value through profit or loss. If an entity
that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in
an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity,
the entity may elect to retain the fair value measurement
applied by that investment entity associate or joint
venture to the investment entity associate’s or joint
venture’s interests in subsidiaries when applying the
equity method. This election is made separately for each
investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later
of the date on which (i) the investment entity associate or
joint venture is initially recognised; (ii) the associate or
joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (iii) the
investment entity associate or joint venture first becomes
a parent. The amendments did not have any impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?*

Leases’

Insurance Contracts’

Definition of Material’

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23"

3R & A g

A=A

AEEHRERLEGA

2.3 EEMEEMARERZERIME

MBmEREA TS

ERMERRER T REIERTEB

B AR -

EAPERELER  ZEHTH?
EX3 A HI

EEUMRELER ABFBHEERHLY
Elvd -] FEFIE I

EENBREELER REZHEBELNF
FI105 R BB EA=y - VNIVl
S ER|E285 BEHER TE
(2011%F) 2 {&7]

AU HRELEDN HE
E165

BAEVKMEED RESL
B175%

EAGHERNE IR BEAHTH?
REBESER
EX A HI

BE g &R TS - B
F195 2 B85 S E

A SR RBEELGREE
E285k 2 EFT Rl R

B (BRUBEHRE FEHEEZ
2EZ89) THET M
—-REBE2R

2015220174  BEMBRELLE
B FENE 3% BEUBRE

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

2w N o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to
focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 July 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

e M HRRME
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2019%F6 A30H

2.3 CEMEEARERZEBUE

& ZE R m)

BERBEMHERARAKEZEEM B R
SEAZE-FERBALT -

EAVISRELEREIR 2B BBL
RETEEEFETEMNREINES - 25
BEIEE  HRIEEIE—BEBHN—E
EEBREENES  NEAZLBE—IE
WAM—IBELEHGER  —HXRAYHA
BEENNENDEBERER - £ T8
BEEREHNE2TRANBRENER
T —HEBRDAIAGFAE - ZSERTE
HTHME2HEELTENBEEERY
BEREELEENMTG  MEERAE
EMNRANEEMHAREER AR AIE
ELNENEEERNER - ZFEBTN
WETELNESR  FERRAEFREMH
VEMEART - B RSB B IEEAT
EEMEAMUE o o - WRFHTE
BEMBEREAEHEN  ZFBIME
HTIES W A—BRAEBENAAE
BEEFREAR  UBEN—HEEHM
EESEGBREBHTESUEL - A
SEFEHEE2020F7 A1 H R AARRE
BERMZEBE -

BEAVBEHRELENEI10RREEGTE
BII25285% (20114F) Z1ER] SR B A
HMEERFEI0R R BB ST ERIFE28
FQINMF) 2HENEEREEHE
BENRREERARZEMNEEL &SN
AR TR B - ZEBETEK
RIEEEREBEARKEEQRZHE
MEERNERTABK —BEKE - #
REH WS EE R THEXNERD
BERS  RHPEENREKEEE
NEBENREENZHBE R RRINEE
NEINER AR RIREENBRTE
R ZEEBEBURKERELER - &
BEHEIAEDN2016F1AGIBRTE
B SREERNEI105 R BB 2R
22858 (20114F) 2B ET A LA 98 &l A&
B HR - T A OR I AR A B EA S A T g
BRI REERATINETRETKERE
wHIREBREE o AT RFBETAR
REFEA -

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR

177



178

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 CHEMAEMARERZE BT

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4

Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant
and equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The
lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense
on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more
extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose
to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach. The Group will adopt HKFRS
16 from 1 July 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS

16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at 1
July 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In addition,
the Group plans to apply the new requirements to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and measure the lease liability at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
The right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of
the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial application. The Group plans to use
the exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts
whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the date of
initial application.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adoption
of HKFRS 16. As disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements, at 30 June 2019, the Group had future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in aggregate of approximately HK$68,605,000. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein
will need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to
determine the amount of new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to, any
amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short term
leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new

leases entered into before the date of adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 CHEMAEMARERZE BT

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition

of material. The new definition states that information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose consolidated financial statements make
on the basis of those consolidated financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature
or magnitude of information. A misstatement of information
is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 July 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact

on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and does
not include long-term interests that in substance form part
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore,
an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting
for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the
net investment, which includes the long-term interests, only
in the context of recognising losses of an associate or joint
venture and impairment of the net investment in the associate
or joint venture. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
on 1 July 2019 and will assess its business model for such
long-term interests based on the facts and circumstances that
exist on 1 July 2019 using the transitional requirements in
the amendments. The Group also intends to apply the relief
from restating comparative information for prior periods upon

adoption of the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes

(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to
as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of
tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an
entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. The
interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without
the restatement of comparative information. The Group expects
to adopt the interpretation from 1 July 2019. The interpretation
is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of

the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over
the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised

in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as

a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 30 June. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group

are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and

the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures a derivative financial instrument, equity
investments, debt investments and a contingent consideration
receivable at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash- generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow

subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the

same third party;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

=

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When
an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as part of
a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Disposal group held
for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of 50 years or
the remaining lease terms
Leasehold improvements 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office 20%

equipment
Medical equipment 20%
Computer equipment and 33.3%
software
Motor vehicle 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Disposal group held for sale

Disposal group is classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be
the case, the disposal group must be available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for the sale of such disposal group and
its sale must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of
a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are reclassified
as held for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a
non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Disposal group (other than investment properties and financial
assets) classified as held for sale is measured at the lower
of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment classified as held for sale is not
depreciated.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the CGUs level.
Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Brand names
Brand names with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and are not amortised.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful economic lives of 3 to 10 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from 1
July 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both

of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income if both of the following

conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to both holding to collect contractual cash
flow and selling.

J The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation
and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and computed in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (Continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject

to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and contingent consideration
receivable. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2019
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B ISR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group

and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale
financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded

at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 July
2018)” below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation and the loss arising from
impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
and the loss arising from impairment are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before
1 July 2018)” below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified

to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 July 2018 and policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 July 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 July 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other

credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,

including historical and forward-looking information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 July 2018) (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification.
At each reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the
debt investments are considered to have low credit risk using
all reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation,
the Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt
investments. In addition, the Group considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as

detailed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 July 2018) (Continued)

General approach (Continued)
Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors

specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in

calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 July 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are

not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised

directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which

the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 July 2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as
financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Future interest income continues to be accrued based on
the reduced carrying amount of the asset using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 July 2018 and policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 July 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018 and policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018 and policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 July 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 July 2018)

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Shares held under the share award scheme

Where shares of the Company are purchased from the open
market for the share award scheme, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs, is
presented as “Shares held under the share award scheme” and
deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale,

issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any

estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A provision for reinstatement costs is recognised when a
contractual obligation under the terms of an operating lease
has arisen to reinstate a leased property at the end of the lease.
Reinstatement costs are provided at the value of the expected
costs to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period using estimated cash flows and an equivalent asset is
recognised and depreciated over the term of the operating
lease. The estimated future costs of reinstatement are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
Changes in the estimated future costs are added to or deducted
from the cost of the corresponding asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

24 EESHBEME )

FRi®t
IS BRI MELRE - BAERS
LASME R R IE B ARRE R AT S B B E A
SMER - R 2B AR ERN#ER
R o

B IEEERABEIRBHA B
BRESMN FREKEBENSERERZE
*&iﬁﬁia‘gﬁﬁi%%ia%ﬁ@mﬁ%
(RBE)FTE  UERREBLEME
I%/T/ﬂgl?ja’ﬁﬁﬁ RERE -

EEFBARBREEINRERREER
B (E A0 EL B B 7 i T 51 B R D {EL AR
ERMMEEREZHIERE -

ELEHRBERBIMMERRNE R Z8
miEsR - HE T IIIESRBRIN

e EEMEBAGBIAEAVAEREE
F—ERG (LIFEBEH) NE
ENBEMmMES - IEAX%EHI[T
FESH A HRERT B

e BERKMBAR  BMERTNEE
RAMREERNERRERE
BEME  EREZENBOEEA T
EH MEZEEREENAIREK
ARETERME -

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR

211



212

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses

can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 July 2018)
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides
the Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Provision of corporate healthcare solution services and clinical
healthcare services

Revenue from the provision of corporate healthcare solution
services and clinical healthcare services is recognised over
time, using an output method to measure progress towards
completion satisfaction of the service, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group. The output method recognises revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining
services promised under the contract, that best depict the

Group’s performance in transferring control of services.

Other income
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably.

Revenue from the provision of healthcare management services
and administrative support services is recognised over the

scheduled period on a straight-line basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 July 2018)
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)

from the provision of healthcare solution services,
upon the provision of the relevant services or on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the fixed-fee service
contracts (including annual retainer and capitation plans).
Further details are explained in the accounting policy for

“fixed-fee service contracts” below;

from the rendering of medical and dental services, upon

provision of the relevant services;

from the provision of healthcare management services
and administrative support services, upon rendering of

services;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

rental income under operating leases is recognised on the
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fixed-fee service contracts

The Group has certain medical, dental and other service
contracts, in which the Group agrees to provide specific
services over the terms of the contracts for a fixed fee in which
the level of services depends on uncertain future events (the
“Fixed-fee Service Contracts”). The Fixed-fee Service Contracts
are in general of one to two years and the Group receives the
related service fees upfront. The contract customers cannot
recover the service fee upon the expiration of the respective
fixed-fee service contract periods irrespective of whether the
plan members utilised any services under the Fixed-fee Service

Contracts.

At the end of each reporting period, tests are performed to
ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities under the
Fixed-fee Service Contracts. In performing these tests, the
current best estimates of future contractual cash flows under
the Fixed-fee Service Contracts are used. Any deficiency is
immediately charged to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss by establishing a provision for losses.

Fees received or receivable under the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts are recognised on a time proportion basis (i.e.,
straight-line basis) over the terms of the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts. At the time of revenue recognition, plan members
may not utilise any services under the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts and hence, no direct cost will be incurred by the
Group in association with the professional services rendered
by the doctors, dentists and auxiliary service providers.
Accordingly, expenses incurred in connection with the Fixed-
fee Service Contracts are charged to the consolidated statement

of profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 July 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received a
consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes, a share award
scheme and warrants scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors), consultants and a business partner of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees, consultants and a business partner render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

In situations where the share-based payment transactions
are with employees of the Group, the cost of equity-settled
transactions is measured by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
these equity instruments are granted. In situations where the
share-based payment transactions are with non-employees of
the Group, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured
by reference to the fair value of goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If the
Group cannot estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or
services received, the Group measures the goods or services
received, indirectly, by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B ISR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further details
of which are given in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The fair value of the warrants granted is determined by
an external valuer using a Black-Scholes option pricing
model, further details of which are given in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised either in
employee benefit expense or other expenses, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date

of the modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

The Group also operates a defined contribution occupational
retirement scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”) under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the ORSO
Scheme. The ORSO Scheme operates in a similar way to the
MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves the ORSO
Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing employer contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the relevant amount of
forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the

central pension scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Macau are required to participate in a social security
fund operated by the government of the Macao Special
Administrative Region. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain fixed amounts of their payroll costs to
the social security fund. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the social security
fund.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the consolidated
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements:

Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in determining
the provision for income taxes. Determining income tax
provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions and interpretation of tax rules. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislation, interpretations and practices in

respect thereof.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Fixed-fee Service Contracts

The Group enters into certain Fixed-fee Service Contracts in
which the Group uses its own medical and dental centres, staff
and other resources, including affiliated clinics and affiliated
service providers, to provide healthcare services covered
by the contracts. The level of services to be rendered under
the Fixed-fee Service Contracts is uncertain and depends on
uncertain future events. The Group has to consider whether
the cost of meeting its contractual obligations to provide the
services under the Fixed-fee Service Contracts may exceed the
revenue it will receive and the probability of such risk (the
“Risk”), when assessing the pricing and provisioning for such

contracts.

The frequency and severity of the Risk are affected by many
factors, including, inter alia, the health status and awareness
of the persons covered by the Fixed-fee Service Contracts and
that of the general public in Hong Kong, the outbreak/potential
outbreak of any epidemic, climatic changes, the duration of
those contracts (which in general are of short duration), as
well as a diversity of social, industrial and economic factors.
The risk associated with such factors (including any undue
concentration thereof and the probability of the occurrence of
certain events affected by them) on the actual utilisation ratio
for individual contracts is the key source of uncertainty that
needs to be estimated.

The Group manages the Risk through periodic review of the
estimated and actual utilisation ratio of individual contracts
and considers such assessment in revising the relevant fee
schedules and whether or not to renew such Fixed-fee Service
Contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Principal versus agent consideration in revenue recognition

The Group’s corporate healthcare solution services to contract
customers segment provides healthcare solution to corporate
customers by entering into (i) fixed-fee service contract (i.e
capitation plan contract and annual retainer contract) and (ii)
fee-for-service contract.

In determining whether the Group is acting as a principal or as
an agent in the provision of the corporate healthcare solution
services requires judgement and consideration of all relevant
facts and circumstances. The Group is acting as a principal if
it controls a promised good or service before transferring that
good or service to the customer and reports revenue on the
gross inflows of economic benefits. In evaluation of the Group
acting as a principal, the Group considers whether the Group
(i) is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide
the specified good or service; (ii) has inventory risk before the
specified good or service has been transferred to a customer
or after the transfer of control to the customer; and (iii) has
discretion in establishing the price for the specified good or
service. Conversely, the Group is an agent when it does not
control a promised good or service before transferring that
good or service to the customer and reports revenue on the
net inflows of economic benefits (that is, net of the amounts
collected on behalf of the principal). Having considered the
relevant facts and circumstances, the directors has determined
that the Group is the principal for the corporate healthcare
solution services under fixed-fee service contract and
fee-for-service contract to the extent the healthcare services
provided by the Group’s consultants at its self-operated clinics
and accordingly, the related revenue is reported on a gross
basis. The directors has also determined that the Group is an
agent for the fee-for-service contract in which the healthcare
services are provided by its affiliated doctors at their respective
affiliated clinics and accordingly, the related revenue is
presented on a net basis.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 30 June 2019 was
HK$163,711,000 (2018: HK$58,227,000 (restated)). Further
details are given in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assets

The Group determines whether indefinite-lived intangible
assets are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the value in use of the indefinite-lived
intangible assets. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the indefinite-lived intangible assets and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The carrying amount of the indefinite-lived
intangible assets at 30 June 2019 was HK$65,647,000 (2018:
HK$9,242,000 (restated)). Further details are set out in note 16
to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits

together with future tax planning strategies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type
and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of

credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the power and utilities sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

B ISR M

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has

two reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Corporate healthcare solution services (“Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services to Contract Customers”)
segment engages in the provision of corporate healthcare
solutions to contract customers; and

(b) Clinical healthcare services (“Clinical Healthcare
Services”) segment engages in the provision of medical
and dental services, health check and other auxiliary

services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax.
The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest income,
other income and gains, and share of profits and losses of joint
ventures and associates as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude goodwill, investments in joint ventures
and associates, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, financial assets at amortised cost/held-to-maturity
investments, investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income/available-for-sale investments, a
contingent consideration receivable, assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group

basis.

Segment liabilities exclude a derivative financial instrument,
liabilities directly associated with the assets classified as held
for sale and unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as

these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RETHER )
(Continued)
Year ended/as at 30 June 2019 B E£2019F6H30R LFEE R
2019 6A30H
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
EESES)
EFRRMH
TEBEE
R8RSR R R B8 &
T RR& R 128 AR 7% &5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
Segment revenue: DEBYA -
External sales HNEBEHE 246,303 321,074 567,377
Intersegment sales D EPEHEE 1,338 94,350 95,688
247,641 415,424 663,065
Reconciliation: SHED -
Elimination of intersegment sales 53 B ) 4 45 8 (95,688)
Revenue WA 567,377
Segment results DEEE 41,302 60,088 101,390
Reconciliation: SHED -
Interest income FLEMA 6,611
Other income H b A 18,803
Share of profits and losses of: FEMEFE R EE
A joint venture E£E&NT 11
Associates iR /N| 2,444
Corporate and other RRIREMADSRAS
unallocated expenses (94,984)
Profit before tax B A5 A A B 34,275
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

201956 A30H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BRESHER
(Continued)
Year ended/as at 30 June 2019 (Continued) B Z£2019F6H30R LFEE R
201956 A30R (&)
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract  Healthcare
Customers Services Total
EES
BEFREM
TEEE
R A2 R IR iR K B8 R
FRER®% & 62 iR 75 &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
Segment assets DEEE 133,553 154,686 288,239
Reconciliation: ST
Elimination of intersegment 53 P ] e KRR TR 4 8H
receivables (16,035)
Corporate and other unallocated RNAREMARD BEEE
assets 569,896
Total assets BEE 842,100
Segment liabilities PHEE 74,644 94,660 169,304
Reconciliation: JHED
Elimination of intersegment payables %> & s fiE 1< 7% 78 4K $4 (16,035)
Corporate and other unallocated NRANRHEMARDEEE
liabilities 2,869
Total liabilities waE 156,138
Other segment information: Hipp HEH :
Depreciation and amortisation YrE ME 2,931 18,039 20,970
Capital expenditure* NG 6,426 12,770 19,196
Write-off of items of property, plant #i$E¥ % -« B&E &
and equipment H#EIER - 92 92
Write-off of trade receivables 155 2 5 M WGRIE 222 4 226
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and g BRARAXBEREME  BFEREE (B
equipment (including additions from the acquisitions of subsidiaries/ FERERBHRBLAR, EBZRE) LB
business) and deposits paid for purchases of items of property, plant B BERRBHEEXNNRESD -

and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

201946 H30H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RETHER )
(Continued)
Year ended/as at 30 June 2018 B ZE201856A30B LEE R
201856 H30H
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
BRSNS
EEREM
HERE
REEERR Fe K B8 &
LES Y R AR 7% &aEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
(restated)
(BEF))
Segment revenue: DEBYA -
External sales HNEBEHE 224,317 239,124 463,441
Intersegment sales DEHEEE 2,332 84,369 86,701
226,649 323,493 550,142
Reconciliation: SBEF -
Elimination of intersegment sales 73 B e 4 15 8 (86,701)
Revenue WA 463,441
Segment results D EELE 36,311 40,044 76,355
Reconciliation: SBEF -
Interest income ) B WA 4,934
Other income H At e A 6,657
Share of profits and losses of: =RV DSy SR
Joint ventures E£E&NT 254
Associates /NG| 2,238
Corporate and other RREIREMASRAS
unallocated expenses (41,933)
Profit before tax B A5 A ) 48,505
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

201956 A30H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REIHER @
(Continued)
Year ended/as at 30 June 2018 (Continued) B Z£2018F6H30R LFEE R
20185 6H308 (&)
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
RN
ERREM
hEER
REERRR i IR B8 /%
7 ER RERTS ait
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
(restated)
(&&E5))
Segment assets DEEE 129,280 186,958 316,238
Reconciliation: ST
Elimination of intersegment 53 P ] e KRR TR 4 8H
receivables (16,038)
Corporate and other unallocated NRAREMARD BEEE
assets 437,420
Total assets BEE 737,620
Segment liabilities PBEE 67,898 46,689 114,587
Reconciliation: SHE
Elimination of intersegment payables 4> & ff JfE 1 7k 78 3 44 (16,038)
Corporate and other unallocated NRAINRHEMADEEE
liabilities 4,666
Total liabilities waE 103,215
Other segment information: Hipp HEH :
Depreciation and amortisation I Ny 2,251 16,950 19,201
Capital expenditure* BARRX* 2,492 26,900 29,392
Write-off of items of property, plant #i$E¥ % -« B&E &
and equipment H#EIER = 54 54
Write-off of trade receivables Hf 38 B 5 e kI8 108 = 108
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and g BRARAXBEREME  BFEREE (B
equipment (including additions from the acquisitions of a subsidiary/ EREKE-—RBNBEAR EB2RE)
businesses) and deposits paid for purchases of items of property, REEWE BERRHEEEINOR
plant and equipment. BE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group operates
within three geographical locations, Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China. Further details of the geographical
information in respect of revenue from external customers are

set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

4.

e M HRRME

30 June 2019

2019%F6 A30H
BESWER &)
i 35 &

HZE2019F6A308 L FE - AEBER
=EE (BIES - BPIRFPBEAH) &
BER - BRARAINBEF AR
i B R 2 — P BE NGRS B
HwEM S -

Non-current assets RBEE
2019 2018
2019% 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(restated)
(e=E=75)
Hong Kong B 329,012 156,167
Mainland China R A 24,759 26,222
Macau R 2,718 3,825
356,489 186,214

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments and

deferred tax assets.

LR RBEEERNIEREEZM
E TEREERIANEERBEE -

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

201956 A30H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REIHER @
(Continued)
Information about major customers FEREFEHR
Revenue from two major customers which accounted for 10% KEMHIEEP EAKEXAERE
or more of the Group’s revenue from the Corporate Healthcare HEPRMEXBERERRT ERY
Solution Services to Contract Customers segment is set out DEHIWAT10%HIA EREF) KA
below: BT
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
(restated)
(gEE5)
Customer A 225 A 49,577 46,588
Customer B ZF B 23,191 22,928
5. REVENUE 5. A
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REBBPAZDTWT :
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
(restated)
(e&E5))
Revenue from contracts with customers FF &4 A
Provision of corporate healthcare solution A& 4 FFIRHENHEERE
services to contract customers: REEBRTERT -
Medical services BE RIS 225,483 207,331
Dental services 7F BHBR 7 20,820 16,986
Provision of clinical healthcare services: 21 Fa ik 2 B (R 2 R 75 -
Medical services B E RIS 261,258 182,974
Dental services oF BHBR 1 59,816 56,150
567,377 463,441
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 30 June 2019

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

5. WA @
BEEAHWA
() EBHFEZBAER

BZ2019F6H308 ILEE

Corporate

Healthcare
Solution

Services to Clinical
Contract Healthcare

Segments Customers Services Total
2 BENEF
RO ERE
REMERE R e PR B& A
PR 7% = 62 iR 75 &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET
Type of services MR EE
Medical services R AR 7S 225,483 261,258 486,741
Dental services IF R 75 20,820 59,816 80,636
Total revenue from contracts B P& # U A 44%E
with customers 246,303 321,074 567,377
Geographical markets b 32 T 35
Hong Kong BB 226,856 266,419 493,275
Mainland China FR B A b 2,624 51,296 53,920
Macau SELPY 16,823 3,359 20,182
Total revenue from contracts B F & 4 A & 58
with customers 246,303 321,074 567,377

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

5. REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

5. WA @

BEFEHBA

() RIFZBAER(E)

For the year ended 30 June 2018 BE20185F6H30B LLFE
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services to Clinical
Contract Healthcare
Segments Customers Services Total
2 &P R OkS=
REGERER
REBATR B K 28 7%
Bk %5 R 18 AR 75 CEl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET
(restated) (restated)
(re&m75) (&)
Type of services PR %5 3 2
Medical services BERS 207,331 182,974 390,305
Dental services oF R} AR 7% 16,986 56,150 73,136
Total revenue from contracts ~ BF A LW A 4258
with customers 224,317 239,124 463,441
Geographical markets i 38 5
Hong Kong a8 207,386 177,871 385,257
Mainland China A B A 3 1,944 54,623 56,567
Macau P 14,987 6,630 21,617
Total revenue from contracts BP AW A LREE
with customers 224,317 239,124 463,441
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(O]

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period and recognised from performance

obligations satisfied in previous periods:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

30 June 2019

2019%F6 A30H
5. WA @
EEAHWA (8)
i) BOHEZWAEHR(E)

TR 2NN AR E AR R L
ABEBRNENABEARNBE
HHEEKNBORTERNEA

TR

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Revenue recognised that was FARSHIENEE
included in contract liabilities TERHUA -
at the beginning of
the reporting period:
Provision of corporate healthcare Rt ¥ B ERERH L
solution services Y 16,286 8,515

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Provision of corporate healthcare solution services

The Group provides healthcare solution services by
entering into (i) capitation plan contract; (ii) annual
retainer contract; and (iii) fee for service contract with
contract customers. The performance obligation is
satisfied over time as services are rendered. Payment
is either paid upfront for capitation plan contract
and annual retainer contract or billed based on each
treatment incurred for fee for service contract which is
generally due within 30 to 60 days.

Provision of clinical healthcare services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered; and payment is mainly on cash or
credit card settlement.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) which amounted to HK$21,849,000 as at 30
June 2019 are expected to be recognised within one year.

(ii)

BREE
FRASERAOEENERSD
LN

FEH P B E R A RIRTF
AEBBEBESNTFLRIN)IEA
HAEBFE AL (VFETEEK
BAEX s R(iDRBRES O
EBRERERRAIRRE - BOHE
EREZ R MR E MR — R R
NERK - BABEBHEASHOR
FETHEREANFEARA
o mRIEUE A 4 S mEARIEE
KB FB S — R AR30E60
HREHEE-

HE (R fig I B IR (R 12 IR T
BABEEREEREOREHMN —
BEBANER: BXERBEER
ERREMKE -

M2019F6 H30 B TH TEAE
FOCRERSKIBDREK) X H
821,849,000 THEEN —F R
TR °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

6.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains is as

follows:

H i WA e W58
AR E A RIS BT T -

2019 2018
20195 2018%
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pitt TERT TAT
Administrative support fees THXEER 2,667 2,394
Bank interest income RITH S WA 1,071 376
Interest income on held-to-maturity investments £ 75 Z 2| B2 Z &9 7 8 LA - 2,870
Interest income on financial assets BB R 2 1)
at amortised cost EREENMNSKA 3,645 -
Interest income on available-for-sale investments a] it 1 & 1% & & ] 8 U A - 1,688
Interest income on debt investments BORBESAHMD
at fair value through other PEHBAZEBRE
comprehensive income HOF B 1,895 -
Rental income AN 7 784
Dividend income from financial assets BRARBEFABRL
at fair value through profit or loss SREENREBA 96 85
Fair value gains on financial assets BRARBEFABREL
at fair value through profit or loss PREENALBENEG = 71
Fair value gain on contingent consideration ~ EWSHAEREN A £ EEKE
receivable 2,777 -
Fair value gain on derivative financial TE2BRITAN AR EELKS
instrument 2,036 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME QR 2R 39 9,315 -
Gain on remeasurement of previously BN EBTME
held interest in an available-for-sale —FA e
investment REEZMKE - 500
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity HEREZIHREN
investments, net WFE = 169
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMELEREN
investments, net Wz % 5 = 78
Gain on disposal of items of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment BRI 520 -
Foreign exchange differences, net 5 E%E (FE) - 833
Waiver of other payable e H fth e RIE = 152
Others Hit 1,385 1,591
25,414 11,591
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

30 June 2019

201946 A30H
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BR® AR
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBENBRBARBENE, GEA) T
(crediting): SIRIEHZEH -
2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i THET FET
Auditor’s remuneration BRI & 2,406 2,388
Cost of inventories consumed EREGFEKE 30,624 23,730
Cost of services rendered (restated) ERUERBHA (KEF)) 229,321 187,075
Depreciation and amortisation ITE K 22,701 19,997
Employee benefit expense (including & B&FI5 X (£ 5% F Bl
directors’ remuneration (note 8))": (fzE8)) " - 134,644 121,405
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and He R Bek
other benefits H & 7H
Equity-settled share-based LMEE”\Zi BHUARMD "
payment expense Bt ?f\ﬁ'ﬁi 10,789 1,679
Pension scheme contributions Wiﬁiﬂf F
(defined contribution schemes)? (TEREHEFRETE)) ¢ 8,193 9,062
153,626 132,146
Equity-settled share-based payment N i Em AR 2 B
expense (including employees, A% (REEE  &EX
professional consultants B R EAM B
and other business partner)" 34, 35 48,301 1,771
Foreign exchange differences, net PE X =58 OF(E) 441 (833)
Gain on disposal of items of ﬁEW% WE Rk &ERE
property, plant and equipment Eollga (520) -
Write-off of items of property, WEME  BERRHEEAR
plant and equipment 92 54
Minimum leases payments under REEENKEBERNRK
operating leases 47,081 36,325
Write-off of trade receivables HSEE 5 re k08 226 116
Write-off of receivables due from WsER B — BB EE’]
a related party JE 4 5k = 195
Impairment of amounts due from PR N R R OR R
associates 25 695 2,149
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial BARBEFABZNSR
assets at fair value through profit BENAREEER (k&)
or loss 27 (71)
& Inclusive of employee benefit expense of HK$9,809,000 (2018: & BEREHEXREEN EAREERE
HK$10,718,000) paid/payable to the Group’s employees for & /{8 8 18 A5 %9,809,0007% 7T (2018
the rendering of professional services, which was classified as % :10,718,000/57T) + 5 B AL bR A
“Professional services expenses” in the consolidated statement of BERTRBEASXRBER] -

profit or loss.

# As at 30 June 2019, the Group had no material forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension

schemes in future years (2018: Nil).

The balance included share-based payment expense of

HK$37,512,000 (2018: Nil) in connection with the issuance of
warrants to a business partner of the Group, Zheng He Health and
Medical Resources Limited, during the year. Further details are
included in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

5 B0 1 55 A8 U
Ei\ HRRE

g EREBEFRAEHEANASENXE

%’H:Zheng He Health and Medical
Resources LimitedZ 77 3R /% 1 35 2 LARK
%) %%Emaﬁﬁmﬁﬁiw 512, ooo,%n
(20185 : ) - it — S HBEHREEA M
H R M 5E34 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

=
FEEEEMRBEEEMERF M
BRABES ETARA - BERRIEA
£383(1)(@) ~ (b) ~ (O RDNEKREFHE R A
(KEZBFMNRER) ROISE 250K E
-

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FAET

Fees ae 1,850 1,718

Other emoluments: H A B &5 -

Salaries, allowances and other benefits He o 2R EMEF 14,238 14,249
Equity-settled share-based UEREEN UKD A

payment expense ERONREX 8,522 1,021

Pension scheme contributions RIRE TSR 86 79

22,846 15,349

24,696 17,067

During the prior years and current year, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option schemes of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the consolidated financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’

remuneration disclosures.
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8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent non-executive directors

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

8. EEXME (»®
@) BIFHTES

Salaries,
honuses, Equity-settled

allowances  share-hased Pension
and other payment scheme Total
Fees henefits expense  contributions remuneration
e

AL NEREEN
RER NRBARER Bire
i  HeEN  HEREx O HEHRR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TEL TAL

2019 2019%
Mr. Lee Luen Wan, John 85 jp THMEEE wzigEs 250 = 218 - 468
AF4T)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald ses e~ ZEIR B/ (#5422 - 200 - 218 - 418
A4
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike BREKE 200 - 146 = 346
650 = 582 = 1,232
2018 20185
Mr. Lee Luen Wan, John 885 jp BHELE e, 250 _ _ _ 250
AF41)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sgsjp ZEREBL (x422 200 - - = 200
AF4T)
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike LYol 200 _ _ _ 200
650 = = = 650
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

201956 A30H
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM=E )
(b) Executive directors (b) HMITEE
Salaries,
bonuses, Equity-settled
allowances  share-based Pension
and other payment scheme Total
Fees benefits expense contributions remuneration
2
A LEREEN
EER URGHER Rk
ik HiER  WARHEX HEEE Wewi
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT FET THT FHT
2019 2019
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong BRIE 200 7,336 1,869 = 9,405
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen ~$8Z %+ 200 4,000 1,231 28 5,459
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick LREEE 200 - 1,203 10 1,413
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael BXBRELE 200 - 1,203 10 1,413
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FRALE 200 2,902 1,231 28 4,361
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick THEBAE 200 = 1,203 10 1,413
1,200 14,238 7,940 86 23,464
2018 20185
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong BRIEL 200 7,373 538 - 8,111
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen ~$8Z %+ 200 4,290 229 28 4,747
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick wLELL 200 = 12 10 222
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael BXBEE 200 - 12 10 222
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FRELE 200 2,586 230 28 3,044
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick* TR A 68 = = 3 71
1,068 14,249 1,021 79 16,417
& On 28 February 2018, Dr. Lee Pak Cheung was appointed as & 201852280 - THFEBE LR
an executive director of the Company. RERERRAITES -
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8.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2018:
Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2018: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three

(2018: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining two (2018: two) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

EEME ()
ER AEEBEDNKENESHE

TERIMARNEE K IIA RN K E 1% Y 2B
SAERREBA(E (20185 - &) -

FRAMEBEEEHREXRERETMHE
B2 HE (20184 « #&) o

hTEEeTFMES

FRA AFEERiMEERIE=S
(2018F : =H)EFE ' HENWESFHE
BN EXHEs - FAHBTWA (2018
FMB)RFERARAEENHIEITTERE
HOESTHEENMESFBLT

2019 2018

2019 20184

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FHET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits # & - FEBL K EH M 1g 3,151 2,963
Equity-settled share-based NS EN ARG AERS

payment expense R 839 71

Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIfE K 42 42

4,032 3,076

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

BT MFEERIFTREREEET
SRR ABIOE

number of employees

BEAH
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T E 2,000,000/% 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T ZE 2,500,0007% 7T 1 =
2 2

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

9.

10.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

During the prior years and current year, share options were
granted to a non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employee in respect of her services to the Group, further
details of which are included in the disclosures in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of
such options, which has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the consolidated financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

INCOME TAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%

(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in

Hong Kong during the year.

Commencing from the year ended 30 June 2019, the assessable
profits of a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary of the Group
(as elected by the directors) are subject to the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime which was effective on 28 March 2019 that
the first HK$2 million of assessable profits will be taxed at
8.25%, and the remaining assessable profits will be taxed at
16.5%.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in

which the Group operates.

10.

TEBEEHFMES @)
RBEFERAFE  —RFEEMHE
TRARNSEFHESREAAER
AR R IR B A - A B — S B R
RSB BREMEMMBE - XSH
B AR BENEHABEES - IR
REHANESABERPRR - MatA
REFEESANBRENSBREE L
RFBEERITRARBSHFIES Y
EE

8
EANEHRERERNEBTEELEN M
JEERAEZ16.5% (2018%F : 16.5%)
BB R B -

HE E2019F6 A30B L FE# - A&
B — R & B ML HH B A F A
AT A X M AR SRS E AR R
B2019F3 A28 £ - 2B BB T
B FE SR A R #5128 25% FH R F - M
BT IR R 812 16.5%F REF -

Ho 3 5 FE SR A B R BRI AR B
BHRERK, AR ORITH X

st
H o
>t

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THETT
Current — Hong Kong BVER— &%

Charge for the year FRXEZM 10,251 7,655
Overprovision in prior years MEFERERE - (493)

Current — Elsewhere BN E— H fh3h =
Charge for the year FREZM 3,535 2,941
Withholding tax B 74 -
Underprovision in prior years BEFERBTR 1,290 115
Deferred (note 31) BT (M45E31) (424) 785
Total tax charge for the year FRAMERAL BT 14,726 11,003
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

20196 A30H
10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. Fri8% (@)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before REBABTEEEHE (AR AKRE
tax using the Hong Kong statutory tax rate (the statutory tax SR B X R SR B X P FE A HE (& 60K
rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of the Company’s ERE)FEBERRBRBAANEN RS
subsidiaries are domiciled) to the tax charge at the Group’s s B LA B BR B R E B < iR
effective tax rate is as follows: [UNNE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT TETT
Profit before tax BR B A FIE 34,275 48,505
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate 32 &% 16.5% (2018 F : 16.5%)
of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) B TE B 2R Pt i8R 5,655 8,003
Difference in tax rates for specific R RARE R O E M R A K
jurisdictions or enacted by local tax B R 2R T
authority, net 2 (536)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of FtiBTE MM E B BIEFAE
previous periods 1,290 (378)
Profits and losses attributable to joint & & A & K Bt & A &) FE (5 K8
ventures and associates N BB (405) (411)
Income not subject to tax BAGMTIAZ WA (3,104) (774)
Expenses not deductible for tax A2 X 10,229 3,345
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B & HifE8) B 2 i EHE 1B (686) (1,875)
Tax losses not recognised RERZ HIEEE 2,645 3,567
Withholding tax in respect of dividend F& B 3 #3f8 2 FEO L
payments 74 =
Others H At (974) 62
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate EANEBETEHEFE 2 HBE I M 14,726 11,003
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

11. DIVIDENDS 1. KR
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHT
Dividends recognised as distribution FRAEABRDIKARE :
during the year:
Final 2018 - HK2.35 cents 2018F REIR B — B EBK
(2017: HK2.2 cents) per ordinary 2357 (20174 + 2.274L)
share 17,795 16,566
Less: Dividend for shares held under 3 : A% 1) BBt 218 T8 2B
the share award scheme B A% 17 B0 A% B (208) (103)
17,587 16,463
Interim 2019 — HK0.65 cents 20195 F IR B — B IR B
(2018: 0.55 cents) per ordinary share 0.6581l (20184 : 0.55/81l) 4,926 4,144
Less: Dividend for shares held under B AR R EhET BT TR
the share award scheme B AR 15 1 AR B (59) (28)
4,867 4,116
22,454 20,579
Dividend proposed after the end of the & HIREHFIRZE. -
reporting period:
Proposed final 2019 (with scrip option) E&2019F KHIR S CGER AR
- HK2.55 cents (2018: HK2.35 BIEIE) - SREBR2.55%8
cents) per ordinary share (20184 : 2.35%&1) 19,324 17,752
The proposed final 2019 dividend of HK2.55 cents per FRNEZ2019F REARETRE AR
25578l GERIARM BBIE) BEAAQ

ordinary share for the year, with a scrip dividend alternative,
is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company of HK$12,798,000 (2018: HK$37,555,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
748,060,822 (2018: 744,431,364) in issue during the vyear,
as adjusted to exclude the shares held under the share award

scheme.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$12,798,000 (2018:
HK$37,555,000). The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares
of 748,060,822 (2018: 744,431,364) in issue during the year
and excluded the shares held under the share award scheme,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 7,764,509
(2018: 13,995,134) assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise of all share options and
warrants (2018: share options) into ordinary shares.

12.

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

RAREERBERFEARLSE
IR 2 R

BREABRMNESBEDERARAREBE
mE A AFEEFERNTE12,798,000/%8 7T
(20184 : 37,555,00087C) R ERND &
17 % AR b0 # 7 19 Ak 21748,060,822 %
(20184F : 744,431,3640%) (FEHE - I
BERMDEBEEIETEZNRM) &

= o
Ean

BREEFERINCBEHNEREARR LB
B FEA A E AR E2,798,000
%0 (20184 : 37,555,000/% 75) &f
HoERMAMNTBRMNELESRE A
FEERERNBANFANFEAND BT
748,060,822% (20184 : 744,431,364
) LRBREE - WA BIERSZEF
ZBTEBNRG  URBRERTER
PEAE N AR HERE (20184F « BERLHE) ]
BRAEBTEALT AR  REEBHFAE
TR AR MNE T HRET,764,5090%
(2018%F : 13,995,1340%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

20196 A30H
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % - BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures Computer
Leasehold ~ and office Medical  equipment Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment equipment  and software vehicle Total
Bg
ik £ER EHRE
BF  DEEE  ROERE  BRRE R&k it} CEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tin Tin T Tin Tin T
30 June 2019 2019564308
At30 June 2018 and at 1 July 2018: 12018564308 &
W01857A18
Cost A 57,125 39,480 0,659 52,175 18,350 555 174,344
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE - (23,533) (3,425) (29,713) (13,309) (555) (70,535)
Net carrying amount RHAE 57,125 15,947 3,234 22,462 5,041 - 103,809
At T July 2018, net of accumulated R0 AIR
depreciation TR ETE 57,125 15,947 3,234 22,462 5,041 - 103,809
Additions KE - 5,706 476 4251 398 - 14,376
Acquisitions of subsidiariesbusiness KEHBLR/ 25
(note 38) (o) - 1170 308 3,409 37 - 494
Disposalshwrite-off HE /i = (13) (23) (146) @ = (184)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ ERFHEHE (772) (7,027) (1,183) (8,833) (3,557) - (21,394)
Exchange realignment ERiA% - (171) (35) (215) (49) - (470)
AL30 June 2019, net of accumulated R2019%6A308 -
depreciation Bl epi 56,353 15,612 2775 20,908 5413 = 101,061
At 30 June 2019: 201956308
Cost Wk 57,125 45,717 7076 53,192 22,200 531 186,041
Accumulated depreciation ZihE (7712) (30,105) (4,501) (32,284) (16,787) 531 (84,980)
Net carrying amount BEFE 56,353 15,612 2775 20,908 5413 - 101,060
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

13. ¥ - BERSZE@®

Furniture,
fixtures Computer
Leasehold ~ and office Medical  equipment Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment equipment  and software vehicle Total
i
g RER ek
BT DEEE BDER EERR e E aif
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER TEL TR ThEL TEL TER ThEL
30 June 2018 201856A30R
At July 2017: R017£7818
Cost RA& - 33,703 5,665 40,707 14730 537 95,342
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - (15,400) (2,380) (22,937) (10,302) (389) (51,408)
Net carrying amount Em#E = 18,303 3,085 17,770 4428 148 43,934
At 1 July 2017, net of accumulated R017E7A18
depreciation BANRZiHE = 18,303 3,085 17,770 4,428 148 43,934
Additions AE 113,738 5,751 1,068 6,492 3,723 - 130,772
Acquisitins of a subsidiarybusinesses ~ WE-FHEBRF/£5
(note 38) (Hatse) - 149 4 5,328 39 - 5,560
Disposalshwrite-off HE /i = (55) (37) (18) ] = (111)
Depreciation provided during the year  ERFEHE - (8,308) (1,131) (7,133) 3,158) (156) (19,886)
Assets included in a disposal group FASBRRELEN-ELE
classified as held for sale (note 40) EFRNEE (i) (56,613) = S = = S (56,613)
Exchange realignment EiLAE - 107 5 3 10 8 15
At 30 June 2018, net of accumulated #2018%6A308
depreciation HAKZHHE 57,125 15947 3,034 2,461 5,041 s 103,80
At 30 June 2018; 201856308 :
Cost Ak 57,125 39,480 0,659 52175 18,350 555 174,344
Accumulated depreciation Z2iE S (23,533) (3,425) (29,713) (13,309) (555) (70,535)
Net carrying amount EEYE 57,125 15,047 3% 2462 5041 S 103809
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

20196 A30H
14. GOODWILL 14. B8
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(restated)
(&%)
At beginning of year R 7] 58,227 41,357
Acquisitions of subsidiaries/businesses Al PNCIE 3
(note 38) (KI5E38) 105,484 16,870
At end of year RER 163,711 58,227
Impairment testing of goodwill 72 R BRI =
Details of the impairment testing of goodwill have been set out R EA RN FEE NG S MBS WmE
in note 16 to these consolidated financial statements. MizE16 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

30 June 2019

are expected to generate net cash inflows to the Group indefinitely.
As at 30 June 2019, brand names with indefinite useful lives were

tested for impairment (note 16).

20196 H30H
15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. Hith | EE
Customer
Brand names* relationships Total
Y EFBE a5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
30 June 2019 201956 H30H
Cost at 1 July 2018, net of R2018F7A1HEAA -
accumulated amortisation Mk 25t # s
(restated) (mE75) 9,242 111 9,353
Acquisitions of subsidiaries/ WEHB AR, —BEK
business (note 38) (BFzE38) 56,405 14,927 71,332
Amortisation provided FRFTRE
during the year - (1,307) (1,307)
At 30 June 2019 M2019%6 A30H 65,647 13,731 79,378
At 30 June 2019: 72019 6A30R :
Cost PN 65,647 15,260 80,907
Accumulated amortisation ZET = (1,529) (1,529)
Net carrying amount REEE 65,647 13,731 79,378
30 June 2018 201856 H30H
At 1 Ju[y 2017: MW2017F7A18 :
Cost [D9N - 333 333
Accumulated amortisation 2 = (1171) (111)
Net carrying amount fREFE - 222 222
Cost at 1 July 2017, net of R201767 1B B KA -
accumulated amortisation Mk 2T = 222 222
Acquisitions of a subsidiary/ Y —RmmB AR,
business (note 38) ¥75 (aE38) 9,242 = 9,242
Amortisation provided during FNE R
the year = (11 (111)
At 30 June 2018 (restated) R2018F6 /308 (L&) 9,242 111 9,353
At 30 June 2018 (restated): R2018F6A30H (KEF) :
Cost B AR 9,242 333 9,575
Accumulated amortisation 2 = (222) (222)
Net carrying amount REFE 9,242 111 9,353
& Brand names are regarded as having indefinite useful lives as they * mEEBORSEEERATERFH -

RAAETEHANERBARNEEES
FIEE A > R2019F6 A308 - BB
PRAIEAFHNREEBERTRER

# (FfaE16) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILLAND 16. B2 REREHNETLEER

INDEFINITE-LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSETS =R

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets acquired BEMEBERE BN ERFHN
through business combinations are allocated to the following BRVEEDNOREZEUNTREESSEUE
cash-generating units for impairment testing: TRERR

e Hong Kong medical services cash-generating unit; s FBEBERBRSELEN

e PRC medical services cash-generating unit; and e HEBERBHEEELEML: K

BERTRMREAGELEN -

J Hong Kong dental services cash-generating unit.

The respective carrying amounts of goodwill and PTREERSELENUNBENERSF
indefinite-lived intangible assets allocated to each of the HHETEENSAREENT

cash-generating units are as follows:

Hong Kong medical services ~ PRC medical services Hong Kong dental services Total
EERRRY PRERRE ERINEH ait
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

20195 20185 20198 2018 20198 20185 20198 20185
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
T#7 Titn T#n Thr T Thn THn Fin

(restated) (restated)

(&) (BE7)

Carrying amounts of goodwill BENEAE 130,291 24,807 8,602 8,602 24,818 24,818 163,711 58,227
Carrying amounts of indefinite-lived ~ ERFHNEREERH

intangible assets i 05,647 9,242 - - - = 05,647 9,242
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND

INDEFINITE-LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Continued)
The recoverable amounts of the above cash-generating units

have been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year period.
The growth rates and discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections are as follows:

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

16. BERERFHNEFLEER

(=R EAE))

PR EEEMARIRE S EREE
REEETHEMNEE  NERSRE
BEMIERE R FREOMBORE
HRSREN - EARE SRR A IE
RRRFHREMT

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong medical services ERBERY
Growth rate iR R 3-10% 3-10%
Discount rate = 15% 14%
PRC medical services o R AR 7S
Growth rate by 5% 10%
Discount rate PR xR 19% 18%
Hong Kong dental services ERTRRG
Growth rate iR & 10% 10%
Discount rate PR K 14% 14%

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating units for 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018.
The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible
assets:

Budgeted revenue — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted revenue is the average revenue
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,

taking into account the expected growth rate.

7201956 H30H 20186 H30H &
BReEABMTABERER TR
HBEEBEDENATEIERRFAAE
EREEAETHERERFHNER
BEREANH

FERA — AREEBEERAEEE
BENEERERRBEEFEN —FHIF
HFIHWA - Rt RFEHERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

20196 H30H
16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND 16. BEREREHNEFLEER
INDEFINITE-LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSETS EREEAE )
(Continued)
Growth rate — The growth rate is determined with reference WRE — EREEREFHBMAIG
to the growth rate for the relevant unit, adjusted for expected REMET  WHBEHERK mEHER
business, market development and economic condition. N A BRI T IARE -
Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and FHEE — MRANTIREBRBATT
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit which is R BR 2235 K S B & AN R S N4 9B PR
determined with reference to the weighted average cost of EENEBECNSERR -
capital of the Group.
17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. AEELQARINRKRE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FET
Share of net assets JEIRFEE 1,158 1,196

The balances with a joint venture are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture as at 30 June 2019 are

17. REERTANERE @)
REBAE RN RIN2019F6 308 K5

as follows: B
Place of Percentage of effective interest
registration/ BEREREIN
Particulars of capital/  incorporation Ownership Voting Profit
Name issued share held and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
BEEXR/ AEAR R AR
L BERITROFE REXBE BEERER kAR REIR  TEEK
FERFEERY Registered capital of PRC 50 50 50 Provision of dental
ARRA RMB1,000,000 services
AMERARK hE BRAL T R AR
1,000,0007C
UMP Dental Centre Ordinary shares of Hong Kong 50 50 50  Provision of dental
JV Limited HK$2 services
(“UMP Dental JV")*
HWEBBIHEERR ERB2ER BA FR 4 F BHIR %
(HaFHeaEnal)*
& On 5 December 2017, the Group set up a joint venture, UMP Dental & 7201712858 « & B R50:505 %

JV, on a 50:50 basis with an independent third party. UMP Dental H—FBIE =KL —EEE QA6
JV is primarily engaged in the provision of dental services in Hong EBBIRNAEAT HMABRKITRA

Kong. BRATERBBREFRMITHRS -

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of UMP Dental JV because the share of losses of the
joint venture exceeded the Group’s interest in the joint venture
and the Group has no obligation to take up further losses.
The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of loss of
this joint venture for the current year and cumulatively were
HK$412,000 (2018: HK$580,000) and HK$992,000 (2018:
HK$580,000), respectively.

LR EHARRRBEREER °

AEBEDRIIBEREELBEERT
BMeEERANEE REAREGZA
BRAMNEBEEBLASERZAE
NAIMER  AEEWEEFEREE
—HEE c NREBRAFE R RGBS
HEEARNAERBESEI A
412,0007% 7t (20184 : 580,000 JT)
$992,00078 7T (20184 : 580,000/
TT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17. REEATINKRE (&)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRAAGENTBEANEEEGER

information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not AR E AR S E R

individually material:

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FTET
Share of the joint venture’s profit/(loss) EiEEERRFE (&) &
and total comprehensive income/(loss) FREEMEA(EEB) B8
for the year (38) 275
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s A&EBREE R A
investments in the joint ventures RERMEAE 1,158 1,196
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

20196 H30H
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtE R RN E

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FET
Share of net assets I FEE 8,976 5,485

Particulars of the associates are as follows: B AR FAB RO

Place of
Particulars of registration/ Percentage of

capital/issued

incorporation

ownership interest

Name shares held and business attributable to the Group  Principal activities
BEEX/ it/ ERRT  ARERGEREERS
2R ERTROFHE REXBH BAL TEER
2019 2018
2019 2018F
Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 20 20 Provision of medical laboratory
scanning services
MBEZH A AR LERLA) LEk BB REBRICRBERS
Flash Mover Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 25 25 Provision of magnetic resonance
imaging services
REBRAF gl B BR AL 0 AR AL B IR T
Sunny Wealth Consultants Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of surgical services
HEBERERAA ERR BB REEF MRS
Tiger Era Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of surgical and
consultation services
ERBRAA EEL BE R R A ARG
UMP Eyecare and Optometry Centre  Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 Provision of medical services
Limited (“UMP Eyecare”) and sale of spectacles
BoBERMERERELTL LBk BB REBBRRERHERR
ARAR ([BARE)
UMP Medical Centre (Tsing Yi) Limited ~ Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 Provision of medical services
BEBEHTL(BR)BRAR LRk BB REBFERY

201943 » BEEBKE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the associates are as follows: (Continued)

18. REEE N TINIKRE (8)
BMANTMEABERET : (&)

Place of
Particulars of registration/ Percentage of
capital/issued incorporation ownership interest
Name shares held and business attributable to the Group  Principal activities
BEER/ g/ ERRL  ARERGREEERES
=t ERORGHE REXME Bl TERH
2019 2018
019 20185
UMP Medical Centre (Grandiose) Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 Provision of medical services
Limited (“UMP Grandiose”)
BagBHL(EHE) AR LER 'R REERRY
(MHAEHE])
R BERMPDBERA A Registered capital ~ PRC 20 20 Provision of medical services
AR P E REHERRS
& On 8 January 2018, the Group subscribed for a 20% equity * HK2018F1 888  AEFE U AR

interest in AIIEEZEIFIZ BB AT for a consideration of

RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,370,000).

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

The statutory financial statements of the above associates were DA F B2
not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member

firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of associates, UMP Eyecare and UMP Grandiose (2018:
UMP Eyecare, UMP Grandiose and United Oncology), because
the share of losses of these associates exceeded the Group’s
interests in these associates and the Group has no obligation
to take up further losses. The amounts of the Group’s
unrecognised share of losses of these associates for the current
year and cumulatively were HK$273,000 (2018: HK$396,000)
and HK$3,758,000 (2018: HK$3,526,000), respectively.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually

material:

18.

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

REEQXTNERE &)

KEHE Eiﬁztﬁ?ﬁaﬁﬁrﬂﬂ"m“ i
ARBIREASZEHE (2018F : BAR
B BEBMERBAERE) (EE -
EARGIESHE A NEEEBEAR
EENLEHERRNER  MAEE
WEETAEE—PERER  AEERE
RHEEZEHERRBERAFER
Z5t& 55 Bl A273,00008 7T (20184 -
396,000/ 7T) }&3,758,0007%% 7T (2018
& 1 3,526,00087T) °

TREAENTBEANAKEBZE L
AR E B S E Y

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
Share of the associates’ profit and total FREMLEERARFER
comprehensive income for the year 2HEW AL 2,365 2,249
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s A& @R E & R AIMIKE
investments in the associates BAREE 8,976 5,485
20193 » BMABHEERERRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST/ 19. RBERAFTENEREE

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS BEZIHRE
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THETT
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHERATTENESREE 60,734 =
Analysed into: DHTHE
Non-current portion FERNHAER 46,668 -
Current portion BER &R 5> 14,066 -
60,734 =
Debt investments, at amortised cost BERE REBERAEATE = 69,497
Analysed into: DHTIE
Non-current portion FERNEAZR - 58,570
Current portion BN EREF - 10,927
- 69,497
As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s financial assets at amortised HZE2019F6A308 - AEBIZREHX
cost (2018: held-to-maturity investments) represented listed R EHNEMEE (2018F : HEZET
debt investments with fixed maturity dates between 2019 and HIRE) A FETE RN H N F20195F
2023 and fixed interest rates ranging from 4.25% to 8.5% per E2023FH) EHEBKRE - EEFENE
annum (2018: 4.25% to 8.5% per annum). N F4.25%%8.5% (20185 : FHFEN

F4.25%%8.5%) °
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20. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

20. BAARBEEFAHMGEEEA
MWRE IHHERE

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET
Investments at fair value through other 2 AEBET AHMEE
comprehensive income WAHKRE
Unlisted equity investments, FETRAKRE -
at fair value BRAnBEFE 17,828 -
Listed equity investments, EHRARE -
at fair value BRAnBEFE 29,360 -
Listed debt investments, at fair value EHEBKRE
BEonEEME 5,750 -
52,938 -
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
Unlisted equity investments, at cost FELETRAKRE - UK E - 4,146
Listed debt investments, at fair value THEKKRE AR EBE=Z = 5,702
- 9,848

The above investments were designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group did not
recognise any dividend income from the equity investments
held at the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the gross loss in respect
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments recognised in
other comprehensive loss amounted to HK$213,000.

As at 30 June 2018, the unlisted equity investments were stated
at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates was so significant that the directors were of the
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably. The
Group did not intend to dispose of them in the near future.

N EREBEEHEEREAABEITAEM
EEPA ARAKER/EFRER
HE EBRIRIRE -

HZE2019F6 A30B IFFE - AEEW
EIEREARARFEHRARIFTEHAAR
REHRBIA -

HZE2018F6A30B IFFE > NEME
HEEER2EBEAEE 2 H#HEEH®
E 1458 5213,0008 7T °

R2018F6A308 ' IEETRAKE L
AR BV RAAGEARERA
B2 HBEEFER  EERBEAA
EBEEXMSRIE - AEEBTTITER
HHALEZERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

2019%F 6 A30H
21. INVENTORIES . FE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$/000 HK$’000
FET FET
Pharmaceutical supplies B aE e 11,803 8,244
22. TRADE RECEIVABLES B 2 EWRFIE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade receivables g5 EWRE 104,997 78,800

The Group’s trading terms with its contract customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to two months for certain customers. Each
contract customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a designated policy to monitor and minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest- bearing.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

AEBEESHEFZESHRREEN
EETAET -FEEH-—RAE—EA -
HETEFPALEREZEMEA - B2EH
EFORAERSEREE - ARE K
HORE R B WSCR B RBABIES > IR
BEEBE - AERY & EERBRE
RE-BAREHHEREEEERE
B REBEYERZEE FREIAR
BEAETMEMRRRKEMESERAR
& o B HRUKKBETE S ©

RBERRNE SRR BRERAH
HBRE D ITINT -

2019 2018

201945 20184

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Within 1 month R EDERA 71,823 56,718
1 to 2 months 1221 A 12,350 11,802
2 to 3 months 2Z31E A 12,531 3,216
Over 3 months 3ME A A 8,293 7,064
104,997 78,800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 30 June
2019

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than two years and are not subject to enforcement activity. As
at 30 June 2019, the Group assessed that the loss allowance
under the application of HKFRS 9 was minimal.

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

22. EZ EWWFIE (&)

BZE2019F6A30B L EERB R
B EHREEAFEIE ZHE

REMEHRRABEREETRED
W AFTEEHEEEE - BHEXDHE
REEBEUEBERANZREEF 24
RlE B EAR B o sZET E bR T B hnE
R EESEEELNRSBAIES
WEBEMBBEEN  ERMRARRKREE
RATEAM G B AT I F I ER - —f& i
T BESRKFAMSHBEMRT AT
ZHITIEBARR G T LAMEE - 720194
6A30H F REEFAERELSMB R
HARERIEIIRIE N 2 BEBHEMTEM -
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 30 June
2018

The aging analysis of the trade receivables as at 30 June 2018
that were not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired under HKAS 39 is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

22. EZEWFEIE (&)

B ZE2018F6A300 L FERES
B EREERFIE ZHE
2018F6A30H @ RIEF B ST ER
395 I £E AR B E B s KR BRRE
MESERFENRRIITHOT

2018

2018%F

HK$’000

FET

Neither past due nor impaired RE B IR BE 56,968
Less than 1 month past due a0 HY > pA 1 (8 A 11,640
1 to 3 months past due w1 Z=31E A 7,060
More than 3 months past due 0 HA 2% 523 (& A 3,132
78,800

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers for whom

there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company were of the opinion that no provision for
impairment under HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable.

Included in the trade receivables as at 30 June 2019 are trade
receivables due from related companies of HK$648,000 (2018:
HK$586,000), which have the same credit period as other
contract customers. CTFE is a major beneficial shareholder of
these related companies in which Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick,
an executive director of the Company, is the Chief Executive
Officer of CTFE.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. BARIE - HttERRERH

OTHER ASSETS L& &
2019 2018
2019 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i FHERT THETT
Prepayments AR IR 4,974 4,041
Deposits paid for purchases of items BB - B /5E MR #H
of property, plant and equipment BEEXNORES 2,204 2,144
Deposit paid for acquisition of WEME AR XN RES
subsidiaries = 6,000
Deposits RE® (a) 15,607 11,833
Other receivables H fth B UL FRIE (a) 11,048 3,940
Contingent consideration receivable FE B R E (b) 3,045 -
36,878 27,958
Less: Portion classified as W DERERBEEDN
non-current assets B (15,927) (15,696)
Current portion mENEE 20,951 12,262
Notes: B &E
(@) Impairment of deposits and other receivables (@ REREMERFENRE
The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables approximated 201956 A308  {RE & K E A UK
to their fair value as at 30 June 2019. Their recoverability was HERERBEEAURERAAEE - £k
assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors, and the HET2EBBHANEEARDEDL TG -
expected credit loss as at 30 June 2019 is considered to be minimal. Mmm2019%F 6 A30 A MTEHREEEEHR
REER-
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The P EEHRBHIORE - 5FA Ll
financial assets included in the above balances relate to deposits and MRS REEBEYESTENRENR
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. BeRERFIEER -
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mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. BARIE - HttERRIERH

OTHER ASSETS (Continued) & E @)
Notes: (Continued) MaE : (8B)
(b) Details of contingent consideration receivable are as follows: (b) RS BRENFBHOT :
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At beginning of year REH] - =
Additions (note 38) WNE (HI7E38) 268 =
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss Rz ER A QA 4 EERKZE
(note 6) (KIaE6) 2,777 -
At end of year RER 3,045 -
The contingent consideration receivable of HK$3,045,000 (2018: e s A R 1E3,045,000/8 7T (20184F « £) BE;
Nil) relates to a business acquisition (note 38) during the year ended 2201956 A30H L FEN—HEBWETH
30 June 2019 and constitutes a derivative within the scope of HKFRS WK BB BREERNEIOFREBENNITET
9. It is recognised at its fair value as asset on initial recognition and B HRHERFEAABEERREER
is subsequently remeasured at fair value with changes in fair value HigRArBEENTE MAAEBEZHI
recognised in profit or loss. Details of the fair value disclosure of the RIEZRPRER - R2019%F 6 A30H MU B K
contingent consideration receivable as at 30 June 2019 are set out in BHARBERBENFBERNGEE YK RKH
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements. 7146 °
24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 24. RARBEFABZNEME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Listed equity investments, at fair value FHRARERE
(BRAREENE) 2,400 2,427
The above listed equity investments at 30 June 2019 and 2018 Filt 2019 2018F6 A30R M ™
were classified as held for trading. BRAREDHERFHIEEER -
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 25. BEAEf & N Rl V&S BR
2019 2018
201945 20184
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Due from associates JFE Ui Bt 5 N B 5K 1A 11,595 12,533
Impairment B (7,518) (6,893)
4,077 5,640

The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

RHBQSERR  2ERE

The movements in provision for impairment of amounts due FEUWE 2 RARIBRERE 2EFHM
from associates are as follows: N
2019 2018
2019% 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
At beginning of year R E ) 6,893 4,744
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) EHERRE R (FfRE7) 695 2,149
Amount written off as uncollectible PR 2 W 0 T L 8E 2 2 B (70) =
At end of year RER 7,518 6,893
Included in the above provision for impairment of amounts LA E e & A R IB R R E R E B 1S

due from associates is a provision for individually impaired
amounts of HK$7,518,000 (2018: HK$6,893,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$7,703,000 (2018:
HK$7,505,000), of which the related debtors were in financial
difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is expected to
be recovered.

BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES

Bt 18 B J8 B 3 757,518,000 7T (2018
% : 6,893,000/ 70) 1E L AR - R
AT BRE{E A7,703,00078 7T (20184F :
7,505,000/ 7T) + ABRAES A LR B
RE - FHitt - TEHE LU= 35 B K
18 o

26. ERAEE D ARV BR

2019 2018

2019 20184

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT THETT

Due from related companies JEE W B Bk 1 B SR IE 3,633 2,735

Due to related companies FE S B8 B A RIFIE 620 452
2019564 « BMABHEREARAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

26. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES
(Continued)

The balances with related companies are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

Particulars of the amounts due from related companies,
disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Hong Kong Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, are as follows:

26. A AT 28R ()

E'EF'% Bt A RIZREHRAEER - 28 R

R B R R FRIAFT - RIEFERA
RBIFE383()(ENEERR (WEE
ENEZER) ROIE3EHWENT

Maximum Maximum
amount At 30 June amount
At outstanding 2018 and  outstanding At
30 June during at 1 July during the 1 July
Name %8 2019 the year 2018 prior year 2017
720185
6A308 K& -
R2019F  FRESF 2018F  FAKE  R2017F
68308 AREEMRAE 7A1E  REEFE 7A1H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR FHT TAT TET
Guangzhou Ruian Enterprise BMNmZ D%
Management Company Limited ~ EEBRAF
(“GZ Ruian")* (TEMEmZ])* 117 117 117 117 57
HAML and its subsidiaries’ BRAEEER
AWM ERa)r 3,516 4,699 2,618 12,933 5,227
& GZ Ruian is controlled directly by Dr. Sun Man Kin, an executive * BHIMRRARRANITEFHEXBREL
director of the Company. BEES -
J HAML and its subsidiaries are jointly controlled by a subsidiary of J BREAEEERAMBARREAKRER

CTFE. Mr. Patrick Tsang, an executive director of the Company, is
the Chief Executive Officer of CTFE.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

27. RERREFEYREAEFER

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FET

Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTH 105,477 294,137
Time deposits EHAE R 103,521 1,185
208,998 295,322

Less: Pledged deposits (note) B R E (T RE) (1,354) (1,352)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEYD 207,644 293,970

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$18,763,000 (2018: HK$19,437,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Note: Included in the pledged deposits as at 30 June 2019 are deposits of
HK$500,000 (2018: HK$500,000) and HK$529,000 (2018: 529,000)
in connection with surety bonds issued by a bank in favour of
independent third parties for potential damages of dental equipment
and potential disruption of medical services, respectively.

Included in the pledged deposits as at 30 June 2019 is another
deposit of HK$325,000 (2018: HK$323,000) in connection with a
bank guarantee issued by a bank in favour of a landlord for leasing of
a medical centre of the Group.

RmEHR AEBEUARE (TA
RE]FEMNReRRITESB A
18,763,000/ 7T (20184 : 19,437,000
BIT)  c ARBUWIFEHERSHEME
B AT IRBREARKEFBEIINES
BIRPI R 4EE - EERERNEEEHATE
REEEE S BEREETINEEBLD
RITEAARKEZHEMER -

RIOFEFRENRTARTERMEL
FEBHEFTE - AT BFXROHEA
E-A-BEZEATE RIEAEKHE
RBNRIR & 8 - R &8 HE B 75K F
REREUN B - RITAE 8 NE BfF S
REBRIFBIHYEENCEHEOR
T

MEE  7R2019F6 A30E MK M ER B IFHE A
—FHRITHREETRREBREREES
BERBTEABIE = FRHNBLHR
FHEENTR - 285 51A500,00048 T
(20184 : 500,000/%8 7T.) }&%529,0007% 7T
(2018%F : 529,000/ 7T) °

MR2019F6 A30BMEHRFREES—£
HE—RRTRAEAEE —HEBT L
M—BEETHLMRITEREBEOTR
& %8 /325,000 7T (20184 : 323,000
BIT) °

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

20196 A30H
28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. B 5 B FH
An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RIBEHRNE ZFRNFIBREZBH
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: WARE DT
2019 2018
2019% 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
Within 1 month 1ME A A 30,609 18,318
1 to 3 months 1231@ A 18,587 20,318
Over 3 months 3B A AL 393 516
49,589 39,152
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BHRNFIERREE B —MRN30EIOR
settled on terms ranging from 30 to 90 days. NEEE o
29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. Hth BN REREER
2019 2018
20195 20184F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt = FTET THETT
(restated)
(&)
Contract liabilities AHEE (a) 21,849 16,286
Other payables H fib & 5B (b) 34,886 12,468
Accruals et E R (b) 9,443 7,191
Deposits received BERRES 506 3,458
Due to non-controlling interests & A< SR IR R 7 SRR (c) 6,273 8,973
Deferred rental AT & 127 110
73,084 48,486
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued) 9. HbETF

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

RIERETEA @)

Notes: B 3T
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (@) AHEBEHNFBWOT:
2019 2018
2019F 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FET
(restated)
(g=751)
Advances received from customers REFRENBR
Provision of corporate healthcare solution MAEHNREFIRMHAEERE
services to contract customers REEFRR T RRT 16,467 16,286
Provision of clinical healthcare services REBRBRERRERS 5,382 -
21,849 16,286

The increase in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due to the
increase in advances received from customers in relation to the
provision of clinical healthcare services at the end of the year.

(b)  Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are
normally repayable on demand.

(c)  The amounts due to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

20195 AW B EEBMIDEEARF R
RUEARZFERERBUTPWE MR
FKIB AN o

b  EfENHREREGEARS S B
BIRBREE -

(0 ENHEQFFERESNSESEK
T ERREREE -

30. fTE€®MIT A

Liabilities
afE

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Call option R HA 743 -
The derivative financial instrument relates to a call option in ZiTEem T AREN —BRBEEE -

which a seller of the business combination (note 38) during
the year ended 30 June 2019 has discretion to repurchase
the equity interest sold to the Group within a designated
period of time. The call option is recognised as derivative
financial liability at its fair value on initial recognition and
is subsequently remeasured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. A fair value gain on
derivative financial instrument of HK$2,036,000 was credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year
(2018: Nil). Details of the fair value disclosure of the derivative
financial instrument as at 30 June 2019 are set out in note 46
to the consolidated financial statements.

Bt - HZE2019F6A308 EFEAR
A0 (HaE38)dPm—R2EHBWIG
ﬁéﬁﬁ‘fwbiﬁ%ﬁﬂmﬁﬁ@amﬁltﬂ
EHRE - ZRBHEERIGER
BARBEERAENTES ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ{é
BRARBEEHIE MAAEESR
BB ER - FATESRITAN
DA BEWZE2,036,0008 LT AGE
Sz 5 (20184 : #) - 201996 A 30
HMTESMITEMA R BEEENF
BENER A ISR KM 546 -

2

N
2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

201996 A30H
31. DEFERRED TAX 31. IEFER IR
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FARNEENBEERABRISHNOT :

year are as follows:

Gross deferred tax assets EEBIREEHR
Losses
Depreciation available for
in excess offsetting
of related future
depreciation taxable
allowance profits Total

B AE AT R R R 65
EREN KRR

e FMENEE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET THET
At 1 July 2017 R2017F781H 255 1,268 1,523
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRREGEEIERE
to the consolidated statement A FER)
of profit or loss during the year  3EZEFL B (H5E10)
(note 10) 74 (476) (402)
At 30 June 2018 and 201856 308 &
at 1 July 2018 2018%7H1H 329 792 1,121
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to F ARIRE B R
the consolidated statement of FEA(F0R) &Y
profit or loss during the year BT IE (Mi3E10)
(note 10) 820 (792) 28
Acquisition of a subsidiary W i — FE M 8 A A
(note 38) (FfFE38) 151 - 151
At 30 June 2019 7R2019%6 A30H 1,300 - 1,300
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e M HRRME

30 June 2019

20196 A30H
31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 31, EEHIE ()
Gross deferred tax liabilities EEBIEREAR
Depreciation Fair value
allowance adjustments
in excess of arising from
related business
depreciation  combinations Total
i i AE e EBEH
TEWN EEN
TERE LAEERAE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TETT FTET TETT
At 1 July 2017 R2017%F7H1H 1,062 55 1,117
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FRREFE B @K
the consolidated statement of W (GTA)H
profit or loss during the year EER A (Mt3E10)
(note 10) 474 (91) 383
Acquisitions of a subsidiary/ Wi —REME AR
business (note 38) %7 (M15138) - 1,735 1,735
At 30 June 2018 and 7201856 A30H &
at 1 July 2018 (restated) 201857 H1H
(gE5) 1,536 1,699 3,235
Deferred tax credited to the FARGEEBER
consolidated statement of STARRIETIE
profit or loss during the year (Mt3E10)
(note 10) (193) (203) (396)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries/ WEEWB A G,
business (note 38) 7% (M45E38) - 11,770 11,770
At 30 June 2019 7201946 H30H 1,343 13,266 14,609
2019F % » BMABKEREAR LA 273



274

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

20196 A30H
31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 31. JEERIH ()
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and REJVNER ETEREHREEERAE
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of ERGEAUBARRKREEEE - U TR
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred S BHRE B M5 SR EBRER
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: TBAEER DT
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THETT
(restated)
(78 &51)
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE IS AR RER M
the consolidated statement of R IE & BERRR
financial position 1,300 1,016
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE B AR R IERHD
in the consolidated statement of REH AR EFE
financial position (14,609) (3,130)
(13,309) (2,114)
At 30 June 2019, the Group had unrecognised tax R2019F6H30R  "EBERTBESL
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$20,210,000 (2018: /) oK E 3R B T8 E5 18 /520,210,00078 7T
HK$15,617,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong (20184 : 15,617,000 7T) (B &
Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for MBRBRAE)  ZEHIEEBENERE
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in REREELEBEN QR ARKER
which the losses arose. The Group also had unrecognised tax HAE AEBTEEPRAMEERN
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$29,850,000 (2018: NHE R IE E1829,850,000% 7T (2018
HK$18,381,000), subject to the agreement by the relevant F 118,381,000/ 0) (B FHERETE 15
taxation authority, that will expire in five years for offsetting HRE) ZEHBEEREERAEFAE
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the m o Al R SHE £ B R A D R B R IR
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in FEERTEFE o F 0 M K T8 DRI R 2R FE AR A
respect of these losses due to unpredictability of future taxable AEARR - B E 2 E R ERERER
profit streams. EMAEE °
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31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 30 June 2019, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$1,120,000 at 30 June 2019 (2018:
HK$1,149,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

31. EEFIE ()

BIEPBESERERE - KRR AMK
MZHNERECERIEREESTIR
Z R BERI0%ETEIR o I E B
200841 A1H &A% - &8 A 72007
F12A318%& 2 8F) o ff Bl Ayt B o)
BUI% & & FTIE RLA R 2 AR L BB &
4 R AREZTENMBIE - KXE
EEARTENHEEA5%310% Bt -
RNEBBELARF RN E R F
B2008F1 H1HRELE ZBFDIKARE
max s TE R ©

R2019F6H308 * WEFLEAREBER
mh B 7 b K 37 A BT B A B B9 AR BE S 2 F
(EBMTEMTE) MM TENRE
REEFIE -EERE  ZEMBAF
RA] R RE T RAIgE D IR B ERF o
MR2019F6H308 - AR ER P H A
WHEARBENARRECHEAE
WE R ERS H4A1,120,000% 7T
(2018%F : 1,149,000 7T) °

R ) (A B SRR 3% M9 BB I S P AR AR

By 48R
SFE
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RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

32. PROVISION

32, &5

2019 2018

20195 2018%F

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Bt 5t FHERT FET

At beginning of year RE) 2,222 1,546
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W B BT B A ) 38 635 -
Addition during the year F N 82 668
Utilisation during the year FANEA (92) -
Exchange realignment bE 56 58 2L (34) 8
At end of year RER 2,813 2,222

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements
entered into by the Group, the Group is required to return
certain of its leased properties to the conditions as stipulated in
the respective tenancy agreements at the expiration or sooner
determination of the corresponding lease terms as appropriate.
The provision for reinstatement costs was estimated based on
certain assumptions and estimates made by the directors with
reference to quoted prices and/or other available information.
The assumptions and estimates are reviewed on an ongoing

basis and revised as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

20196 H30H
33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. B&
Shares &)
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
Authorised: JETE ¢
5,000,000,000 5,000,000,0008%
(2018: 5,000,000,000) (2018%F : 5,000,000,0004%)
ordinary shares of B REE0.001% T
HK$0.001 (20184 : 0.001%7T)
(2018: HK$0.001) each 9 5 Ak 5,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: 2EITRER
757,818,000 757,818,0000%
(2018: 753,405,000) (20184 : 753,405,0000%)
ordinary shares of FARE(E0.001E T
HK$0.001 (20184 : 0.001787T)
(2018: HK$0.001) each 3 i 758 753
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued share
capital during the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 are as

33. A ()
45 (&)

RARIREZE2019F X2018F6A30H
WEFEZEERBEITRAEHOT ¢

follows:
Nominal
Number value of
of ordinary ordinary
shares shares
TRRHA TEREE
Notes HK$'000
B = TET
Authorised: VETE
At 1 July 2017, 20177418
at 1 July 2018 and MR2018F7A1H &
at 30 June 2019 MR2019F6A30H 5,000,000,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAE
At 1 July 2017 Mm2017%67H1H 737,492,000 737
Exercise of share options 1715 BE % #EE (a) 15,913,000 16
At 30 June 2018 and R2018%6 308 &
at 1 July 2018 R2018F7A1H 753,405,000 753
Exercise of share options 17150 B8 R 4 (b) 4,413,000 5
At 30 June 2019 720196 H30H 757,818,000 758
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

(a)

The subscription rights attaching to (i) 14,700,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$1.2228 per
share, resulting in the issue of 14,700,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.001 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
HK$17,975,000; and (ii) 1,213,000 share options were exercised
at the subscription price of HK$1.27 per share, resulting in the
issue of 1,213,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each for total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,541,000. An aggregate
amount of HK$5,401,000 was transferred from the share-based
payment reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise of
the share options.

The subscription rights attaching to (i) 3,200,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$1.2228 per share, resulting
in the issue of 3,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each for a
total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$3,913,000; and
(ii) 1,213,000 share options were exercised at the subscription price
of HK$1.27 per share, resulting in the issue of 1,213,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.001 each for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$1,541,000. An aggregate amount of HK$1,693,000
was transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share
premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

Share option schemes

The Company operates a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively, the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. The principal terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are similar to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme except that (i) no further options
could be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme;
and (ii) the exercise price and the exercise period of the share
options are different as further detailed below.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

30 June 2019

2019%F6 A30H
B A ()
B4 (&)
(@) (i) 14,700,00017 FERREFTH R EEE

EREEER1.22288 TITHF - LABE
7714,700,0000% & A% E f50.0018 7T 2
TEK - MBRAXAIZESRERLEA
17,975,000/ 7C + K (ii) 1,213,00017 f&
BRIEMMRABRECERBESTR 27
JOITIE  LABEE971,213,0000% & A% F(E
0.001BT 2 @R MBRASAZES
RIELEA1,541,0008 7T - RITHEER
1% - A 35,401,000/ 7T B B A KD
ABERZNRFERERERMHEER-

(b) (i) 3,200,00017 & A% #& F7 FfT 57 F8 1 2 1%
REETR1.2228BTITHF - AR
73,200,000 & R E {50.001/& T 2 &
BR -HMBREASAZESRERES
3,913,000 7T ¢ (i) 1,213,00017 & B
ERMREBEEERRABESRI27E T
171 A B 171,213,000 B E &
0.001B Tz L@ MBRFASRZES
RABHEEE A1,541,0008 7T  RITEER
W% A F£1,693,000/% 7T ZUA A BARR 1D
AEBRIZAREHERERMEER-

34 ERESERARER

BRRESE
RRBEEFRAFEE R ERE S
(TERARBEEAERESS ) RER
R B ([FERUERT &8 ) (e [t 8]) -
BRRREAEEZERNAMERD
BEB2EEREEBLEH - EAQ
FAEE AT O AT 81 = IR BB A
FHEMERFARLL - MELATERSN - ()R B
RIBERNFEE R BRI B LB
Bt RGDBARENITEE RITES
BREERN T -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

Share option schemes (Continued)

Eligible participants of the Schemes include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, consultants of the Group, suppliers
of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group, the
Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder
in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme was approved and adopted on 18 August 2015. The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 27 November 2015
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in

force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Schemes is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Schemes within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

Share option schemes (Continued)

The exercise price of share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is HK$1.2228 and the share options are
exercisable after a vesting period of one to two years in the

following manner:

Vesting period of
the relevant percentage of the options

BREEEE D L RBY

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

34. BB ESTERIRESE @)

MR8 ()
EPNEESNIE- R (EaN e
RTTEE A1.22288 7L - BB K —
EMFREBHERATHRITE

Maximum
percentage of
options
exercisable
AT 158 B A HE Y

AN

From 18 August 2015 to 17 August 2016

From 18 August 2015 to 17 August 2017

2015 8H18H £2016F8A17H 10%

20158 H18A E2017F8H17H 90%

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is determinable by the directors, and commences after
a vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options under the Share Option
Scheme is determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer of
the share options; and (iii) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

RBBRESRLE TBRE
EREAXNRBARES K BTRE
BoE - RIBEEER S R BEENTT
CHAURESET  REBHRFAR
REREZEOERENPRI0FENA
H o

BREFSETERENTEERES
BE - HASERORDEE  G)B
R RRERAMRARRRODRE
PBREEA RS E - R
BHBERAMRARRRNDNEEE
IREELHE R RER S IR H
EABRSERE) -

BRI ESR THE ARKEE KRR
RREEREZRERN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS 34. BEREFE R BRER &)

(Continued)

Share option schemes (Continued)

The following share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme were outstanding during the year:

BRESE (8
FR - BRARABERBREEAT
ARTTRER B ARAEDT -

2019 2018
20195 20184

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
hnREF 15 BRE TS fE AR
TEE g TE(E %A

HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
BRET T SRET T
At beginning of year REH] 1.2228 30,208 1.2228 44,908
Exercised during the year FRNITE 1.2228 (3,200) 1.2228 (14,700)
At end of year REF 1.2228 27,008 1.2228 30,208

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$1.75 (2018:
HK$2.04) per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)
Share option schemes (Continued)

The following share options under the Share Option Scheme

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

34. BB ESTERIRESE @)

BRESE (8
FA- BERETIETHARITENER

were outstanding during the year: W
2019 2018
20195 20184

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
hnE g BRE  ETY R
THREE A TEME A

HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
BRET T4 SERET T
At beginning of year REH] 1.63 2,213 1.27 2,426
Granted during the year FAKE 1.90 18,600 2.06 1,000
Exercised during the year FENTITE 1.27 (1,213) 1.27 (1,213)
Lapsed during the year FRKRK 2.06 (330) = =
At end of year REXR 1.91 19,270 1.63 2,213

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$1.76 (2018:

HK$2.32) per share.

FRITEBERERITEE BHNEFH
& B A S1.7678 7T (20184 : 2.32/8

JT) °

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR

283



284

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS 34.

(Continued)

BRESTERIRESE @

Share option schemes (Continued) BRESE (8
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options R¥RERRE BB T HATTERBEREN
outstanding under the Schemes as at the end of the reporting TEERITEHRAT :
period are as follows:
2019 20194
Number of Exercise
options price*  Exercise period
BEEA 1TEE* 7S
HK$
000 per share
T BB TT
1,358 1.2228 18 August 2016 to 26 November 2022 20165F8 H18H £2022%F 11 H26H
25,650 1.2228 18 August 2017 to 26 November 2022 20178 H18A E2022F11 H26H
340 2.06 30 June 2017 to 29 June 2022 20176 A30H £202296H29H
330 2.06 30 June 2018 to 29 June 2022 201856 H30H £2022%F6H29H
12,600 2.06 30 June 2019 to 5 November 2023 2019F6 H30H 22023411 H5H
1,000 1.56 4 May 2020 to 3 May 2025 202045 H4H £2025%F5A3H
2,000 1.56 4 May 2021 to 3 May 2025 202145 H4B E202565H3H
3,000 1.56 4 May 2022 to 3 May 2025 202245 H4H E2025%5H3H
46,278
2018 20184
Number Exercise
of options price*  Exercise period
B A TEEx 178
HK$
000 per share
T BB TT
1,678 1.2228 18 August 2016 to 26 November 2022 20165F8 A18A £2022F 11 A26H
28,530 1.2228 18 August 2017 to 26 November 2022 201758 H18A E2022F11 H26H
1,213 1.27 30 June 2018 to 29 June 2021 201856 A30H £202156H29H
340 2.06 30 June 2017 to 29 June 2022 201756 H30H £2022F6H29H
330 2.06 30 June 2018 to 29 June 2022 20186 H30H £202296H29H
330 2.06 30 June 2019 to 29 June 2022 201956 A30H £2022%6 A29H
32,421
& The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in & BT REE R AR AR ITR

the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS
(Continued)
Share option schemes (Continued)
The fair value of the share options granted during the current
year was HK$13,501,000 (HK$0.72 to HK$0.73 each) (2018:
HK$687,000 (HK$0.68 to HK$0.69 each)), of which the Group
recognised a share-based payment expense of HK$9,376,000
(2018: HK$1,771,000) during the year ended 30 June 2019.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the current year and the prior year was estimated as at the date
of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The

following table lists the inputs to the model used:

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

34. BB ESTERIRESE @)

MR8 ()
AEERLHERBENRIAEBEAR
13,501,0007% 7T (8 190.727% 7T £0.73
#7T) (20184 : 687,000 7T (5190.68
BILE0.69ETT)) ERAEENE
F2019F 6 A30H LEFE N RERE LA
19 73 E BB 55 X /59,376,000 7T
(20184 : 1,771,000/ 7T) °

REEM E-—FEREUERAENE
BENAABERREAHNU AR
HE - RF R AR IR A0 R S
o TRILATAEANGAZE:

2019

20194

Dividend yield (%) A& B 2R (%) 1.60
Expected volatility (%) & R 18 (%) 54.69-56.56
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 2 2 N 2K (%) 2.20-2.94
Expected life of options (year) BRERRFEH(F) 5-6
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) N T RE (BB L) 1.90
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

34. B ESTEARARESE @)

(Continued)
Share option schemes (Continued) BRESE (8
2018
20184
Dividend yield (%) % Bl = 1.37
Expected volatility (%) TR ¢EE % 49.27
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 L A X 2.009
Expected life of options (year) E%Hﬁ%?ﬁ,ﬁﬁi,ﬁﬁ () 5.03
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) InEFEHRE (FRET) 2.06

The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual

outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
46,278,000 share options outstanding under the Schemes. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 46,278,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of approximately HK$46,000 and
share premium of approximately HK$69,675,000 (before issue
expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had 46,278,000 share options
outstanding under the Schemes, which represented
approximately 6% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

BRENTARFHY T —FRRATEE
EMITERS - BHIRERREREE
B8 AT S BR R SR A8 2 (7 AT BE AR 46 R Bk
ERER) -

BER A BEFEMACELBERE
Y EL A R

RBEEHR A2 REFEE
46,278,00017 & A 17 {50 B AR - IR IR AR
NEIB R EARERE  BEITERKRITE
BRI B B 3T AR F146,278,000%
REONE I K 38 hnRs AR 4946, 0005%7_5)32
% 15 4 B 469,675,000 7T (31 &
FIZAT) ©

R EGREMBERRESLERR AR
AR IEET 8B 46,278,00017 1 A 1T F
B HERAARIRZBNEETR
7 #6% °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

Warrants

On 24 October 2018, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) with Zheng He Health
and Medical Resources Limited (“Zheng He”), whereby
the Company agreed to issue the unlisted warrants for the
subscription of 110,411,000 shares of the Company to Zheng
He (or any company or trust under the control of Mr. Law
Siu Wah, Eddie nominated by Zheng He). The warrants will
rank pari passu in all respects among themselves. Zheng He
is ultimately controlled by Mr. Law Siu Wah, Eddie, and his
investment strategically focuses on the future technology
for medical and healthcare ecosystem. The vesting of
such warrants is subject to the fulfilment of certain agreed
milestones. The agreed milestones included: (i) technology
enhancement to leverage on Mr. Law’s experience and
network to bring the Group with strategic relationship; (ii)
granting a right to the Group to invest into a joint venture to
be established between Zheng He for building up a Hong Kong
based patient centric hub; and (iii) utilising Zheng He's global
capital market reach to optimise and enhance the Group’s
existing shareholding structure, including but not limited to the
introduction of strategic investors and elite financial investors,
and assist the Group in identifying future expansion and
acquisition opportunities.

The corresponding agreed number of warrants (varied on
different milestones) shall be vested with an exercise price
of HK$2.06 per warrant option. The warrants would vest and
become exercisable upon satisfaction of the above agreed
milestones within the 12 month period (subject to extension)
as specified in the Subscription Agreement. If the agreed
milestones are not satisfied during this period, the warrants
will lapse. For details, please refer to circular of the Company
dated 29 October 2018.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

Warrants (Continued)

The fair value of warrants granted during the year was
estimated as at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the warrants were granted. The following table

lists the inputs to the model used:

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

BRESTERIRESE @

ARER (B
FARMZABREEZ AR BENR
(a0 —&F T e EREA MG
BB AT R AR AR RE A R R R R
o TREIERNRE ] ABUE -

2019

20194

Dividend yield (%) %2 2 2 (%) 1.60
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 18 (%) 56.32
Risk-free interest rate (%) A 3 B N K (%) 2.57-2.60
Expected life of warrants (year) RIREB AR FH (F) 3.50-4.44
Exercise price (HK$ per share) T IRE (BB ) 2.06

On the date of grant, the fair values of warrants to be issued
for each milestone were HK$22,362,000, HK$25,226,000 and
HK$25,226,000, respectively.

The Group recognised a share-based payment expense of
HK$37,512,000 during the year ended 30 June 2019, based
on the different probability of meeting the vesting conditions

estimated for three different milestones of warrants.

During the year, upon the fulfilment of one of the vesting
conditions, 36,803,667 warrants were issued which is
exercisable between 6 June 2019 to 6 June 2022. There was no

exercise of warrant options during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
36,803,667 warrants outstanding. The exercise in full of
the outstanding warrants would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 36,803,667
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of approximately HK$37,000 and share premium
of approximately HK$75,779,000 (before issue expenses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 30 June 2016, the Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising
the contributions by certain eligible participants and providing
them with incentives in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for the growth and further development of the
Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme include the
Company’s directors, senior management and other employees
of the Group, and employed experts of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from 30 June

2016, unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to be
granted under the Share Award Scheme is limited to 2% of
the issued share capital of the Company at any time. The
maximum number of shares which may be awarded to each
eligible participant in the Share Award Scheme is limited to
1% of the issued share capital of the Company in each year.

The eligible participant for participation in the Share Award
Scheme (the “Selected Participant”) is selected and the number
of shares to be awarded under the Share Award Scheme is
determined by the board of directors. The shares to be awarded
under the Share Award Scheme will be purchased by a trustee
(the “Trustee”) from the open market out of cash contributed
by the Group and be held on trust for the Selected Participant
until such shares are vested with the Selected Participant in

accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect
of any shares held on trust for the Group or the Selected
Participant.

During the year, the Group purchased 2,248,000 (2018:
2,664,000) of its own shares through the Trustee from the
open market. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was
approximately HK$3,868,000 (2018: 4,909,000) and has been
deducted from equity. As at 30 June 2019, such shares were
classified as treasury shares of the Company as they were not

yet vested.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

201956 A30H
35. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 35. R KRB EE ()
The movements in the Company’s shares held under the share RAEIRG, ZE T EE TRE ARG R
award scheme during the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 B Z2019F R2018F6 A30H LFE 2
are as follows: BT -
Shares held
under the
Number of share award
ordinary shares scheme
-4
ZEREA BETHEEBHRSG
HK$’000
FAET
At 1 July 2017 #2017F7H1H 4,454,000 5,843
Purchases of shares for the share award  FLA% 15 2B 818 E IR 1D
scheme 2,664,000 4,909
At 30 June 2018 and at 1 July 2018 201856 H30H
KH2018%F7H1RH 7,118,000 10,752
Purchases of shares for the share award  FLR% {7 &2 BN T 218 B % 15
scheme 2,248,000 3,868
At 30 June 2019 7201956 H30H 9,366,000 14,620
During the year, 5,910,000 (2018: Nil) share awards have FR - ERERMEHEED
been granted under the Share Award Scheme and 280,000 5,910,0000% (20184 : &) &7 @M
(2018: Nil) awarded shares have lapsed during the period and 280,000 BB A {0 (20185 : &) BN
4,465,000 awarded shares have been vested during the year F R KM K4,465,0000% ZEI IS 10 A
ended 30 June 2019. RBZE2019F6 A30B IEFENEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

35. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share awards

2

. RPEBEE
PSR 45 B 5 04 SR 1T 158 B0 IR 19 #E B B0 778

30 June 2019
019F 6 A30H

outstanding under the Share Award Scheme as at the end of the BRITEHET
reporting period are as follows:
2019 2019%
Number Exercise
of shares price*  Exercise period
Bin 2 B TEE TEH
HK$
000 per share
T A% BRIETT
1,165 1.5 30 June 2019 to 30 June 2020 20196 A30H £2020%6 A30H
3,300 1.5 30 June 2019 to 30 June 2021 20196 A30H 202166 H30H
1,165 1.5 30 June 2020 to 30 June 2021 202056 H30H £2021F6H30H
5,630

The Group recognised a share-based payment expense of
HK$1,413,000 (2018: Nil) during the year ended 30 June

2019.

KREBREE2019F6A30H ILFE#E
RUARR D A ER & 3F 21,413,000
BIT (20185 : &) -

20194 o

ah A\ EE
L=

B EEARAQA
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36. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 144 to
145 of the consolidated financial statements.

Capital contribution reserve

Capital contribution reserve represents (i) the fair value of
the shares of the then ultimate holding company that were
used to satisfy the consideration of the Group’s acquisition of
equity interests in certain subsidiaries and additional interests
in certain subsidiaries in 2014; (ii) the waiver of amounts
due to the then ultimate holding company and a major
beneficial shareholder of the Company for the acquisition of
a subsidiary; and (iii) the waiver of other payable by a former

non-controlling shareholder.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value
of share options, warrants and share awards granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related
share options or warrants or share awards are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related share options
or warrants or share awards expire or be forfeited.

Details of the Company’s share option schemes, warrants
scheme and share award scheme are included in notes 34, 34

and 35 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Legal reserve

The legal reserve represents the transfer of the profit generated
from subsidiaries incorporated in Macau from retained profits
to the legal reserve in accordance with article 377 of the
Macao Commercial Code until the legal reserve balance
reaches half of the capital of the relevant subsidiaries. The
legal reserve is not distributable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

201946 A30H
37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 37. BREAFERERNFEE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS i N
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material BRSO ERERNAEEB AR
non-controlling interests are set out below: HBEIINT
2019 2018
20194 20184
Percentage of equity interest held by IEPE R 2 15 B B IR
non-controlling interests: Ao
SkinCentral Limited (“SkinCentral”) SkinCentral Limited
([skinCentral ]) 40% -
UMP Healthcare China and its subsidiaries Bf& B E K HFFB R
(the “UMP Healthcare China Group”) ([B& B R I%ID 20% 20%
2019 2018
2019% 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to DB TIHERERNFA
non-controlling interests: i (&8)
SkinCentral SkinCentral 2,671 -
UMP Healthcare China Group BMEaBBIPRHER (963) (1,707)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests = B4 % 7% - B &£
of UMP Healthcare China Group ETREZNRE 26,408 =
Accumulated balances of non-controlling R ¥R H 8fIE4E A 22 &Y
interests at the reporting date: REt sk
SkinCentral SkinCentral 20,284 -
UMP Healthcare China Group e B EEE 35,385 63,325

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)

37. BEEERFEZERERNIEEE
B B 2 B ()

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed
are before any inter-company eliminations:

TRHFFALHB AR T BE R
Z-MEBESRRHAKBENRRMBE
5

UMP Healthcare

SkinCentral China Group
SkinCentral BEEBEHPEEH
2019 20194 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Revenue A 28,726 53,920
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFHE(ER) 6,677 (4,996)
Total comprehensive FAZEBRA(EE)
income/(loss) for the year L] 6,677 (7,617)
Current assets MENE E 5,192 102,183
Non-current assets EMEBEE 15,599 32,847
Current liabilities nEEE (9,236) (9,196)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (48) (713)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating 2 58 F18,/(FTH)
activities WemEFRRE 9,698 (1,505)
Net cash flows used in investing KREGEESFMAES
activities R ) (14,822)
Net cash flows used in financing MEEBMARS
activities 2R - (26,407)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekReEEY
cash equivalents wm,/ Cmd) #58E 9,691 (42,734)

UMP Healthcare

China Group

HEBEBTEEE

2018 20184 HK$'000
THETT

Revenue U A 56,550
Loss for the year FEREE (8,534)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERNLEEREE (8,477)
Current assets mENEE 140,041
Non-current assets EMEEE 28,509
Current liabilities TEAaE (8,679)
Non-current liabilities ErREaE (839)
Net cash flows used in operating activities RETHAARCREFHE (43,204)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZEBAARSREFR (88,372)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents Re kB eFEWMRD FH (131,576)

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2019 ANNUAL REPORT



38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In order to develop the Group’s corporate healthcare solution

and clinical healthcare businesses and to continually provide

comprehensive and integrated healthcare services for the

benefit of the patients, the Group entered into the following

transactions during the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019:

(a)

On 24 July 2017, the Group acquired the business of
a dental clinic operation (the “Dental Clinic Business”)
from an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$2 million.

On 1 April 2018, the Group acquired a 60% equity
interest in a medical laboratory and imaging business (the
“Imaging Business”) from an independent third party for a

consideration of HK$21 million.

On 1 June 2018, the Group, through its 60%-owned
subsidiary, acquired a further 45% equity interest
in Longway Consultants Limited (“Longway”) for
a consideration of HK$2.8 million. Longway was
previously a 10%-owned available-for-sale investment
of the Group. Upon the completion of the acquisition,
the Group’s equity interest in Longway increased from
10% to 55% and Longway became a subsidiary of the
Group thereafter. Longway is principally engaged in the
provision of medical imaging services in Hong Kong.

On 24 July 2018, the Group acquired a 70% equity
interest in a group of companies (the “Physiotherapy
Centre Chain”) from an independent third party for a
consideration of HK$28.5 million. The Physiotherapy
Centre Chain is engaged in the provision of medical
physiotherapy services in Hong Kong.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

38. ¥ 56
BERASENDEBEREBERATR
REREERBEKLEELTERM
FERTEBERERE  AEERE
F2018F M2019F6 8308 IEFERTSL

WTIR5 :
(@) M2017%F7H248  AEBENU2H

20194 3f o MAEEKE

BETHRER—RBLE =TI
BRE-MHIMDHANER (F
M2 MER] -

MR2018F4A1H > REEBE 218

BEETHRER-—BBIE=T7K
B-REBEELRLEGEEHK (B

BREEK]) H60%MH# -

M2018F6A1H  AEBFERE
HEHOWEZ MM B G - LA2.8
BEATHRENEREBERAR
~aEl ([RE]D B FEIME%R #E -
REZAAREE —IBHEE10%E
R AHEERE - TWIER -
REBRREMFRERT0%E N
£55% @ MREEEKATEED
MBAR REFZETHANER
HEEZERE -

R2018%7H248 - NEELA28.5
BEALCRERN—RBBILE=
FWE-—ARIEE ([EHDER
BRRO]) Z70%MHE - ZIEHEY
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

() On 2 October 2018, the Group acquired a 55% equity
interest in a medical clinic business (the “Medical
Clinic Business’) from an independent third party for a
consideration of HK$15.1 million.

(fy ~ On 23 January 2019, the Group acquired a 60% equity
interest in SkinCentral from an independent third party
for a consideration of HK$100 million. SkinCentral is
engaged in the provision of dermatological services in

Hong Kong.

As part of the acquisitions, the considerations for the Imaging
Business, Physiotherapy Centre Chain, Medical Clinic Business
and SkinCentral (collectively, the “Acquired Businesses”)
are subject to potential downward adjustments, which are
dependent on the future performance of the respective
Acquired Businesses as stipulated in the respective sales and
purchase agreements. In addition, the sales and purchase
agreements of the Physiotherapy Centre Chain, Medical Clinic
Business and SkinCentral include either a call option in which
a seller has discretion to repurchase the equity interest sold to
the Group or a put option in which sellers have discretion to
require the Group to purchase the remaining equity interest in
these acquired businesses held by the sellers, subject to certain
terms and conditions within designated periods of time.
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(e) M2018F1082H » KAEEA15.1
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DRTES ) Z55%MRHE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

201946 H30H
38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 38. ¥¥S6t@®
Year ended 30 June 2019 BZE2019F6A30B LFE
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the REBEEBEHFRABREHEYIERESR
Physiotherapy Centre Chain, the Medical Clinic Business and O~ B P E 15 K SkinCentral 89 7] 3%
SkinCentral as at the respective dates of business combinations FEENBENAABENT
were as follows:
Fair value
Physiotherapy Medical recognised
Centre Clinic on business
Chain Business  SkinCentral combinations
HEHEH
EHENE BRYR [igiEA
ki Ll ¥£%  SkinCentral AREE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitax T TR THL FHEL
Property, plant and equipment mE  BERLE 13 518 - 4,406 4,924
Other intangible assets BN EE 15 9,824 14,477 47,031 71,332
Deferred tax asset ELHBEE 31 = = 151 151
Inventories Ve = = 1,457 1,457
Trade receivables B SRR 1,039 = = 1,039
Prepayments, deposits and BNHE - RES REAM
other receivables FEle e 1,314 2 2,320 3,636
Due from a shareholder KRR RIE S S 2,494 2,494
Tax recoverable A E A - - 305 305
Cash and bank balances BeRBTES 597 58 945 1,600
Trade payables EHRNHE (341) = = (341)
Other payables and accruals HtERFERENER (377) - (6,329) (6,706)
Due to fellow subsidiaries AN NG - (73) = (73)
Tax payable JERHIE (122) - = (122)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHERE 31 (1,621) 2,389) (7,760) (11,770)
Provision B 32 (285) - (350) (635)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value &2 7 B {EFI BRAY ] 355
REELH 10,546 12,075 44,670 67,291
Non-controlling interests FRRER (3,370) (5,434) (17,868) (26,672)
7,176 6,641 26,802 40,619
Goodwill on acquisitions WEEENEE 14 105,484
146,103
Satisfied by: AT EEER -
Cash consideration BERE 115,092
Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEMB LAY FERES 6,000
Consideration payable ENRE 22,500
Contingent consideration receivable ElEERE 23 (268)
Derivative financial instrument fTEERMIA 30 2,779
146,103
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2019 (Continued)

The aggregate fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables as at the respective dates of business combinations
amounted to HK$1,039,000 and HK$18,000, respectively.
The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables and other
receivables were HK$1,039,000 and HK$18,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$1,637,000 for
these business combinations. These transaction costs have
been expensed and are included in other expenses, net in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill arose from the acquisitions of the Physiotherapy
Centre Chain, the Medical Clinic Business and SkinCentral
represented the premium paid for the benefits of expected
synergies from combining operations of the Physiotherapy
Centre Chain, the Medical Clinic Business and SkinCentral and
the Group to provide comprehensive and integrated services
for the patients. None of the goodwill recognised is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.
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38. ¥ & 6tw®m)

B Z£2019F6A30R LFE (&)
B 5 FE Y TE K& H b FE U IE P AR B
EBAHBHNEHARNEBES A
1,039,000/% 7T % 18,000/ 7T - B 5 &
WHREREMERKRENGNESED
B %1,039,0007% 7T 5. 18,0008 TT
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Wt ARRIBR RN EMFE FE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2019 (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the combinations of
the Physiotherapy Centre Chain, the Medical Clinic Business
and SkinCentral is as follows:

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

38. ¥ &6t

BIZ2019F6H30H LLFE (%)
BEEYIRRER L BEZCER K
SkinCentral& f B 2R &RE DT U0
™

HK$’000
TETT
Cash consideration ReRE (115,092)
Cash and bank balances acquired FTU i3 & RIRTT 45 84 1,600
Net outflow of cash and cash AAREESFAESREANE
equivalents included in cash RReEEBYRLFHE
flows used in investing activities (113,492)

Since the combinations, the contributions of the above
acquisitions to the Group’s revenue and consolidated profit for

the year ended 30 June 2019 were as follows:

BAMUKR: il AEEEHZ
2019F6 A30H IEFE WA KERE T
BZEROT

Revenue Profit

KA FE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Physiotherapy Centre Chain IR E B L 12,148 2,569
Medical Clinic Business BEEYMER 12,080 3,499
SkinCentral SkinCentral 28,726 6,677
52,954 12,745

Had the combinations of the Physiotherapy Centre Chain, the
Medical Clinic Business and SkinCentral taken place at the
beginning of the year ended 30 June 2019, the revenue of the
Group and the profit of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2019 would have been HK$660,914,000 and HK$44,677,000,
respectively.

BB ER L BEDIEBR
SkinCentral 2 & Pt A8 2201956 A30
AIEFEY#ET 8 ZE2019F6H308
LEFENAEBWARAERFBEE D
7l £660,914,000/% 7T 44,677,000/
ik
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

201956 A30H
38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 38. ¥¥ a6t
Year ended 30 June 2018 EZE2018F6A30R LFE
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the RIEREBa R - TRIZMER -
Dental Clinic Business, the Imaging Business and Longway BEXGREGMRENTBNEERE
as at the respective dates of business combinations were as BERAREBENT
follows:
Fair value
Dental recognised
Clinic Imaging on husiness
Business Business Longway ~combinations
REBEH
IR B2 [k £
DIER FEBER RE AREE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FEL TRT TET TAR
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(EE7)) (RE5)) (&s31)
Property, plant and equipment 0¥ BERRXE 13 284 3,862 1,414 5,560
Other intangible assets HihEREE 15 = 8,264 978 9,242
Trade receivables BAEWHE = = 1,265 1,265
Deposits and other receivables RE & R A Y - - 171 171
Tax recoverable keI - - 50 50
Cash and bank balances e RBTHER = = 1,207 1,207
Trade payables, other payables BHENFIE - AthERNFUR
and accruals REGER - - (522) (522)
Due to a related company B —RE B AR A - - (44) (44)
Due to shareholders NP EE ] = = (1,000) (1,000)
Deferred tax liabilities BREREARE 31 - (1,364) (371) (1,735)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 272 4 (B B 51| 8k &0 71 4 3
REERE 284 10,762 3,148 14,194
Non-controlling interests FERER - (4,306) (1,008) (5,314)
284 6,456 2,140 8,880
Goodwill on acquisitions WBELRES 14 16,870
25,750
Satisfied by: T3S EER -
10% equity interest previously BERREMED
held in Longway 10%H% 7 500
Cash consideration HeRE 25,250
25,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)

The aggregate fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables as at the respective dates of business combinations
amounted to HK$1,265,000 and HK$3,000, respectively.
The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables and other
receivables were HK$1,265,000 and HK$3,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$61,000 for these
business combinations. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in other expenses, net in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill arose from the acquisitions of the Dental Clinic
Business, the Imaging Business and Longway represented
the premium paid for the benefits of expected synergies
from combining operations of the Dental Clinic Business,
the Imaging Business, Longway and the Group to provide
comprehensive and integrated services for the patients. None
of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the combinations of
the Dental Clinic Business, the Imaging Business and Longway

is as follows:

e M HRRME

30 June 2019

20196 A30H
38. ¥¥S 6t
HZE2018F6A30H LLFE (&)

B 5 FE W IR F B e J sk IE R AR
¥BEHBHENETAABED A
1,265,000/ 7T &%3,00078 7T - B S UK
FIBREAMEWFIAENE OB RS R
51,265,000 7T %3,0007%8 7T °

AEBRZEEBAHELERIRA
61,0007 7T - LERXFHAE L EIL T
AZRE B RN EME S R -

WEIMZHER  BEXEEBEE
EELNBBENAEREHTZH
X% BEXERER REKAEER
BERUGER —BERBNEETR
F) 16 [F) 2 & O 28 2 FﬁS‘ZHE’Jm@Wﬁ%E
ERRMERBAMENR A -

HEIFMDER %f%%ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ_
E’Uéﬁﬁ’ﬂfﬁéﬁiﬁﬁﬁ

HK$’000
TETT
Cash consideration HERE (25,250)
Cash and bank balances acquired PR REER & RERTT 4 &4 1,207
Net outflow of cash and cash FARBEESFAREREANNRE X
equivalents included in cash BeEBYRL TR
flows used in investing activities (24,043)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A
ma
30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

B ISR M

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)

As at 30 June 2018, the goodwill arose from the acquisitions
of the Imaging Business and Longway was provisional
and subject to finalisation of valuation. During the vyear,
the valuations thereof were finalised. Compared with the
provisional purchase price allocations disclosed in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended
30 June 2018, the following items of the Imaging Business and
Longway were restated:

38.

ES 3o )
HZE2018F6A308 L FE (&)
2018968308 - %EW%%E%@
E¥BRRENHEBY T UWARFRK
MEMBEBRAUIEE - FKH - BEMKE

DT - BR20185F6 308 L&
EZBULEFENAEBREMBEREAN
BENEEREBRSRMEL - T
BELYERREMNEEDTEY

Originally
stated Restated Change
REZ2% KEY 25
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
Other intangible assets HEtmEEEE S 9,242 9,242
Goodwill B 19,564 15,154 (4,410)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBAE (211) (1,735) (1,524)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR RE S (2,006) (5,314) (3,308)

The restatements did not have any impact on the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2018, nor any impact on the
earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Since the combinations, the contributions of the above
acquisitions to the Group’s revenue and consolidated profit for
the year ended 30 June 2018 were as follows:

B EHE E2018F6 8308 EFE
NS BEREMEEmBRAREETM
FE . REHEZE2018F6A308 IH4F
EARARRREHEEARLERAFEES
EEFA

BAMUR: Pl AEEHZ
2018F6A30H IF FERUWARLEE F
HMZERIT

Revenue Profit/(loss)

KA @, (EE)

HK$’000 HK$’000

THT TFHET

Dental Clinic Business FRIZ T ER 1,967 (832)
Imaging Business BEYRED 4,108 972
Longway RiE 614 99
6,689 239

Had the combinations of the Dental Clinic Business, the Imaging
Business and Longway taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 30 June 2018, the revenue of the Group and the profit of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018 would have been
HK$486,268,000 and HK$40,890,000, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

20196 A30H
39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. LEME AT
On 26 September 2018, the Group disposed of its 100% equity 7201859 H26H + AREE LB TH
interest in Health Network to an independent third party for REM—BBILE=ZHHEELREE
a consideration of HK$1. Health Network was an inactive 100%M%# - N EERRA—FHT
company as at the date of disposal. EBAE e
On 28 September 2018, the Group disposed of its 100% equity R2018F9A28H K% B I
interest in Excellent City to an independent third party for a 65,920,000 TTHI R B M — BB LB
consideration of HK$65,920,000. Excellent City was a property =77 H & HRExcellent City#)100% %
holding company as at the date of disposal. ¥ ° Excellent City R E B R —E®
EERRQA
Health Excellent
Network City Total
28 Excellent City |t
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
P 5 FHET FTET FET
Net assets disposed of: PRHEFEE -

Property, plant and equipment ME - BERLE 13 - 56,613 56,613

Prepayments and deposits BANRERRER = 47 47

Other payables and accruals HAth R A 500R e e AT

EM = (43) (43)

Due to a fellow subsidiary FEf — I A &

B /& 2% A1 5K IR (12) - (12)

(12) 56,617 56,605

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AT B U 12 9,303 9,315

Total consideration BRE = 65,920 65,920
Satisfied by: AT5IE B B :

Cash e - 65,920 65,920
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEMBARNRERREFEWRA
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: FEOWOT

Health Excellent
Network City Total
25 Excellent City &&t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET

Cash consideration and net inflow of ReRERFAREBERSM
cash and cash equivalents included ELBRERENRE R

in cash flows from investing activities BHEeZBYRATAE = 65,920 65,920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

B ISR M

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

40.

41.

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

On 21 June 2018, the Group entered into a provisional
sales and purchase agreement with an independent third
party whereby the Group agreed to dispose of its entire
equity interest in Excellent City for a consideration of
HK$65,920,000. Excellent City is a property holding company
in Hong Kong. The disposal of Excellent City was completed
on 28 September 2018. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities
of Excellent City as at 30 June 2018 were classified as a
disposal group held for sale.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Excellent City

TERFFHENHERHE

R2018F6H21H AEEHE - £ F
UBE=ZRRN—MBREEERE B
bt - R & B [ E PA65,920,0007% 7T &Y
KB & H MExcellent City#) 2 3 ik
# o Excellent City/R — BB Y EZER
7 A o {H EExcellent CityE 20184
9H28H R - AUtk * Excellent CityR?
201856 A30BMEERABD H AR
EHENHESHE -

7201846 A30H Excellent Cityn 74

classified as held for sale as at 30 June 2018 were as follows: BEHENEEREBENETBERD
™
Note HK$’000
Mt FET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment Y B MERE 13 56,613
Deposits RES 58
Assets classified as held for sale DEABELENEE 56,671
Liabilities =R
Accruals BETE A (43)
Liabilities directly associated with the HOMARIENENEERR
assets classified as held for sale BHENAERE (43)
Net assets directly associated with the B ESEEREENFEE
disposal group 56,628

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

During the current year, the Group entered into tenancy
agreements in respect of certain of its medical centres and
office premises under operating leases. Pursuant to the terms
of the respective tenancy agreements entered into by the
Group, the Group is required to restore the leased properties
to the conditions as stipulated in the tenancy agreements.
Accordingly, a provision for reinstatement costs in respect of
the leased properties of the Group amounting to HK$82,000
(2018: HK$668,000) was recognised and these costs were
included as part of the cost of the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and reflected as additions to leasehold
improvements of the Group during the current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties and medical

43.

centres under operating lease arrangements. Leases for

properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 6 years

(2018: 1 to 9 years). Certain leases are terminable with notice

periods of 2 to 3 months (2018: 2 to 3 months) given by the

Group.

At 30 June 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

42, KREHEHRIE
AEBREBLCEHETHARAEETH
DMERBEHHDL - MEREFHLEE
BN F1E6FE (2018%F  15295F) - &
FHERBHAERLS T2231EA (2018
F2E3@A) MBAEKIE -

30 June 2019

2019%F6 A30H

201996 A308 © A& B 1R 1 1 A
HiE e HERMNNARREAERELR
B T HAR B ES

2019 2018

2019 20184

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTER FET

Within one year —F R 35,528 21,859
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZNLF(BEEEME) 33,077 19,015
Over fifth years ENFE = 53
68,605 40,927

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed

in note 42 above, the Group had the following capital

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

43, &iE
Br E XXM sE42Fh FE My 48 & T B R R
SN REREHAR - AEBAE ARED
T

2019 2018
2019 2018%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI AB R B -
Leasehold improvements HEWEEE 217 181
Fixtures and office equipment REMBRERE - 61
Medical equipment BERERE 17 1,065
Computer equipment and software B R e Rt 311 1,289
Acquisition of subsidiaries Ui B B /B8 1 7] - 22,470
545 25,066

201945 » BAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions, arrangements and
balances detailed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following

44. BEEA RS
@ BUHZEERAMBHREE IR

HHR 5 - RYEREHIN  REF
A AEEEERTETHEAR

material transactions with related parties during the year: ST :
2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Lo THERT THET
Associates: BENT
Administrative support fee income  TH X &R A (i) 643 744
Professional services expense BERBER (ii) 4,065 4,631
Healthcare services income BEREBRBEKA (iii) 72 138
Joint ventures: BEAT:
Administrative support fee income ~ {TH X8 B A (i) 140 64
Management fee income EEERRKA (vi) - =
Professional services expense EERKER (ii) 649 130
Related companies”: BE AR
Property rental and related NEBELHEER
expenses (iv) 6,620 5,865
Contract healthcare solution BHNBERERR
services income FRRBEA (v) 17,946 14,306
Management fee income EEBRRA (vi) 2,363 6,334
Administrative support fee income  TE X HEAKA (i) 178 179
Professional services expense EERKER (vii) 4,247 3,781
* Certain directors and/or beneficial shareholders of the * ARRIETEER /REFZRE

Company are also directors and/or beneficial shareholders of
these related companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(@) (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The administrative support fee income was related to
administrative support services, such as payroll services,
rendered by the Group and was charged at terms mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

The professional services expense was related to healthcare
services rendered by associates and joint ventures and was
charged at terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The healthcare services income was related to medical
services rendered by the Group and was charged at terms
mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The property rental and related expenses were related to
the leasing of certain medical centres or premises for the
Group’s operation and were charged at terms stipulated in the
respective tenancy agreements.

Contract healthcare solution services income was related
to the provision of healthcare services to the employees of
related companies and was charged at terms mutually agreed
between the relevant parties.

The management fee income was related to the administrative
and management services rendered by the Group and
was charged at terms stipulated in the respective service
agreements.

The professional services expense was related to healthcare
services rendered by the related companies and was charged
at terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

44. BB AR Z (&)

@ &)
B 5E -

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

THXHERRAEREERHEDN
FHREEERXFREAAL
LA ERARRE TS M B A TE IR E -

EXRBEADBERRARAE
AAAAREERENRERS - 12
1E A 77 18 E 5 ) IR FRE -

BERERB WA BAEHRH
BB R RIS EREY AR EE
BRI E -

MEHEREHREREEEET
BBEPLRAEENRLESHE
B RN EREEREMETAN
G E -

BRERRREERT ZRBKA
HEm KA RN EBRMRMNER
REERBEBLREBESTEE
HEMRFTKE

EEEBRAERERRHINT
BREERBEBLREERR
BIHHRE GRKE -

EXRBEMEBHARREMHY
BERERSAE - WRREREY
BEHTENRREE -

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 44. BH R R 5 (5)
(b) Other transactions with related parties (b) HMHBEBLIKS
Professional services fees paid to the executive directors ARAREBIEHERRRRBEN
of the Company in relation to the rendering of healthcare FTERARBAMTEENEERKE
services to the Group are as follows: ol
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THEITT
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael BB A 2,122 1,283
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick* AR B 4,510 1,412
6,632 2,695
E Only included professional service fees paid to Dr. Lee Pak * KRBENR2018F2 A28 B ZEFHAFE
Cheung after his appointment as a director on 28 February REFEMBEIN2EERBE -
2018.
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the (c) REEFTESETEASPHRE :
Group:
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT THEIT
Short term employee benefits EHEERN 15,768 14,889
Post-employment benefits BERL 1218 A 80 80
Equity-settled share-based payment — LA#EZS &5 S LARR D &
expense EH AN RE X 5,170 1,068
Total compensation paid to key ENEEEBABZHRNAE
management personnel 21,018 16,037
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in ARESHM & — S B REE
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. FERFHTEES o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019

20196 A30H
45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. ﬁnﬂlﬂ o
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ARESR  FSEERITANEREEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T :
2019 20194
Financial assets TRMEE
Financial assets at
Financial assets at fair fair value through other
value through profit or loss comprehensive income
BARBESARS BOABEA
heEmEE Ht2EUANEREE
Financial
Contingent assets at
Held for consideration Deht Equity ~ amortised
trading  receivable investments  investments cost Total
REERE
Eig -1
BEEE EUAERE EBRE kiR THEE CEl

HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TER TiEx TiEx TEx

Financial assets at REBERAGEN
amortised cost PREE - - = - 60,734 60,734
Investments at fair value through B2 4 BEA
other comprehensive income ERETTON
tig - - 5,750 47,188 - 52,938
Trade receivables Z5RIE - - - - 104,997 104,997
Financial assets included in SIARNEIE A
prepayments, other receivables ERFEREM
and other assets BENESREE = 3,045 = = 26,654 29,699
Financial assets at fair value through %72 7t BEFTA
profit or loss B mzi@ﬂﬁﬁ 2,400 = = = = 2,400
Due from associates I 5%@;*2 = = = = 4,077 4,077
Due from related companies NG = = = = 3,633 3,633
Pledged deposits BRER - - = - 1,354 1,354
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELSED - = = = 207,644 207,644
2,400 3,045 5,750 47,188 409,093 467,476
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial
liability at
fair value Financial
through profit liabilities at
or loss amortised cost Total
BAREE
FFABREN REBSHEATE
- 5=R Hemas &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT FHET
Trade payables & 5 e 5RIE = 49,589 49,589
Financial liabilities included in STAEMENRIER
other payables and accruals FEH‘I‘% HEmas - 44,221 44,221
Due to associates FEAT B & R BIFKIB = 138 138
Due to related companies JE A F%H NAIFIA - 620 620
Due to a joint venture B —RaERaRIEA - 180 180
Derivative financial instrument TEERT A 743 = 743
743 94,748 95,491

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

45. TR T E9E ®)

2018 2018%
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or Held-to- for-sale
loss - held maturity Loans and financial
for trading  investments  receivables assets Total
BRAREE
FAERR
SREE- BEE Rk e
BEEE B HERE FEWEIR SREE A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TET TAER
Held-to-maturity investments  #74 = 3|55 & = 69,497 = = 69,497
Available-for-sale investments 7] ftt i & # & - - - 9,848 9,848
Trade receivables B HRENGE = S 78,800 = 78,800
Financial assets included FARMFIE - Eft
in prepayments, other FE Y sRoE e Ht
receivables and other assets EBEEMLBEE = = 15,773 S 15,773
Financial assets at fair value 122 £ EEABH
through profit or loss HNEMEE 2,427 = = = 2,427
Due from associates JE B & 1 BIR - - 5,640 = 5,640
Due from related companies UK B R A 8] 5008 - - 2,735 = 2,735
Due from a joint venture Elk—REaERARRE - - 415 = 415
Pledged deposits BRAER - - 1,352 = 1,352
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEZEY = - 293,970 - 293,970
2,427 69,497 398,685 9,848 480,457
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
TR
¥ =4:0
TRAE
HK$’000
FAT
Trade payables B 5 RN IR 39,152
Financial liabilities included in other payables and & A E fth & 15 50 A &
accruals EiERANEREBE 24,767
Due to associates FE TS & R R FAE 207
Due to related companies JE 1< B Bt X B 5RIE 452
64,578
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial

instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

BEE&K

30 June 2019

2019%F6 A30H

46. TRTANAIAREERQIAE

AEENEMEE REEEQAAEE
BEMEENERMEERIN) NREER

RABENT :

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE DREE
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 2018%F 20195 20184
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FET FET FET
Financial assets ctRMEE
Financial assets at amortised REHEKAGTE
cost/Held-to-maturity MEmEE
investments REZIEKRE
— Listed debt investments —FmEKBKRE 60,734 69,497 61,021 68,516
Investments at fair value BARBEFAHM
through other comprehensive 2EKANKRE
income/Available-for-sale AHERE
investments
— Unlisted equity investments ~ —3F_ Ef AL E 17,828 4,146 17,828 4,146
— Listed equity investment — LR E 29,360 - 29,360 -
— Listed debt investments —LFTmEBKRE 5,750 5,702 5,750 5,702
Contingent consideration FEW B RE
receivable 3,045 - 3,045 =
116,717 79,345 117,004 78,364
Financial liability cRas
Derivative financial instrument $T4£ &g T A 743 - 743 -
60,734 69,497 61,021 68,516
201943 » BEBEBEEBRAA 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. TRTEMNAREBERAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, balances with associates, related
companies and a joint venture approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities/repayable on
demand of these instruments or the effect of discounting is not

material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair

values:

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based
on quoted market prices.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments, which were
previously classified as available-for-sale investments, have
been estimated using either a discounted cashflow method or
based on recent market transaction prices.

The fair value of a contingent consideration receivable has
been estimated using Monte Carlo simulation method.

The fair value of derivative financial instrument has been
estimated using binomial tree pricing model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the

valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative

sensitivity analysis as at 30 June 2019:

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

46. TRTEAMAREBERAAE
BEH @

TRFMPN2019F6 A30H &R T EG
ENEATIERGASKERTEH

RED

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair

technique unobservable input Range value to the input

fhE R EXFUBRGARE EE DABEHBARBE ZHRE
An unlisted Discounted The key inputs are long term  Long term growth rate  The fair value of this investment is

equity investment

FLMBEARE

Unlisted

equity investments
FEMRAKE
Contingent

consideration
receivable

ERSARE

Derivative financial
instrument

TEERITA

cashflow method

FRRALREE

Third party
quotation
BZTHE

Monte Carlo
simulation
method

KL RERRE

Binomial tree
pricing model

B B
TEEER

growth rate

for cash flows,
weighted average

cost of capital
(“WACC") and discount
for lack of marketability
and control (“DLOMC”)

BREATBEARERE
CEMAER  METS
EemA(METHES
RAL U RBS B RE
MR IRHIE R ([BZ
GBI LR )
Third party pricing
information
FNEBER

Volatility

i

Risk free rate

ERBANE

Volatility

R

Risk free rate

BB =

of 3%, WACC of
19% and
DLOMC of

40% are applied

EERRMEERE
3% ~ MEFHEEMK
RB19%0 KR Z T
5B RIS
B R40%

5.91%

1.78%

10.9%

1.8%

minimal as at 30 June 2019. A
change in these key

inputs within a

reasonable range

would not result in a
significant change in

the fair value.

HIEHRBER2019%F6 A30H
EEBNTTE - hEHE
BEAREEN I EDHTE
REEIZEAEY -

GOPN
B
gy

D
'

/A

1% increase/decrease in volatility
would result in increase/decrease

in fair value by HK$54,000/
HK$60,000

RIEZI,/ BA1%EERA A BEKE
10,/ 54,000%8 7T /60,0007 7T

1% increase/decrease in risk free
rate would result in decrease/
increase in fair value by HK$77,000/
HK$106,000
BEBHEEN R 1%EE
BAREBEFD /77,0008
7T,/"106,0007% T

1% increase/decrease in volatility
would result in increase/decrease

in fair value by HK$119,000/
HK$117,000
RIREI, R 1% S ER AL BB
m/#119,000% 7T,/117,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in risk

free rate would result in increase/
decrease in fair value by HK$210,000/
HK$163,000
ERRFELN 1% B
An BEEM/ 722100007
7T,/163,0007% 7T

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. TRTEMNAREBERAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEEH @)

Fair value hierarchy RARBEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TR AEESRTANQIABER
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: EEFR:

Assets measured at fair value: RAREBETENEE

As at 30 June 2019 R2019%F6A30H

Fair value measurement using
AREEFERANEE
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant

in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB EBEATBE EXAFUEE
mHRE [IPN 1§ WAHE
(E—I8) (B=I8) (B=FE) &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET FHET

Investments at fair value through R AR BEFAEMEZE

other comprehensive income: BARKRE :

- Unlisted equity investments —FLETMRAKE - - 17,828 17,828

- Listed equity investments — FTRARE 29,360 = = 29,360

— Listed debt investments —tHEBRE - 5,750 - 5,750
Financial assets at fair value BRAREEFAERE

through profit or loss NEREE 2,400 - - 2,400
Contingent consideration receivable U A K (& = = 3,045 3,045

31,760 5,750 20,873 58,383
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

30 June 2019

20196 H30H
46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. ERMTENAABERAAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEER @
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RABEER(E)
Assets measured at fair value: BEARBEFTENEE
As at 30 June 2018 7K2018%F6H30H
Fair value measurement using
AREBEFTERPHESRE
Quoted
prices Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERME BERUBR SANTEER
HE LN ¢ ) A SR
(E—E) (=) (F=FE) &
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Available-for-sale investments: AHEEERE
Debt investments BRI E _ 5702 - 5,702
Financial assets at fair value RALBETA
through profit or loss BHRfNemEE 2,427 > - 2,427
2,427 5,702 - 8,129

During the vyear,

there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets

(2018: Nil). The movements in fair value measurements within

Level 3 are as follows:

EA@N CERMEES—

BRE_EZMH

BRAARBEFESR(2018F &) -
"*EJEWE’J@/%{ETEJEE’J AEINT

2019 2018
2019 2018%F
HK$/000 HK$'000
TR FTERT
Equity investments at fair value through other BAnEE uﬁ‘)\,ﬁ\{ﬁ%@
comprehensive income/available-for-sale AR BRAKERE /A
investments — unlisted equity investments: RE-FLEMBRAKRE :
At 1 July R7A1H 4,146 3,510
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 BRI B B 15 s A B
FIRNTE 3,967 -
At 1 July (restated) R7A1E (BES) 8,113 3,510
Purchases BE 6,736 636
Fair value gains recognised in other comprehensive 7 E A % [ Mt A\ B3R
income KR BEKRS 2,979 -
AL 30 June R6A308 17,828 4,146
Contingent consideration receivable: kB R(E
At 1 July R®7A1H - =
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 38) Y g W%Qﬁ (Pff5£38) 268 -
Fair value gain recognised in the consolidated RiFEBRR T HERH
statement of profit or loss (note 6) L\ﬁfﬁfﬁuﬁlﬁ? (Kf&re) 2,777 =
At 30 June »6A30H 3,045 -
20193 » BMABHEERERRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. TRTEMNAREBERAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BE& @

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RARBEEFER(E)
Liabilities measured at fair value: BAREEFENESE:
As at 30 June 2019 "2019%F6H830H

Fair value measurement using
DMABEFERANEE
Quoted prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEX

ER EATEER LR 23

5 RE BARE BWARE
(E—F8) (E=F) (E8=F) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

Derivative financial instrument ESRIA = = 743 743

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at REENR2018F6H308 I B IR
fair value as at 30 June 2018. AREEFENESHEE-

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RERN 2RBEF-—EBEHRE_EZH
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial WHENLEEFTEER (2018F  £) o
liabilities (2018: Nil). The movements in fair value F-BAMNAABEFENESHNT :

measurements within Level 3 are as follows:

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Derivative financial instrument: PTEEmIT A :

At 1 July ®7RA1H8 - =
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 38) W BE BB A &) (Bf5E38) 2,779 -

Fair value gain recognised in the consolidated 44 B E FBERH
statement of profit or loss (note 6) A EEWE (He) (2,036) -
At 30 June R6H30H 743 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and cash equivalents and short term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

With respect to listed equity and debt investments, the Group
purchases and holds only through various creditworthy
financial institutions.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 30 June 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 30 June 2019. For listed
debt investments, the Group also monitors them by using
external credit ratings. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

7. MEEAREEEEREE

FEENIESRIABERE RS
FEWARERER - ZFERT AN
TEANRRAKEMNEERHTES -
AEBEZRERHEZEELNEM
TREENAGE MEBEZRUFIANE
5 M 3RR

AEEERTAEANTIERARAREE
R MR#tRR EE5SRFARE
EEREZERROBERLBAINT

EERR
AEBERERREEAIENE=S
ETRS - WBAKBEOBER - FTEH
BERGRIETRINEP BAERBE
ERERRFR®  TAMEE - WIN AK
EeRnaERRYGREHRNER - 2
PrEERRRRARIL TEX -

AEBEFBREERIFNMBEHERE
EFAEMBRARBEFRE -

R2019%6 H30H 19 5B B R F 4 FE
129
TRIFNERAEENEFERENEE
BahkBaEERAR  FEERAHE
B (GRIEEMBERTEEANHETIRE
RASE HHER TERS) - KR2019
FoAOEHMFLERESE - LETE
BIEME - NEEFERINBEET
TMERZERE 2NN EBESEE
CREERKRAEE -

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. B EBREEREERERE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

318

Credit risk (Continued) EERMK (&)
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A A H
BEEEE 2HEHRGEEFR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
P& Ex1 P& £7 2 P& ER3 B 1L &
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Financial assets at BREENATED
amortised cost: TREE:
— Normal** — [E§** 60,734 - - - 60,734
Investments at fair BAREEFTAEM
value through other PHBANKE :
comprehensive income
— Normal** — I E** 52,938 - - - 52,938
Trade receivables* Z 5 & g - - - 104,997 104,997
Financial assets included in st ATE{TFIE - Hi
prepayments, R RIE K K fth B EE
other receivables CHMEE
and other assets
— Normal** — I E** 29,699 - - - 29,699
Due from associates FEU B & R R)FRIA
- Not yet past due — AR EH 4,077 - - _ 4,077
Due from related companies & 4 B8 B 2 7] 7% B
- Not yet pass due — 18 & 18 AR 3,633 - - - 3,633
Pledged deposits AR
- Not yet past due — 18 & 18 AR 1,354 - - - 1,354
Cash and cash equivalents B&NEEEEY
- Not yet past due — &) R 80 207,644 - - - 207,644
360,079 - - 104,997 465,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 30 June 2019
(Continued)

& For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

i The credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 30 June 2018

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, unlisted available-for-sale investments,
and amounts due from associates, related companies and a
joint venture, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 14% (2018: 13%) and 39%
(2018: 33%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors,
respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

BHEEREEEBRREE @)

EERK (&)
R20199F6 H30H 8 5= 5 &L e & F 42 5
B (&)

* RAKEEBBRESENE S RY
HE - ERBEREENERD BINGESR
BA TS HRAR P G220 5B

*  SREEZEREZNEYEAHAEY
BEHBIZELREEB NS ERE
EERAREERNEMEREIESR] - &
A eREEZEEERREIFLE] -

H2018%F6A30B 2 &= E K

rEBEMeREE (BREASMRS
LEY - KR EF  BHEWEIEAE 5
ATBRFIE - HMEWRIE R EMEE
MWeMEE  EAnEBEFTAEEZNE
BhEE - FELTAHEERE - B
BN BB ARE—HEeERAINR
BH)MNEERBRARSZEHFHFENME
A o malRRAERZEIANER
B-EERRERENERE HFH

B -

RIPER  AEBFREETEEET
Ebk AREBNE S EKKES @ o
RAE14% (20184 : 13%) [239% (2018
F:33%) BRRAEERRNEFAR
AREBHARGKIE -

AEEELBEHREFENEERR

W OME - P ECBBERBER G VT
W&RME22
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B ISR R M R

30 June 2019

20196 A30H
47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. B EREE B ZERBX @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk kA
The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash REBEERG#FEEERBENNE
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to e RREEEBY  UERAKEMNEE
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of RUEES W EREERERDHLE -
fluctuation in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors ERETHERRERASENESESR
the Group’s working capital requirements regularly. eFK-
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at REEBRR - AEERESORBBNK
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual ETHEREBEINHBERAEINNAT
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2019
20195
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
REREE LR3EA &5t
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THETT THEIT
Trade payables g P RNFKIEA 393 49,196 49,589
Financial liabilities included in T A H b & A FRIE K
other payables and accruals FHEANERAR 44,221 = 44,221
Due to associates FEAST B & R RIFRIB 138 - 138
Due to related companies FE < BB R B K18 620 - 620
Due to a joint venture ﬁ§1¢—ﬁaﬁé§A CIES | 180 - 180
Derivative financial instrument PTEERMTA 743 - 743
46,295 49,196 95,491
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. B EBREEEERERE @)

48.

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REN MR (E)
2018
20184
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
BEKREE DR 31E A A&t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET
Trade payables B 5N E 516 38,636 39,152
Financial liabilities included in FFAE AL ER R IE R
other payables and accruals FEstE A E’J%Eﬁ%ﬁ% 24,767 = 24,767
Due to associates XN R NEIE | 207 = 207
Due to related companies FEfTRABSE N BN IB 452 = 452
25,942 38,636 64,578
Capital management BEXERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 30 June 2019 and 30 June
2018.

The capital of the Group represents equity attributable to

owners of the Company.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2(c) and note 38 above, due
to the adoption of HKFRS 15 and the finalisation of purchase
price allocations for business combinations occurred in prior
year during the year, certain comparative amounts have been
restated to conform with the current year’s presentation.

48.

AEEEAERNEEBRAREARAE
BEFELENR L EFREZNE R
K AXRHEEBRBRRAERKE
3 o

AEBERBEERFEE(CREBEEDN
RERHEENAEREEARE - R
R RABEAR T% AREENSAEIR
NPRERNBE  REBEARTRENE

TENIAD o AR B A2 AT A7) 9136 8 Hn
HERZERBR - REZE20195F6H30
HX&2018F6A30HIEFE - BAERE
BiE BRERKBFI AL

AEBRNERNASARRBES AEIGE

= o

el
a0 SR EE2.2(c) B MY 5E3 83 — 25 A

B ARFRRAT BT ImEERE
155 RN E—FEEENERSHOE
BEERORCRFARE  BTHERSE
BOBEINNAEAFENZS -

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR

321



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F 6 A30H

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 49. A T B AR R &
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the BN HmERRER R BARRNKEE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BHOT
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR RIEE - -
Held-to-maturity investments RHEZIHPRE - 58,570
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEHAATENETREE 46,668 -
Available-for-sale investments AHERE - 5,702
Investments at fair value through EAnBEEA
other comprehensive income Hh 2 EWABIRE 35,110 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AT ZHHRES = 6,000
Total non-current assets FEMEE ELRTE 81,778 70,272
CURRENT ASSETS MEBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8 5 SRR Ko H b FE W KR 849 1,003
Held-to-maturity investments RHEZIHRE - 10,927
Financial assets at amortised cost REBEHEKAGTENEREE 14,066 -
Due from subsidiaries FEUR I B A Bl I8 377,580 289,346
Tax recoverable AT U EI R IR - 783
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS FEY 104,976 122,112
Total current assets MENEERTE 497,471 424,171
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Other payables and accruals Hib BRI N BT E R 1,723 921
Due to subsidiaries FEH BB A R FRIE 117,843 87,761
Total current liabilities mEBERE 119,566 88,682
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 377,905 335,489
Net assets BEFE 459,683 405,761
EQUITY E
Issued capital BEEITRA 758 753
Reserves (note) & (M) 458,925 405,008
Total equity B 459,683 405,761
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

30 June 2019
2019%F6 A30H

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 49, XD R M EMRR K @)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: B 3T
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARBHEHENT -
Available-
Shares held for-sale
Share  under the  Share-based investment Fair
premium share payment  revaluation value Retained
account  award scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total

R %E NRB R e
TEET EBN REER MEE
ReEEE BEORG  AREE 1 1 BENE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TEn TEn TEn Thn TEn TEn TEn
(note 35) (note 36)
(H33s) (B3E36)

At1 July 2017 #2017%7818 355,560 (5,343) 15,104 #8 . 16,646 381,885
Profit for the year ERFIE - = 5 S 5 27,553 27,553
Other comprehensive income for the year: EREMZENA
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHHERENLBES

investments - - - (213) - - (213)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERALE - - - (213) - 27,553 27,340
Final 2017 dividend 20175 RARE - = = = = (16,463) (16,463)
Interim 2018 dividend 2018FRERE - = = = = (4116) (4116)
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options TEBREBRIRG 24,901 (5,401) & s s 19,500
Purchases of shares for the share award scheme ik {3 55t 25 B i (p - (4,909) - - - = (4,909)
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements  JA 4 8 bR (7 AR R 7 &t - - 1,771 - - - 1,771
At30 June 2018 7201868308 380,461 (10,752) 11,474 205 - 23,620 405,008
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 FERHBRELNZRHTE - - - (205) 205 - -
AtT July 2018 (restated) R201847 B 18 (BE7]) 380,461 (10,752) 11,474 - 205 23,620 405,008
Profit for the year ERFIE - = 5 S 5 26,292 26,292

Other comprehensive income for the year: EREMZENA
Changes in fair value of equity investment at fair &2 7t EfEF AE 2 EHAL

value through other comprehensive income RERENALEEE - - - - 150 = 150
Changes in fair value of debt investments at fair &2 % BEF AZH2ENAL

value through other comprehensive income EBRENALEERD - - - - 48 - 48
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZERALE - - - - 198 26,292 26,490
Final 2018 dividend 2018 RERE S S S S = (17,587) (17,587)
Interim 2019 dividend 2019FHE#RE - - - - - (4,867) (4,867)
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options TR ERE TR 7,14 (1,693) = = = 5,448
Purchases of shares for the share award scheme 3tk (7 %E)5r 8B E B {3 - (3,868) - - - = 3,868)
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements IR £ SR AR A

EROHTLS - - 48,301 - - - 48,301
At 30 June 2019 #2019%6 7308 387,602 (14,620) 58,082 - 403 27,458 458,925
50. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 50. #ERE M B ®|E

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and AR ERN2019F9IA260HEE S
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 September SR R AT -
2019.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out

below.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

AEEREEZRAEAMBFENRENREE
BERFEREDEHME (BERACAHEER
MBHR)FINAT ©

Year ended 30 June
EZ6H30BLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 2017%F 2016%F 20154
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000
FET FAET FET FAET FAET
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(g=Ey) (gE7) &K&FY) (KEB53)
Revenue LN 567,377 463,441 399,817 344,403 297,845
Profit before tax B &5 A1 A1 34,275 48,505 57,094 14,254 47,780
Income tax expense Fri5 R (14,726) (11,003) (8,850) (7,372) (6,920)
Profit for the year FRFE 19,549 37,502 48,244 6,882 40,860
Attributable to: AR &5 L
Owners of the Company ZANYNSIE YN 12,798 37,555 44,085 6,676 41,392
Non-controlling interests IR E S 6,751 (53) 4,159 206 (532)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEREE
As at 30 June
R6A30H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20195 20184 20175 2016%F 20154

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FAET FET FET FET
(restated)
(= 51)
Total assets BEE 842,100 737,620 698,439 509,638 249,645
Total liabilities waff 156,138 103,215 102,825 99,040 183,454
685,962 634,405 595,614 410,598 66,191
Equity attributable to: A& rE(E#ER
Owners of the Company ZAYNEIE 2N 612,995 567,136 532,619 412,103 67,711
Non-controlling interests ~ JF 22 f% # 25 72,967 67,269 62,995 (1,505) (1,520)
685,962 634,405 595,614 410,598 66,191
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“2019 AGM”
[2019F WERBF KL

“Affiliated Clinic(s)”

(BB =2 P

“Affiliated Doctor”, “Affiliated
Dentist”, “Affiliated Auxiliary
Services Providers”

(BB [HETE
[ B J28 5 B AR 755 4 &

“Articles” or “Articles of
Association”

[ BN A NCIE N

“Audit Committee”

[BREE]
“Auxiliary Services”

[ %5 B AR 75 |

“Auxiliary Services Provider”

[ %5 B IR TS e 1 &

//BBS//

o+

[ERFES]

“Board”

(E%2

“Chairman”

[EF ]

GLOSSARY

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 20
November 2019
ARAER2019F11A208 (ZH=) BOTNKRRBFAE

clinic(s) which is/are not operated by the Group but which has entered or will
enter into an agreement directly with the Group to offer Medical Services, Dental
Services and/or Auxiliary Services to the Plan Members
VWIMAEERLEDKI B ERBERNEE T R ARSI 8 REERER
% ARRG RSB RS B2 B

doctor(s)/dentist(s)/Auxiliary Services Provider(s) who has/have entered or will
enter into an agreement directly with the Group to provide services to Plan
Members and who, in accordance with the terms of such agreement, has/have
received or will receive an amount from the Group based on the volume of Plan
Members treated
EESSEEREANRE T IHE AR KB REHRE BRBE R GRRD EX
BeREZHNTEKNEHBRAREREIFIENEE T8 W REREE

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company currently in force
BATEMA AR BRIET REH A BRI

the audit committee of the Board

EXeE I ERLES

includes imaging and laboratory services, physiotherapy, traditional Chinese
medicine, vision care and optometry and child health assessment
BRESXELMEBRE VAR B RUEERBIAARZTERREER
i

auxiliary services provider(s) who is/are or will be engaged directly by the Group
as a consultant to provide Auxiliary Services in the UMP Medical Centres in
accordance with the terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group, and the
Affiliated Auxiliary Services Providers
ERABESEREAEELRIE QBN AR B AR & B 2257 #0873 2 10 6 50 B
BEHBTLOARESDRENHMGIRHRE - URBEHRGIRHEE

Bronze Bauhinia Star
MEFEE

the board of Directors

EExg
the chairman of the Board

EERFR
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GLOSSARY
AR

“Chief Executive Officer”
[1TE 42 % |

“Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Employees”

[MEBEITESRZH BT EA]
“Company”
NG

“Contract Customers”

”Corporate Governance Code”
e - D iSR!

“CR Medical”

“CTFE”
PERNEEE S

“Dental” or “Dental Services”

[ skl 7 B AR 75
“Dentists”

[T & |

the chief executive officer of the Company

RRBITRARE

the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees adopted by the
Company
ARBMRANERETESFIZ R TER

UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 5 November 2014
BEBBEEARAF R2014FNASAREFASHAE AP EMKINEGR AT

collectively, insurance companies and corporations which have entered or
will enter into corporate plans with the Group for healthcare benefits for Plan
Members
EEESETENENBERERMNERRETLEEFENRBRARIRDER
B 5 A

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

T AR RUBH 8%+ O R A 1 B DA <T A

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as
China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1515)

ERBEERERAFR (AIBERRRBRERABRAR) RASAHSTMAL
YRR ER ETARAF (R : 1515)

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
Hong Kong with limited liability
BAARBEEBRAR  REFEEPEMRINERAF

include primary dental services such as scaling and polishing and secondary
dental services such as crown and bridge, orthodontics, implants and whitening
BRERNTHRE (WRTF R ARE-_EFRRE (MATERTHE - AELE
B EERITEXA)

dentist who is or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant to provide
Dental Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with the terms of a
consultancy agreement with the Group, and the Affiliated Dentists

B Eiﬁéﬁ’%Iiﬂyﬁ@?ﬂx@ﬁ%ﬁéﬁl’iﬁlﬂ BIEEENE e
BB OANRETRBEETE - AR
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”

“Directors

[E%]

“Doctors”

[ 4]

“FY2018”
[20185F L [E |

“FY2019”
[2019BF ER&F [Z |

“general practitioner”

[2RE L]

“Global Offering” or “IPO”

[BRBEEIHERAFEE]

//Group//, //We//, //UMPII or
“UMP Heathcare Group”
[A&<E] T3] -

[MAEBK A HMABHEE]

//HAML//

(BREEERE]

GLOSSARY

directors of the Company

ZAN/NETE--=5

doctor who is or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant to provide
Medical Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with the terms of a
consultancy agreement with the Group and the Affiliated Doctors

ERF B EREAKE R SRR AR EALE B AT H0 B 193 10 1R B
ABEBHOAREERREOEL  UNBEBE

the financial year ended 30 June 2018
HE2018F6 308 LW ERFE

the financial year ended 30 June 2019
BZE2019F6 A30R LM BFE

Doctors trained in general practice and best suited to act as first point of contact
for patients, having the required knowledge to refer patients to the appropriate
specialists or services required

BEXeMInEL  REAABRERHEADH  AEMFNRRTRENS
EEEAERERS

the offer of the shares of the Company to the public in Hong Kong and outside
the United States of America in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation
S, the details of which are set out in the section headed “Structure of the Global
Offering” of the Prospectus
ARBMBERBALREKIESHOAEXBERIIBEEZZPEESKD  FHEEAN
BRERI2RBEENRE] &P

the Company and its subsidiaries

ZA/NESTD BN

Healthcare Assets Management Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, which is owned as to 30% by Healthcare Ventures, 30% by
NWS Subsidiary and 40% by a subsidiary of New World Development Company
Limited (stock code: 17)

BREEEEBARAR NREBXIMKRLNBR A GF - 5 5l fiHealthcare
Ventures ~ MBI EMBARLFEARAERBBE LR (ROKFE 17) 0 —HHBELR
AHEH30% ~ 30% K40%HE 5
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GLOSSARY
AR

“Healthcare Ventures”
[Healthcare Ventures |
//HK$//
[T

“Hong Kong”

[ &% ]

“Hong Kong & Macau Clinical
Healthcare Services”

[ B8 ROBPIER IR BB (R (2 AR 75

“Hong Kong & Macau Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services”

[BHE R EBEERE
R R T ERARTE

//JP//
[ K4t

“Listing Date”
[ B

“Listing Rules”

[EmARA

“Macau”

[RFT]

“Medical” or “Medical Services”

[BE k[ BERE]
“Model Code”
ESEE

//NWS"

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTFE

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited * 1R & & & fE Z B¥ S A DI ML B R 2
Al RARBNEZRREAABEENZENE QA

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEEAEEEET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBFITH R

provision of clinical healthcare services to Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and
Macau

REBNBPIMB BB EREGERBRERERS
provision of corporate healthcare solutions services in Hong Kong and Macau

RERE MRFIEHE X BRRIERRT ZRH

Justice of the Peace

KFHL

27 November 2015
201511 A27H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B 7 £ AR A

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
A DR P BI T U

include general practice and specialist practice
BREMEEMEMNER

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
FHRAME T LM BETAESETESFRFNRLETAI

NWS Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 659)
MEZEBARAR  EAREIMAINBR AR - REERMER LS (RO K
5% : 659)
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“NWS Subsidiary”

[ % 832 8 A A

//Pinyu//

[

“Plan Members”

5

o

aE124

\

“Post-IPO Share

Option Scheme”
[BRARESRBRETS]
//PRC//
[
“Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme”

[B R F 3% & AR A AT 8

“Prospectus”

[BRER]

“Remuneration Committee”

(FNEZEE]

“RMB”
AR

“Rich Point”

(&

GLOSSARY

Dynamic Ally Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS

Dynamic Ally Limited - REBFMEA AR QA - AMEAIENHEEL2ENEAR
=

Pinyu Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Medical

MU BRAR REXBRAHEEEMKAINERRTE  SEARRETERRE
VTAREREENERZEMB QA

members of the Group’s corporate healthcare benefits plans, who typically
include group medical insurance policyholders and employees of corporations
and/or their dependants
AEECEBRREBATEIKE -
BER/SIERE

—REESEBERRRERAALKEDN

the post-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Company on 2
November 2015
ARAR2015F11 A2B L AERRANBE R AHEERBARETS

People’s Republic of China (excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan)

FEARAMB (RLAHREMS - TREFZE  RFAKGE

the pre-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 18
August 2015
EEEN2015F8 18R H/E MKMW B R AR E S BRET 2

the prospectus of the Company dated 17 November 2015
ARRHHR/015F1TA1I7ANBRER

the remuneration committee of the Board

ExeBETHFMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FEAEEBARKE
Rich Point Investment Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong

with limited liability
BEREEBARAR  REAEMAINERAA

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR
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GLOSSARY
AR

“Rich Point Group”
[EERE]

//SBS//
[REMEE]

“Self-paid Patients”
(BEEE]

“Shanghai Eaton Consulting”
[ EBRRREEN
“Shanghai He Dun”

[ EBAZ

“Share Award Scheme”

[ A% 0 52 B &t &1 )
“Share(s)”
[R5 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A& 3]

“Snow Lake Group”

EHEE]

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong and his associates including Rich Point

FRIBEREBEZEA(BEEE)

Silver Bauhinia Star
REFEE

patients who visit a UMP Medical Centre operated by the Group and pays for
services using cash or credit card

IAEERENBABRPLONRYEARESKERRINRBEERANES

EERRREEAREBRAFT], a limited liability company established in the PRC
and is an indirect subsidiary of the Company

FERRREEARBERAR  RPBERINBREELF - RAQAHEE
Bt 8 2~ )

EBEHBEMEAER DT, a company established in the PRC
FEEBBEMBRARDEF - RABIKIZHA A

the share award scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 30 June 2016
EEEMN20165F6A30H H/E RRA AR ) 2B 53

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of
the Company
AR R AR ZRREEO0.001/48 T K & B

holder(s) of Share(s)
& eEFEE A

based on the publicly available information so far, Snow Lake China Master Long
Fund, Ltd., Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd., Snow Lake China Offshore Fund,
Ltd. (which holds 80.93% of Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.), Snow Lake
Capital Limited (as investment manager of Snow Lake China Master Long Fund,
Ltd. and Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.) and Snow Lake Capital (HK) Limited
(as investment manager of Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. and Snow
Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.)

ERBRIAFASER - Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. * Snow Lake
China Master Fund, Ltd. * Snow Lake China Offshore Fund, Ltd. (3 & Snow Lake
China Master Fund, Ltd.f# 80.93%) * Snow Lake Capital Limited (fE &Snow Lake
China Master Long Fund, Ltd.% Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.®J3% & % 1%
N REMRER(FE) BR AT (YEA Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. &
Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd. By EEIE A)
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“specialist practice” or
“specialist services”

[ERBEE] S ERRHE]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B <2 Ffr |

“UMP Healthcare China”

(2 8 5o

“UMP Healthcare China
Group”
[Bra B REE]

“UMP Lujiazui”
[ LERERR]

“UMP Medical Centre(s)”
[Ht & B I5 AR O

“UMP Network”

[UMP#48 4% |

“Uss”
(%57

GLOSSARY

the range of specialist practice offered by UMP, including Cardiology,
Dermatology, Endocrinology, Diabetes and Metabolism, Family Medicine,
Gastroenterology and Hepatology, General Surgery, Internal Medicine,
Nephrology, Neurology, Neurosurgery, Obstetrics and Gynaecology,
Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics and Traumatology, Otorhinolaryngology (ENT),
Paediatrics, Paediatrics Surgery, Radiology, Respiratory Medicine, Rheumatology
and Urology, an updated list of which is available on www.ump.com.hk

BEeBBKREEN —RINENEERE B OER - KEM - AW - BIKRE RS
BREBS - Hﬁ)EJ K RTRERE - B@INEE - B BRE - fR &R &N 7

ER - RE - BRKASH  ESWRM - 2R DRI R FRAR -

BR R ROUFREL - EEHNEE R www.ump.com.hk L 7] #t & 5]

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBARSHARAT

UMP Healthcare China Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
the Cayman Islands with limited liability and a 80%-owned subsidiary of the
Company

UMP Healthcare China Limited CIRBEHSEEEMZEMKINARAR AR
7] 5 80%HE a1 HO FT BB

UMP Healthcare China and its subsidiaries
BMeaBBEPREREMBA

EBHRBIRFIZIMBAR A F], a company established in the PRC
EFRRBERFMZHERIGF - RPBEKIZHRA A

medical centre(s) offering Medical Services, Dental Services and/or Auxiliary
Services which is/are operated by the Group

RUBERY  FTRRER FWBPREOBEHL  BREELH

consists of (i) UMP Medical Centres which are operated by the Group and (ii)
Affiliated Clinics which are clinics not operated by the Group but each of which
has entered into an agreement with the Group to offer Medical Services, Dental
Services and/or Auxiliary Services to Plan Members
BROASELENBEBEETORMNBBZ M (LIFBAEERENDH - ES
BEEAKEI I BHEARGEIKEREBRRY - TERE R & RE)

US dollar, the lawful currency of the United States of America

ENBERBEAEEREXT

20194 3f o HMAEEBKEBBR AR
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GLOSSARY
AR

“Zheng He”

[ &5 A0 ]

“Zheng He Party(ies)”

[EA— 75 ]

Zheng He Health and Medical Resources Limited, a Private Company Limited by
Shares incorporated in the British Virgin Islands

Zheng He Health and Medical Resources Limited + 7 3 8 5% % B & o1 flt 5 37 &9 Fl
AR BRI A

the company(ies) or trust(s) which is under the control of Mr. Law Siu Wah, Eddie
or his family trust or estate

EREERESUEFRGEALEEZEN R THRRHLE
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